T™ILLINGDON

LONDON

North Planning

Committee
Date: THURSDAY, 7 JUNE 2012
Time: 7.00 PM
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5
CIVIC CENTRE
HIGH STREET
UXBRIDGE
uUuB8 1UW
Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend

this meeting

This agenda and associated
reports can be made available
in other languages, in braille,
large print or on audio tape on
request. Please contact us for
further information.

This Agenda is available online at:

Public Document Pack

To Councillors on the Committee

Eddie Lavery (Chairman)

Allan Kauffman, (Vice-Chairman)
David Allam (Labour Lead)

Jazz Dhillon

Carol Melvin

John Morgan

David Payne

Raymond Graham

Published: Monday, 28 May 2012

Contact: Charles Francis

Tel: 01895 556454

Fax: 01895 277373
democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk

http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=116&MId=1378&Ver=4

Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

www. hillingdon.gov.uk

R

ﬁi"
4

=

(—L“” -

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE



Useful information

4
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at w e
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, \‘3‘* A
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a ‘;étu j
short walk away. Limited parking is available at V/
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and MZE

how to book a parking space, please contact

R i
Democratic Services Sl N i \Fg
opping % i
Chimes
Cemr Shopping
)

Please enter from the Council’s main reception ‘ P O
where you will be directed to the Committee ‘(“\% ]
Room. An Induction Loop System is available for £ park
use in the various meeting rooms. Please contact . . ..# M, :
us for further information. — Rt

Muzraring
rar park

Please switch off any mobile telephones and
BlackBerries™ before the meeting. Any
recording of the meeting is not allowed, either
using electronic, mobile or visual devices.

If there is a FIRE in the building the alarm will
sound continuously. If there is a BOMB ALERT
the alarm sounds intermittently. Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
BOMB ALERT the alarm sounds intermittently.
Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.
Recording of meetings - This is not allowed, either
using electronic, mobile or visual devices.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones and BlackBerries before the meeting.
Petitions and Councillors

Petitions -Petitions- When a petition of 20
signatures or more of residents that live, work or
study in the borough is received they can speak at a
Planning Committee in support of or against an
application for up to 5 minutes. Where multiple
petitions are received against (or in support of) the
same planning application, the Chairman of the
Planning Committee has the discretion to amend
speaking rights so that there is not a duplication of
presentations to the meeting. In such
circumstances, it will not be an automatic right
that each representative of a petition will get 5
minutes to speak. However, the Chairman may
agree a maximum of 10 minutes if one
representative is selected to speak on behalf of
multiple petitions.

Petitions must be submitted in writing to the
Council in advance of the meeting. Where there is
a petition opposing a planning application there is
also the right for the applicant or their agent to
address the meeting for up to 5 minutes.

If an application with a petition is deferred and a
petitioner has addressed the meeting a new valid
petition will be required to enable a representative
to speak at a subsequent meeting on this item.
Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with by
the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application.

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at the
beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-
1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;

3. If there is a petition(s),the petition organiser
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant
followed by any Ward Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek
clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by having
regard to legislation, policies laid down by
National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee must
conduct themselves when dealing with planning
matters and when making their decisions is
contained in the ‘Planning Code of Conduct’,
which is part of the Council’s Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee cannot
take into account issues which are not planning
considerations such as the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the
Committee will be asked to provide detailed
reasons for refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application, the
applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

Chairman's Announcements

1

a ~ W0 N

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting (to follow)
Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

To confirm that the items of business marked Part 1 will be considered in public
and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private

Reports - Part 1 - Members, Public and Press

Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the
Chairman may vary this. Reports are split into ‘major’ and ‘minor’ applications. The
name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the address of the premises or
land concerned.

Major Applications without a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
6 | Lyon Court and 28-30 | West Erection of 3, part 3, part 4 storey 1-30
Pembroke Road Ruislip blocks, to provide 61 residential
Ruislip units, comprising 25 one bedroom,
27 two bedroom, 8 three bedroom
66985/APP/2011/3049 apartments and one 4 bedroom

house, together with construction
of a new access, associated
parking and landscaping, involving
demolition of existing buildings
and stopping up of existing
vehicular access.

Recommendation: Approval
subject to a Section 106 and/or
Section 278 Agreement




Non Major Applications with a Petition

Breakspear Road
North
Harefield

contain 2 one-bedroom and 4 two-
bedroom, self contained flats with
associated parking and amenity
space and alterations to existing
vehicle crossover to front,
(involving demolition of existing
building). Deed of Variation to
S$106 Agreement determined at
Committee 26" April 2012

Recommendation: Approval
subject to a Section 106/
Unilateral Undertaking

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
Imada Eastcote & | Erection of a first floor side 31-46
12 Kaduna Close East extension to provide 2 two-
Eastcote Ruislip bedroom flats with associated

parking and amenity space.
52580/APP/2011/2033

Recommendation: That the

application would have been

refused had an appeal against

non-determination not been

received.
Land at Junction of Ickenham | Installation of a 15m high 47 - 54
Warren Road telecommunications pole,
Swakeleys Drive associated antenna, equipment
Ickenham cabinet and ancillary

developments works (Consultation
65862/APP/2012/982 Under Schedule 2, Part 24 of the

Town and Country Planning

(General Permitted Development)

Order 1995) (as amended.)

Application for prior approval for

siting and design.

Recommendation: (A) That prior

approval of siting and design is

required.

Recommendation (B) Refusal

Non Major Applications without a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
The Swan Harefield Two storey detached building to 55-94




Address

Ward

Description & Recommendation

Page

10

Land at Willow Farm
(Field 3116)
Jackets Lane
Harefield

57685/APP/2011/1450

Harefield

Permanent use of the land as a
gypsy and traveller caravan site
and for the keeping and breeding
of horses with associated
operational development, including
the siting of two mobile homes and
a touring caravan, retention of two
stable blocks, and the formation of
a garden area with the erection of
a garden shed, yard and paddock
areas, parking spaces,
landscaping and fencing (Part
retrospective application).
Deferred from Central & South
Committee 10/01/2012

Recommendation: Refusal

95-120

11

439 Victoria Road
Ruislip

67990/APP/2012/728

South
Ruislip

Change of use of from retail (Use
Class A1) to financial and
professional services (Use Class
A2).

Recommendation: Approval

121 -130

12

The Breakspear Arms,
Breakspear Road
North,

Harefield

10615/APP/2012/488

Harefield

Conservatory to side and provision
of 'jumbrella’ and outdoor seating
areas to exterior of property.

Recommendation: Refusal

131 -140

Part 2 - Members Only

The reports listed below are not made public because they contain confidential or exempt
information under paragraph 6 of Par 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government
(Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

13
14

Enforcement Report

Enforcement Report

Any Items Transferred from Part 1

Any Other Business in Part 2

Plans for North Planning Committee

Page 141 — 152

Page 153 — 160

Page 161 - 208




Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos:

Drawing Nos:

Date Application Valid: 25/01/2012

Agenda ltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

LYON COURT AND 28-30 PEMBROKE ROAD RUISLIP

Erection of 3, part 3, part 4 storey blocks, to provide 61 residential units,
comprising 25 one bedroom, 27 two bedroom, 8 three bedroom apartments
and one 4 bedroom house, together with construction of a new access,
associated parking and landscaping, involving demolition of existing buildings
and stopping up of existing vehicular access.

66985/APP/2011/3049

1250/SK/29 Rev A
1214-P102 W
1214-P103 V
1214-P110 S
1214-P111 NV
1214-120
1214-122
1250/SK/33 B
1214-P100 AC
1214-P101 AC

1214-P102 X
1214-P112
Date Plans Received:  16/12/2011 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 25/01/2012
23/05/2012

DEFERRED ON 24th May 2012 FOR SITE VISIT .

The application was heard at the 17th May 2012 North Planning Committee. Members defferre«
the application for a site visit and raised a number of concerns.

1. Entrance gates

The applicant has advised that there are 2 main reasons that these are being proposed as part
of the scheme as follows:

"The site is located very close to Ruislip Underground station and bus interchange and my
clients are concerned to ensure that commuters are deterred from entering the site and making
use of the parking spaces. It is important that the parking spaces are available at all times for
residents of the scheme. At nearby Kings Court which access directly onto Station Approach
this issue is dealt-with by means of electric gates. At Merrion Court, the managing agents are
having to employ clampers to deal with the problem which is obviously far from satisfactory. My
Clients believe that electrically operated gates on this development will act as a real deterrent
unauthorised parking on the site.

During pre-application discussions, the Metropolitan Police's Crime Prevention Design Advisor,
was keen to ensure that the site is presented as secure due to its vulnerable location near a
public transport interchange which provides the opportunity for the casual criminal passing
through the area. The proposed gates will provide this element of psychological security and
perceived deterrence to anyone with criminal intentions."

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 1



With regard to Members' comments about the interruption of traffic flow into the site from
Pembroke Road, the gates are set back far enough to allow 2 cars to park off the road. The
applicant has advised that the gates themselves will not be code or key operated but will be
activated by a loop in the access road and will open as a vehicle approaches. This will ensure
that vehicles do not 'stack' back onto Pembroke Road. In the event of failure of the electric
mechanism, the rams that open the gates 'relax' and the gates can be pushed open manually.
This is similar to the 'fail safe' arrangement on magnetic locks in buildings in the event of fire. It
is considered that this matter can be covered by means of a condition requiring details of the
precise design of the gate-opening mechanisms to be submitted before development
commences.

The applicant has stressed that electrically-operated gates are proposed on this scheme for
real security and practical reasons, and not in any sense to create an exclusive and socially
excluded environment for residents.

2. House adjacent to Block A

The applicant has advised that this unit provides an important element in the street-scene and ¢
well-conceived transition to the adjacent Merrion Court building which steps down to 2 stories
plus rooms in the roof adjacent to the site boundary. This variation in roof and eaves heights wi
provide visual interest along Pembroke Road and is an approach that encouraged by the
Council's Design Officer. The Applicants consider this to be an important element of the overall
scheme which should be retained.

The applicant has made a number of minor alterations to the site layout which are shown on the
revised drawings. These are:

i) Block A has been moved forward by 0.5 metres, and Block B by 1.0 metres, to increase the
amount of useable amenity space within the site by 27.5 sq metres.

ii) The depth of the house (plot A15) has been increased by 1.2 metres and a small
conservatory added at the rear. The garden has also been enlarged and a lock-able gate
provided to provide access to the shared amenity space at the rear.

These changes are considered to improve both the living environment for the occupiers of the
new house and overall amenity space, without having an adverse impact on the appearance of
the development.

1. SUMMARY

Planning permission is sought for the erection of 3, part 2, part 3 storey blocks with
accommodation in the roof space, to provide 61 residential units, comprising 25 one
bedroom, 27 two bedroom, 8 three bedroom apartments and one 5 bedroom house,
together with construction of a new access, associated parking and landscaping, involving
demolition of existing buildings and stopping up of existing vehicular access. The proposal
includes parking for 48 cars , 76 secure cycle spaces and bin stores, together with
associated landscaping.

The proposed scheme is considered to be of an acceptable design which would be
compatible within the local context and result in an adequate standard of amenity for future
occupiers.

The proposal would not detrimentally impact on the residential amenity of neighbouring

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 2



occupiers and would provide an acceptable area of soft landscaped amenity space for the
benefit of future occupiers.

Accordingly, the application is recommended for approval, subject to conditions and the
signing of a S106 Legal Agreement.

2. RECOMMENDATION

A. That the Council enters into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or Section 278 of the
Highways Act 1980 (as amended) and/ or other appropriate legislation to secure:

i) A s278 shall be entered into to cover any and all highways works need as a result
of this application.

ii) Affordable Housing: a payment in the sum of £40,00 towards the provision of
affordable housing within the borough.

iii) Health and Social Care: a contribution in the sum of £14,835.40.

iv) Public Realm: a contribution of £25,000.

v) Libraries: a contribution in the sum of £2,233.99.

vi) Construction Training: a contribution equal to £47,326.09.

vii) Project Management and Monitoring Fee: £5,181.02.

viii) Street Tree: This concerns a protection strategy as well as repair works
and/or replacement of the street tree adjacent to the site access in the event of
damage to the tree.

ix) Ecology: Payment in the sum of £25,000

B) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Council's reasonable costs in preparation of the Section 106 and 278
Agreements and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being
completed.

C) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement and conditions of approval.

D) That if any of the heads of terms set out above have not been agreed and the
S$106 legal agreement has not been finalised within 6 months of the date of this
Committee resolution, or any other period deemed appropriate by the Head of
Planning, Sport and Green Spaces, then the application may be referred back to
the Committee for determination.

E) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces under delegated powers, subject to
the completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

F) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be imposed subject
to any changes negotiated by the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces prior
to issuing the decision:

1 RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 3



REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers:

1250/SK/29 Rev A
1214-P100 AB
1214-P101 AB
1214-P102 W
1214-P103 V
1214-P110 S
1214-P111 M
1214-120
1214-122
1250/SK/33 C

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and the London Plan (July 2011).

3 RES6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not be
carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in accordance
with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

4 RES7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces, ,
including details of balconies have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance with
the approved details and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

5 RES5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 4



completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:
Refuse and Recycling Storage (Drawing 1214-P100 AB)
Cycle Storage (Drawing 1214-P100 AB)

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of Policy 5.17 (refuse
storage)of the London Plan (July 2011).

6 RES9 Landscaping (including refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.b Car Parking Layouts (including demonstration that 5% of all parking spaces are served
by electrical charging points)

2.c Hard Surfacing Materials

2.d External Lighting

2.e Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation (including provision of amenity areas prior to occupation)

5. Other
5.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
5.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual

amenities of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13,
BE38 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

7 RES10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 5



Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or
shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would leave the
new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a position
to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size and
species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the
first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial
works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and
Shrubs'

Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and to comply with Section 197 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

8 RES16 Code for Sustainable Homes

The dwelling(s) shall achieve Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes. No development
shall commence until a signed design stage certificate confirming this level has been
received. The design stage certificate shall be retained and made available for inspection
by the Local Planning Authority on request.

The development must be completed in accordance with the principles of the design
stage certificate and the applicant shall ensure that completion stage certificate has been
attained prior to occupancy of each dwelling.

REASON
To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development identified in London Plan (July
2011) Policies 5.1 and 5.3.

9 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to
delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken to
prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which
shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker
and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime.

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 6



The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OES8 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and London Plan (July 2011) Policy 5.12.

10 RES19 Ecology

No development shall take place until a scheme to protect and enhance the nature
conservation interest of the site has been submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority.

REASON

In order to encourage a wide diversity of wildlife on the existing semi-natural habitat of the
site in accordance with policy EC5 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) and London Plan (July 2011) Policy 7.19.

11 RES18 Lifetime Homes/Wheelchair Units

All residential units within the development hereby approved shall be built in accordance
with 'Lifetime Homes' Standards. Further 10% of the units hereby approved shall be
designed and constructed to be fully wheelchair accessible or easily adaptable for
residents who are wheelchair users, as set out in the Council's Supplementary Planning
Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'.

REASON
To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2

12 RES22 Parking Allocation

No unit hereby approved shall be occupied until a parking allocation scheme has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
parking shall remain allocated for the use of the units in accordance with the approved
scheme and remain under this allocation for the life of the development.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan . (July 2011).

13 RES24 Secured by Design

The dwellings and children's play area shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation
awarded by the Hillingdon Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA)
on behalf of the Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No dwelling shall be
occupied until accreditation has been achieved.

REASON
In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 7



consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote the
well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

14 NONSC Noise/Rail Noise Mitigation

Development shall not begin until a scheme for protecting the proposed development from
road and rail traffic noise has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority (LPA). The noise protection scheme shall meet acceptable noise design criteria
both indoors and outdoors. The scheme shall include such combination of measures as
may be approved by the LPA. The scheme shall thereafter be retained and operated in its
approved form for so long as the use hereby permitted remains on the site.

REASON
To safeguard the amenities of future occupiers in accordance with Policies OE1 and OE5
of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

15 NONSC Clean Soils

All soils used for gardens and/or landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of
contamination. Site derived soils and imported soils shall be tested for chemical
contamination. The results of this testing shall be made available at the request of the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the occupants and users of the development are not subject to any risks
from contamination in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

16 NONSC Details of Oriel Windows

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until full details of oriel
windows serving plots A7, A11, C2, C5 and C11 have been submitted and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be carried out in
full accordance with the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the design of the auriel windows secures adequate privacy and outlook for
the future occupiers of the developmetn in accordance with Policies BE20, BE21 and
BE24 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2011) and
the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement - Residential Layouts.

17 OM19 Construction Management Plan

Prior to development commencing, the applicant shall submit a demolition and
construction management plan to the Local Planning Authority for its approval. The plan
shall detail:

(i) The phasing of development works

(ii) The hours during which development works will occur (please refer to informative 115
for maximum permitted working hours).

(i) A programme to demonstrate that the most valuable or potentially contaminating
materials and fittings can be removed safely and intact for later re-use or processing.

(iv) Measures to prevent mud and dirt tracking onto footways and adjoining roads
(including wheel washing facilities).

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 8



(v) Traffic management and access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and parking
provisions for contractors during the development process (including measures to reduce
the numbers of construction vehicles accessing the site during peak hours).

(vi) Measures to reduce the impact of the development on local air quality and dust
through minimising emissions throughout the demolition and construction process.

(vii) The storage of demolition/construction materials on site.

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of the
demolition and construction process.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies 2007).

INFORMATIVES

1 123 Works affecting the Public Highway - Vehicle Crossover

The development requires the formation of a vehicular crossover, which will be
constructed by the Council. This work is also subject to the issuing of a separate licence
to obstruct or open up the public highway. For further information and advice contact: -
Highways Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

2 125A The Party Wall etc. Act 1996
On 1 July 1997, a new act, The Party Wall etc. Act 1996, came into force.

This Act requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement from, any
adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:-

1) carry out work to an existing party wall;
2) build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
3) in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.

Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner and
are quite separate from Building Regulations or planning controls. Building Control will
assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements with the adjoining
owner, and nothing said or implied by Building Control should be taken as removing the
necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Act.

3 134 Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings'

Compliance with Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings' and Disability
Discrimination Act 1995 for commercial and residential development.

You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:-

- The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with

- BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled
people - Code of practice. AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005.

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 9



You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination Act
1995. The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments. This duty
can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it is
reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance. For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

- The Disability Discrimination Act 1995. Available to download from www.opsi.gov.uk

- Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements. Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

- Code of practice. Rights of access. Goods, facilities, services and premises. Disability
discrimination act 1995, 2002. ISBN 0 11702 860 6. Available to download from
www.drc-gb.org.

- Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you. A guide for
service providers, 2003. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation. For further information
you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804/5/6.

4 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

5 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 10



BE24 neighbours.

BE25 Modernisation and improvement of industrial and business areas

BE28 Shop fronts - design and materials

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

EC2 Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments

EC5 Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats

H12 Tandem development of backland in residential areas

H4 Mix of housing units

H5 Dwellings suitable for large families

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE5 Siting of noise-sensitive developments

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreatior

leisure and community facilities

6 15 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of
08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays,
Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

7
You are advised that the scheme should incorporate the following to meet Secure by
Design accreditation:

The scheme needs to incorporate defensible space around the ground floor flats.
Good perimeter treatment around the central one space and LAP.

Details of bin stores, cycle stores should be provided.

Natural surveillance where possible.

8
You are advised that the development hereby approved represents chargeable

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 11



development under the Community Infrastructure Levy. The applicant will be liable to pay
the Community Infrastructure Levy to the sum of £122,045 on commencement of this
development. A separate liability notice will be issued by the Local Planning Authority,
however you are advised that it is your responsibility to notify the Local Planning Authority
of the anticipated commencement date and any changes in liability through submission of
the appropriate forms.

Should you require further information please refer to the Council's Website
(http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/index.jsp?articleid=24738).'

9 123 Works affecting the Public Highway - Vehicle Crossover

The development requires the formation of a vehicular crossover, which will be
constructed by the Council. This work is also subject to the issuing of a separate licence
to obstruct or open up the public highway. For further information and advice contact: -
Highways Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site comprises Lyon Court, a U shaped 2 storey block of 4 x 1 bedroom and 12 x 2
bedroom flats and a pair of semi detached 2 storey dwellings (28-30) Pembroke Road to
the east. The site has a total frontage of 60m to Pembroke Road. The combined site area
is 0.46 ha. The site slopes down generally in a southerly direction.

The site lies at the western end of Pembroke Road; it currently includes Lyon House, a late
c1940s 2 storey red brick block of flats with a 'U' shaped footprint and an enclosed garden
and parking area to the rear. Nos 28 and 30 Pembroke Road are a pair of semi- detached
houses of similar period. Merrion, Cheriton and Jameston Court, a recently constructed
flatted development, lie to the east of these buildings and are large modern blocks, which
despite some limited tree planting to the front, are considered to dominate the streetscape
of the immediate area. The site is bounded to the west by an office block. Beyond this
block, King's Lodge, a former office building now converted into apartments, occupies a
prominent position at the southern end of Ruislip High Street. The remainder of Pembroke
Road is predominantly residential, suburban and spacious in character, comprising mainly
1930s detached and semi detached houses, and also a number of bungalows, mostly with
hipped roofs, mainly set in generous gardens. A group of bungalows lie directly opposite
the proposal site.

The site is located on the edge of the Ruislip Town Centre and lies at the south-eastern
entrance to the Ruislip Village Conservation Area. It backs onto the forecourt area of Ruislip
Station and is also close to Ruislip Signal box, both are grade Il listed buildings.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Erection of 3, part 2, part 3 storey blocks with accommodation in the roof space, to provide
61 residential units, comprising 25 one bedroom, 27 two bedroom, 8 three bedroom
apartments and one 4 bedroom house, together with construction of a new access,
associated parking and landscaping, involving demolition of existing buildings and stopping
up of existing vehicular access.

The proposal seeks to provide a total of 61 residential units comprising 25 one bedroom,

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 12



27 two bedroom, 8 three bedroom apartments and one 4 bedroom house, in 3 separate
buildings, separated by a central vehicular and pedestrian access way off Pembroke Road.

Block A comprising 14 flats which is part 2, part 3 storey, with accommodation in the roof
space is located adjacent to Merrion Court to the east and would front Pembroke Road.
This block would be 17 metres wide and be set back approximately 10 metres from the
road frontage. The proposed 4 bedroom house woud be attached to the eastern side of the
block, adjacent to the boundary with Merrion Court.

Block B comprising 25 flats which is 3 storeys, with accommodation in the roof space is
located and would front Pembroke Road. This block would be 18 metres wide and be set
back approximately 11 metres from the road frontage.

Block C comprising 21 flats which is part 2, part 3 storey, with accommodation in the roof
space is located to the rear of Block B. This block would be 17 metres wide and be set
back approximately 8metres and 16.5metres from the eastern southern boundaries
respectively.

The remainder of the site behind block A, to the west of and between Blocks B and C
would be set aside for as amenity space, including a children's play area, site access and
surface level parking for 48 vehicles. This parking also continues to the rear of block C.

The proposal will involve the demolition of all the existing buildings on the site.

The application is supported by a number of reports that assess the impact of the
proposal. A summary and some key conclusions from these reports are provided below:

- Planning Statement

The statement describes the development and provides a policy context and planning
assessment for the proposal. The statement concludes that the proposal is well
conceived, robust and in accordance with the proper planning of the area.

- Design and Access Statement

This report outlines the context for the development and provides a justification for the
design, number of units, layout, scale, landscaping, appearance and access for the
proposed development.

- Arboricultural Method Statement
The statement has been prepared to ensure good practise in the protection of trees during
the construction and post construction phases of the development.

- Renewable Energy Strategy

The sustainability credentials of the scheme are assessed in respect of renewable energy
resources and achieving savings in terms of CO2. The assessment concludes that the
use of Photo Voltaic panels is the preferred option for renewable energy technology.

-Ecological Scoping Survey
The report summarises the findings of a walk over survey, desk study and protected
species assessment. Recommendations for protected species surveys have been made.

-‘Archaeological Desk Based Assessment
The assessment considers the impact of the proposed redevelopment on archaeological
assets. The assessment concludes that the site has generally low archaeological potential

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



for as yet undiscovered archaeological assets and that no further archaeological work will
be required.

- Transport Assessment

The assessment considers the accessibility of the site, examines predicted generation
trips by all modes, assesses the effect of the development on surrounding transport
infrastructure and considers surfacing and refuse collection facilities. The assessment
concludes that the development benefits from good levels of public transport accessibility,
that net trip generation can be accommodated on the surrounding transport infrastructure
and that the development through its design, will encourage the use of sustainable modes
of transport.

- Travel Plan

A framework travel plan to be used as a basis from which to agree the terms of any legal
agreement or conditions. It provides a long terms management strategy to deliver
sustainable transport objectives, with the emphasis of reducing reliance of single
occupancy car journeys.

- Noise and Vibration Assessment

The report contains the results of noise and vibration surveys, compares the noise levels
with PPG24 Criteria and details the results of the preliminary external building fabric
assessment. The report concludes that suitable internal noise levels can be achieved with
appropriate sound insulation.

- Landscape Design Statement

This document is provided to illustrate the proposed Landscape Strategy for the external
space, the Design Vision required to develop the Landscape Masterplan and the detailed
design proposals for the hard and soft elements of the external environment. The
Landscape Masterplan will illustrate how the detailed design has used both the existing
landscape context and the aspirations for Lyon Court to provide a framework for the
integration of the new development and how the use, primarily of soft landscape element
forms and appropriate plant species in a range of sizes will enhance both the existing
landscape structure and the proposed development whilst maintaining the overall
landscape context.

-‘Daylight & Sunlight Report

the report assesses the daylight and sunlight aspects of the proposal in relation to
neighbouring properties and the proposed accommodation. the report concludes that there
would be no adverse effects to the daylight and sunlight received to neighbouring buildings
and that the daylighting to the proposed accommodation satisfies relevant BRE criteria and
recommendations.

‘Pre Purchase Flood Risk Assessment

The assessment considers flood related matters, but is not a Flood risk Assessment,
although it contains information that could be used as a basis for such a document. The
report notes that the site is in Flood Zone 1 and is therefore not at risk of flooding form main
rivers.

-Statement of Community Involvement
The document summarises the consultation strategy with statutory and non statutory
consultees, including local politicians, local community groups and neighbours.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



Comment on Relevant Planning History

None.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.10

PT1.39

To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity and the
character of the area.

To seek where appropriate planning obligations to achieve benefits to the
community related to the scale and type of development proposed.

Part 2 Policies:

AM14
AM15
AM7
AM9

BE20
BE21
BE22

BE23
BE24
BE25
BE28
BE38

BE4
EC2
EC5
H12
H4

H5

OE1

OES
R17

New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

Daylight and sunlight considerations.
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.
Modernisation and improvement of industrial and business areas

Shop fronts - design and materials

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments
Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats
Tandem development of backland in residential areas

Mix of housing units

Dwellings suitable for large families

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Siting of noise-sensitive developments

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 15



5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 17th February 2012

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 16



29th February 2012

6. Consultations
External Consultees

This application has been advertised under Article 8 of the Town and Country Planning General
Development Procedure Order 1995 as a Major Development. The application has also been
advertised a development likely to affect the character and appearance of the Ruislip Village
Conservation Area and the setting of the listed buildings known as Ruislip LT Railway Station Signal
Box and Ruislip LT Railway Station. A total of 240 surrounding property owners/occupiers have been
consulted. 9 letters of objection have been received. The issues raised are:

i) Traffic impacts - congestion

ii) disruption during construction

i) Excessive height of proposed blocks

iv) Overlooking from the proposed blocks

v) Loss of privacy

vi) Inadequate parking provision which Will result in on street parking
vii) Loss of trees

ix) Increased pollution

RUISLIP VILLAGE CONSERVATION PANEL
No response.

RUISLIP RESIDENTS' ASSOCIATION

| realise | suggested the view should be taken from the junction of Brickwall Lane and South Drive
but it appears the architect has chosen the most advantageous spot. Attached are views from South
Drive itself and further east along Brtickwall Lane. My concern is that in repeating the mass of
Merrion Court it will create virtually a continuous row of higher buildings which will further change the
character of the area. In addition they may also block out the view of the mature trees on the south
side of the application site.

Ruislip has already suffered from the introduction of too many higher buildings and each one only
creates a further precedent for future applications. | trust that officers will give due consideration to
the impact the current proposal would have on the local skyline when viewed from all angles and not
just those selected by the applicant.

LONDON UNDERGROUND INFRASTRUCTURE
No Objection.

ENGLISH HERITAGE
No Objection.

THAMES WATER
No objection.

NATURAL ENGLAND

No Objection. This proposal does not appear to affect any statutorily protected sites or landscapes,
or have significant impacts on the conservation of soils, nor is the proposal EIA development. It
appears that Natural England has been consulted on this proposal to offer advice on the impact on a
protected species and these issues are covered by standing advice.

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17



DEFENCE ESTATES SAFEGUARDING
The MoD has no safeguarding objections to this proposal.

METROPOLITAN POLICE CRIME PREVENTION OFFICER
No objections subject to the scheme achieving Secure by Design accreditation and the provision of
CCTV to the parking areas.

In addition the following advice is provided:

The scheme needs to incorporate defensible space around the ground floor flats.
Good perimeter treatment around the central one space and LAP.

Details of bin stores, cycle stores should be provided.

Natural surveillance where possible.

Internal Consultees
POLICY AND ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING (PEP)

In land use policy terms they have made an extensive case for the scheme and proposed what
appears to be a reasonable mix of different sized units - which also appear to meet the minimum
space standards in the 2011 London Plan. It is clearly a very high density proposal and the design
character will be for the Specialists Team to advise on. Depending on your views re the amenity
space provided - e.g. is there adequate play space available for children here - it seems acceptable
in policy terms.

You will be assessing the mix of affordable housing proposed plus the S106 requirements (e.g.
towards education costs).

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT

No objections are raised to this proposal. Should planning permission be granted, the following
conditions are recommended:

Road and Rail Traffic Noise exposure - PPG24 assessment

| refer to the Noise and Vibration Assessment undertaken by Paragon Acoustic Consultants
Reference 2388 _NVA_1 for the applicant. Chapter 7.0 shows the predicted site-wide noise levels
across the site, placing the site in NEC C. Based on the results of the noise assessment | am
satisfied that the requirements of the Borough's Noise SPD can be met using a combination of noise
mitigation measures.

It is therefore recommended the following condition be applied to ensure that the proposed
development will satisfy the requirements of the Borough s Noise SPD, Section 5, Table 2;

Condition 1 Road and rail traffic noise

N1 Development shall not begin until a scheme for protecting the proposed development from road
and rail traffic noise has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The
noise protection scheme shall meet acceptable noise design criteria both indoors and outdoors. The
scheme shall include such combination of measures as may be approved by the LPA. The scheme
shall thereafter be retained and operated in its approved form for so long as the use hereby
permitted remains on the site.

Condition 2 Soil importation

All soils used for gardens and/or landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of contamination.
Site derived soils and imported soils shall be tested for chemical contamination. The results of this

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 18



testing shall be made available at the request of the Local Planning Authority.

S106 OFFICER
the following broad Section 106 Heads of Terms would be
pursued by the Council at that time:

Affordable Housing: £40,000 payment in Lieu

Education: £14,225

Health: £14,835.40

Construction Training: £47,326.09

Public Realm: £25,000

Libraries: £2,233.99

Project Management and Monitoring Fee: £5,181.02

Ecology: £25,000

Highways: Any and all highways works to be undertaken at the owners expense.

ACCESS OFFICER
No objection.

WASTE MANAGER
No objection.

URBAN DESIGN AND CONSERVATION OFFICER
Initial comments:

i) footprint/building line now considered appropriate

ii) frontage blocks better in terms of height, block A has odd proportions re its fenestration, sketch
revisions to be provided for further discussion. Design of Block B acceptable.

iii) need for gates to the frontage to be reassessed

iv) angle of roofs across site discussed, lower angle to reduce bulk suggested- applicants

v) unwilling to do this because of loss of floor area

vi) requirement for 2 floors within part of the roof form queried, particularly in the rear block, which
will be the most visible from the station forecourt, again the applicant was unwilling to lose any
further accommodation on site. The removal of the second tier of dormers as previously proposed,
is however, an improvement.

vii) further planting to break up potentially large areas of hard-surface requested, if not possible,
additional tree planting along boundary of play area to be incorporated

viii) PVs on roofs noted on drawings but not on Energy Statement, which proposes GSHPs. The roof
level PVs will be omitted.

ix) more planting to be incorporated next to the parking area adjacent to Block B to protect the
privacy/outlook from the living area of Plot BS

x) the possibility of adding more tree screening along the western boundary was discussed, but it
was felt that the trees on the adjacent site were adequate to screen / soften the boundary.

Final Comments:
The issues have been addressed satisfactorily. No objection raised.

SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER
No objection subject to a £25,000 S106 contribution for offsite ecology improvements.

TREE AND LANDSCAPE OFFICER
Concern has been raised that the propossed site access would damage the roots of the street tree
directly adjoining this propsoed access.

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 19



Officer Comment: Officer's acknowledge that there is a risk of damage to the tree, however it is
noted that the street tree is not subject to a TPO and is not located in a conservation area. On
balance it is considered that the overall benefits of the development would outweigh the impact of
any damage of the tree, should this occur. It is also considered that should damage occur a
replacement tree could be provided through a S106 aggreement.

HIGHWAY ENGINEER

Pembroke Road is a Classified Road and is designated as Local Distributor Road within the
Council's UDP. It is a busy road and is an important east-west route providing connection between
Ruislip and Eastcote and connections between London Distributor Road and Local Distributor
Roads and the wider network. The site is located close to Ruislip Station and Ruislip High Street.

A previous planning application on this site proposing 71 units was recommended for refusal on
highways ground. The developer has revised the scheme to try to overcome the Council's concerns

There are single yellow line road markings along the northern side of Pembroke Road. On the
southern side of Pembroke Road there are single yellow line road markings between the signal
controlled junction with West End Road to the west and the proposed access point. The single
yellow lines restrict parking between 8am and 6:30pm Monday to Saturday.

On-street parking takes place east of the proposed access and is congested. Parking restrictions
proposed in WSP s drg no. 1250/SK/29 Rev A should be secured through s106/s278 agreement
and conditions should be applied to achieved 2.4mx43m sightlines and 2.4mx2.4m pedestrian
visibility splays on both sides of the access points.

South of proposed main vehicular access points, two trees fall within the required sightlines, one of
which is immediately adjacent to the proposed access. The access layout is constrained; as a
result swept paths for refuse vehicles and large delivery vehicles rely upon entering the lane with
opposing traffic when exiting the site on to Pembroke Road. Considering the type and busy nature of
Pembroke Road, such manoeuvres are not normally considered acceptable, however given the site
constraints and considering that vehicles will be waiting on the give way at the access point before
entering Pembroke Road, which is likely to reduce the risk of exiting vehicles colliding with opposing
traffic and/or having a prejudicial effect on free flow of traffic. The access arrangements shown on
WSP S drg no. 1250/SK/33 Rev B should be secured through s106/s278 agreement.

The access arrangements shown on WSP S drg no. 1250/SK/33 Rev B should be secured through
s106/s278 agreement.

A shared surface arrangement is proposed within the development site, along with entrance gates
10.5 from the back of the footway, refuse & recycles storage, 48 car parking spaces including 7
disabled space, and cycle parking.

Car parking surveys at two nearby residential sites; Kings Lodge (94 units, parking provision c.0.8
per unit) and Merrion Court Site Inc. Cheriton Lodge & Jameston Lodge (83 units, parking provision
c.0.7 per unit) show parking occupation of ¢.65.8% and c.67.5% respectively. The development
proposes parking @ c.0.8 per unit. Considering the site is located close to Ruislip tube station,
availability of bus services nearby, and the results of the parking surveys, the proposed parking
provision is considered acceptable subject to a satisfactory parking allocation plan, which should be
secured through a suitable planning condition.

The development is not considered to result in a significant impact on the capacity of the highway
network.

Subject to the above issues being covered through suitable planning conditions, no objection is

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 20



raised on the highways aspect of the application.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The site is located within a Developed Area as designated in the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan. Flatted residential redevelopment is considered appropriate within the
developed area, subject to compliance with the various policies of the UDP.

No objection would be raised to the principle of redevelopment of Lyon Court element of the
site for a more intensive flatted development, subject to compliance with the various
policies of the UDP. This part of the site is considered to be suitable for residential
redevelopment by virtue of its location within a predominantly residential area and its close
proximity to the Ruislip Town Centre.

However, the proposal includes the redevelopment of two semi detached properties (28-30
Pembroke Road). The inclusion of these properties within the development site introduces
the following policy considerations:

Loss of Residential Gardens:

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), which has replaced PPS3, states that
'Local Planning Authorities should consider setting out policies to resist inappropriate
development in resdential gardens, for example where development would cause harm to
the local area'.

Furthermore, Policy 3.5 of the London Plan (July 2011) states that 'Housing developments
should be of the highest quality internally, externally and in relation to their context and to
the wider environment, taking account of strategic policies in this Plan to protect and
enhance London s residential environment and attractiveness as a place to live. Boroughs
may in their LDFs introduce a presumption against development on back gardens or other
private residential gardens where this can be locally justified.'

The NPPF and the London Plan (2011), do not state that development on previously
undeveloped land, including back gardens, will never be acceptable. The alteration to the
definition of 'previously developed land' means that Local Planning Authorities must
consider all other relevant material planning considerations in greater detail to assess
whether or not such considerations outweigh the loss of the private residential garden.

At present the two dwellings at No's 28 & 30 Pembroke Road and their respective gardens
are sandwiched between two blocks of flats, Merrion and Lyon Courts. This section of
Pembroke Road is characterised by large flatted developments, with these two storey
dwellinghouses situated in the midst of these larger developments. Given this, it is
considered that the demolition of these two houses and the loss of their gardens causes
no demonstrable harm to the local area. The loss of these houses is outweighed by the
contribution the development would make toward achieving housing targets in the borough.
It is therefore considered that the principle of the proposed residential development
accords with the National Planning Policy Framework and policy 3.5 of the London Plan
(July 2011).
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan advises that Boroughs should ensure that development
proposals achieve the highest possible intensity of use compatible with local context and

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



the site's public transport accessibility. The London Plan provides a density matrix to
establish a strategic framework for appropriate densities at different locations.

The site has a PTAL of 4. Taking into account these parameters, the London Plan density
matrix recommends a density range between 70 to 260 u/ha and 200 to 700 hr/ha for
flatted developments within urban environments.

The scheme provides for a residential density of 133 u/ha or 343 hr/ha, at an average of
2.75 hr/unit. The proposal therefore falls within the density parameters of the London Plan.

Unit Mix

Saved Policies H4 and H5 seek to ensure a practicable mix of housing units are provided
within residential schemes. One and two bedroom developments are encouraged within
town centres, while larger family units are promoted elsewhere.

A mixture of 1, 2 and 3 bedroom units is proposed and this mix of units is considered
appropriate for the private housing.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Archaeology

Policy BE3 states that the applicant will be expected to have properly assessed and
planned for the archaeological implications of their proposal. Proposals which destroy
important remains will not be permitted. The site does not fall within an Archaeological
Priority Area.

An Archaeological Desk Based Assessment has been submitted in support of the
application. The assessment considers the impact of the proposed redevelopment on
archaeological assets and concludes that the site has generally low archaeological
potential for as yet undiscovered archeological assets and that no further archaeological
work will be required.

Conservation Area

Policy BE4 requires any new development within or on the fringes of a Conservation Area
to preserve or enhance those features that contribute to its special architectural and visual
qualities, and to make a positive contribution to the character or appearance of the
conservation area.

The Urban Design and Conservation Officer notes that the large buildings within this area,
including the recently constructed Merrion, Cheriton and Jameston Court to the east,
predate the designation of the southern extension of the Ruislip Village Conservation Area,
and should therefore not be considered as a precedent for similar new buildings in this
sensitive location on the edge of the conservation area.

The proposed buildings are between three and five storeys tall and have large footprints in
comparison with the traditional houses on the street frontage opposite and furter to the
east. Although, Ruislip Village Conservation Area is located to the north and west of the
site, given the distance and intervening developement between, it is not considered that the
proposed development would have a direct impact on the character of the adjoining
Conservation Area, in compliance with Saved Policy BE4 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan.

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

Listed Buildings

Policy BE10 states that development proposals should not be detrimental to the setting of
listed buildings. This includes views to listed buildings (i.e., the listed Ruislip Station located
to the southwest of the site and the listed signal box to the south). Any development would
therefore be expected to address these matters.

The proposal has been reduced in height form the previous scheme, and has included
planting to create a better setting for the listed building. It is therefore considered that the
proposal would not have a detrimental impact on the setting of the listed station, in
accordance with Saved Policy BE10 of the UDP.

Airport safeguarding

There are no airport safeguarding issues related to this development.
Impact on the green belt

There are no Green Belt issues associated with this site.
Environmental Impact

Covered under other sections of the report.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Saved Policies BE13 and BE19 seek to ensure that new development complements or
improves the character and amenity of the area, whilst Policy BE38 seeks the retention of
topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting and landscaping in
development proposals. Policy BE35 requires developments adjacent to or visible from
major rail connections to be of a high standard of design, layout and landscape, and that
where the opportunity arises, important local landmarks are opened up from these
transport corridors. The scale, bulk and siting of buildings are key determinants in ensuring
that the amenity and character of established residential areas are not compromised by
new development.

London Plan Policy 7.1 sets out a series of overarching design principles for development
in London and policy 7.6 seeks to promote world-class, high quality design and design-led
change in key locations. In addition to Chapter 7, London Plan policies relating to density
(3.4) and sustainable design and construction (5.3) are also relevant.

The proposals need to be considered with regard to the impact on Pembroke Road. This is
a predominantly residential street, with a strong suburban character over most of its length.
It comprises mainly detached and semi-detached two storey properties, although these are
interspersed with single storey bungalows. The majority of the properties date from the
1930's and of are varied architectural styles typical of this period.

The wider context of the site includes the flatted developments in the town centres of
Ruislip and Ruislip Manor, the flats at Lyon Court (part of the development site) and the
flats at Nos. 32-46 Pembroke Road. This latter development has been sited as a precedent
for the proposed scheme. However, it is considered that their impact on Pembroke Road is
somewhat limited, due to the abundance of trees in the street and some of the front
gardens. It is noted that the Inspector in refusing the scheme for flatted development at 55,
57 and 59 Pembroke Road, (Appeal Ref: APP/R5510/A/08/2072077) was of the opinion
that the erection of the flats at Nos 32-46 Pembroke Road, adjacent to the development
site, has not changed the character of Pembroke Road in its entirety. A mix of single storey
detached bungalows and two storey detached and semi-detached houses still dominate
the street scene.

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



It is clear that when looking at Pembroke Road the larger flatted development is close to
the town centre and the more spacious residential character is further down Pembroke
Road. In this regard this site (sandwiched between two flatted blocks) is less sensitive than
further down Pembroke Road to the impacts of flatted developments. It should also be
noted that this part of Pembroke Road has a higher Public Transport Accessibility Level
(PTAL).

The Urban Design Officer raises no objections to the scale, height and massing of the
proposed buildings. It is considered that the proposed buildings at two stories would not
appear unduly prominent within the street scene and would be compatible with the scale of
surrounding residential development. No objections are raised to the siting of the play area

The external design of the buildings and proposed building materials, such as facing bricks,
render, and tiled roofs maintain a balanced and appropriate design response with regard to
the scale and context of the site. It is considered that a condition should be imposed on any
permission requiring the submission of external materials details prior to the
commencement of works.

Subject to compliance with this condition, it is considered that the scheme is compliant
with Policies BE13, BE19 and BE21 of the UDP, relevant London Plan policies and design
guidance.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

In relation to outlook, Saved Policy BE21 requires new residential developments to be
designed to protect the outlook of adjoining residents. The design guide 'Residential
Layouts' advises that for two or more storey buildings, adequate distance should be
maintained to avoid over dominance. A minimum distance of 15m is required, although this
distance will be dependent on the extent and bulk of the buildings.

The proposal therefore complies with the guidance and is not considered to result in an
over dominant form of development which would detract from the amenities of
neighbouring occupiers, in compliance with Policy BE21 of the UDP.

Policy BE24 states that the design of new buildings should protect the privacy of occupiers
and their neighbours. It is not considered that there would be a loss of privacy to adjoining
occupiers, in accordance with Policy BE24 of the UDP Saved Policies (September 2007)
and relevant design guidance.

In relation to sunlight, Policy BE20 of the UDP seeks to ensure that buildings are laid out to
provide adequate sunlight and preserve the amenity of existing houses. It is not considered
that there would be a material loss of day or sunlight to neighbouring properties, as the
proposed buildings would be orientated or sited a sufficient distance away from adjoining
properties.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Policy BE23 of the UDP requires the provision of external amenity space, sufficient to
protect the amenity of the occupants of the proposed and surrounding buildings and which
is usable in terms of its shape and siting. The Council's SPD Residential Layouts specifies
amenity space standards for flats.

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement (HDAS) Supplementary Planning Document
- Residential layouts, suggests that the following shared amenity space for flats and
maisonettes is provided:

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 24



1 bedroom flat - 20m2 per flat

2 bedroom flat - 25m2 per flat

3+ bedroom flat - 30m2 per flat

Based on the current accommodation schedule this would equate to a total of 1,425m2 of
shared and private amenity space for 61 dwellings.

The current development proposal provides 1,425m2 of useable amenity space including
70m2 of play space provision. The amenity space provided is considered acceptable, in
compliance with the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement (HDAS) Residential
Layouts and Saved Policy BE23 of the UDP.

In terms of floor area each of the 1,2 and 3 bedroom units meets the minimum
requirements as set out in the London Plan (July 2011).

Each of the units benefit from a reasonable level of privacy, outlook and light and overall, it
is considered that good environmental conditions can be provided for future occupiers in
compliance with relevant UDP saved policies and supplementary design guidance.

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Traffic Generation

The applicant has submitted a Transport Assessment to consider the traffic impacts on the
existing road capacity. It demostrates that the level of increase in peak hour traffic resulting
from the proposed development can be accommodated on Pembroke Road. The Highway
Engineer therefore raises no objections on traffic generation grounds.

Parking

The application proposes a total of 48 parking spaces, including 10% of these spaces for
people with a disability. This equates to 0.8 spaces per unit. The Council's standards allow
for a maximum provision of 1.5 spaces per residential unit, a total of 106.5 spaces in this
case. The site has a PTAL rating of 4 and the Council's Highways Engineer has raised no
objection to the level of car parking and has confirmed that all parking spaces would be of
sufficient dimensions and usable. As such, it is considered that the application complies
with UDP Saved Policies AM14 and AM15.

In addition, the submitted plans indicate that secure cycle storage can be provided for 60
cycles, in the form of cycle stores wihhin the demise of each block. The scheme would be
in accordance with the Council's standards and Saved Policy AM9 of the UDP.

Access

The Highways Engineer advises that the access to the site is now sufficiently wide to allow
vehicles to enter and exit the site without prejudicing the free flow of traffic.

In light of the above considerations it is conisdered that the development would not give rise
to conditions prejudicial to free flow of traffic and highway and pedestrian safety. The
development therefore accords with Policy AM7 of the Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

7.11 Urban design, access and security

These issues have been dealt with elsewhere in the report.
7.12 Disabled access

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 25



HDAS was adopted on the 20th December 2005 and requires all new residential units to be
built to lifetime home standards and 10% of units designed to wheelchair accessible
standards. Further guidance is also provided on floor space standards for new residential
development to ensure sound environmental conditions are provided on site. As a guide,
the recommended minimum standard for 1 bedroom flats is 50sq. m and 63sg. m for 2
bedroom flats. Where balconies are provided, the floor space of the balconies can be
deducted from these standards, up to a maximum of 5sg. metres. Additional floorspace
would be required for wheelchair units.

The floor plans indicate that the development achieves HDAS recommended floor space
standards and that Lifetime Home Standards could be met for these flats in terms of size.

The Access Officer is satisfied with the level of facilities provided subject to minor revisions
to the internal layout of the units to ensure full compliance with all 16 Lifetime Home
standards (as relevant) and Wheelchair Home Standards for 6 of the units. Subject to a
condition to ensure compliance, it is considered that the scheme accords with the aims of
Policies 3.4 and 7.2 of the London Plan July 2011, the Hillingdon Design and Access
Statement (HDAS) Accessible Hillingdon and Policy AM15 of the UDP.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

The London Plan sets the policy framework for affordable housing delivery in London.
Policy 3A.10 and 3A.11 requires that boroughs should seek the maximum reasonable
amount of affordable housing when negotiating on individual private residential and mix-use
schemes, having regard to their affordable housing targets.

The Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (supplementary planning
guidance) adopted in July 2008 replaces the previous Supplementary Planning Guidance
and updates the information and requirements of the Affordable Housing supplementary
planning guidance adopted in May 2006. Chapter 5 on Affordable Housing from the
Planning Obligations supplementary planning guidance paragraph 5.14 states, the council
will always seek the provision of affordable housing on-site except in exceptional
circumstances. The council will consider affordable housing tenure mix on a site by site
basis with reference to housing needs, financial viability and/or the London Plan as
appropriate.

Paragraph 5.22 states that the Council will seek the maximum reasonable amount of
affordable housing when negotiating on individual private residential and mixed use
schemes. The LDF policy acknowledges a balance between the need for affordable
housing that the economic viability of private housing developments. Where less than 50%
affordable housing is proposed, a justification for the departure from the London Plan and
Policy CP5A will be required, together with a financial viability appraisal to demonstrate that
the maximum affordable housing provision is being delivered on site.

The application exceeds the threshold of 10 units and above, therefore affordable housing
provision by way of a S106 Legal Agreement is required. A Financial Viability Assessment
(FVA) has been provided. This has confirmed that the scheme is not capable of providing
on site affordable housing, but could provide a contribution of £40,000 towards provision
elsewhere. This level of contribution has been varified by a third party assessor and is
therefore considered acceptable.

7.14 Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

ECOLOGY

Saved Policy EC2 of the UDP seeks the promotion of nature conservation interests. Saved

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 26



policy EC5 of the UDP seeks the retention of features, enhancements and creation of new
habitats. Policy 3D.12 of the London Plan states that the planning of new development and
regeneration should have regard to nature conservation and biodiversity and opportunities
should be taken to achieve positive gains for conservation through the form and design of
development.

The applicant submitted an Ecology Survey which suggested that the scrub area on the
site could contain protected species, although an initial survey conducted by the applicant's
Ecologist found no protected species. It was recomeneded that further surveys be carried
out. However the applicant cleared the land beofre any further surveys had been
conducted.

No objections have been received from Natural England, however the Council's
Sustainability officer has indicated that a contibution should be made towards offsite
ecological enhancements. Subiject to this contribution and a condition to secure some on
site ecological enhancement as recommended within the submitted Ecology survey the
development is considered to comply with Policy EC2.

LANDSCAPE ISSUES

Policy BE38 of the Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies states, amongst other things
that development proposals will be expected to retain and utilise topographical and
landscape features of merit.

The Council's Trees and Landscape Officer has raised no concerns regarding the
landscape layout within the development site itself, which would provide for an appropriate
mix of hard and soft landscaping supplemented by new tree planting throughout the
development.

The Council's Trees and Landscape Officer has however raised concern that the proposed
access point would result in works within the root protection area of a street tree, which
may result in damage to the roots of this street tree.

The possibility of damage to this street tree is noted, however the street tree is not subject
to a Tree Preservation Order or located within a Conservation Area. On balance it is
considered that the overall benefits of the development would outweight the impact of any
damage to the tree were this to occur. The indicative landscaping details also indicate the
provision of additional new tree planting (6 no.) on the front boundary of the site and the
legal agreement requires protection of an existing street during construction or a
replacement street tree should such damage occur, thereby ensuring that there would be
no overall loss of soft landscaping within the street scene as a result of the development.
7.15 Sustainable waste management

Refuse is provided in two refuse stores at ground floor level in each of the buildings. The
level of waste and recyclign provision is acceptable and vehicle tracking diagrams have
been submitted demonstrating that the development can be adequately service by refuse
vehicles.

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policies within Chapter 5 of the London Plan require developments to provide for
reductions in carbon emissions, including a reduction of 25% in carbon emissions, in line
with Code for sustainable Homes Level 4.

The application is supported by an assessment which indicates that the development has

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



been designed to achieve Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes. No objections are
raised to the details submitted.

Subiject to an appropriate condition to secure this implementation within the final design the
scheme will comply with adopted policy.
7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

There are no specific flooding or drainage issues associated with this application.
However, in the event that this application is approved, it is recommended that a
sustainable urban drainage condition be imposed.

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

The application site is on a busy high road. It is therefore reasonable to expect that traffic
noise is likely to be high enough to affect the residential amenities of future occupiers.
Although the site falls within NEC B as defined in PPG24, it is considered that flatted
development is acceptable in principle, subject to adequate sound insulation.

The acoustic assessment contains recommendations which, if implemented, would
reduce noise to levels that comply with reasonable standards of comfort, as defined in
British Standard BS 8233:1999 'Sound insulation and noise reduction for buildings - Code
of Practice'. It is considered that the issue of sound insulation can be addressed by the
imposition of suitable conditions, as suggested by the Council's Environmental Protection
Unit. Subject to compliance with these conditions, it is considered that the scheme would
be in compliance with Saved Policy OE5 of the UDP.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

The main issues raised regarding the scale and bulk of the development, traffic congestion
and parking have been dealt with in the main body of the report.

General construction impacts, such as dust and noise, are dealt with under separate
legislation and an informative is attached reminding the applicant of these requirements.
7.20 Planning Obligations

Policy R17 of the Hillingdon UDP is concerned with securing planning obligations to
supplement the provision recreation open space, facilities to support arts, cultural and
entertainment activities, and other community, social and education facilities through
planning obligations in conjunction with other development proposals. The following Heads
of Terms are sought:

Affordable Housing: £40,000 payment in Lieu

Education: £14,225

Health: £14,835.40

Construction Training: £47,326.09

Public Realm: £25,000

Libraries: £2,233.99

Project Management and Monitoring Fee: £5,181.02

Ecology: £25,000

Highways: Any and all highways works to be undertaken at the owners expense.

Street Tree: Protection of the street tree and making good of drainage.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

There are no enforcement issues associated with this site.
7.22 Other Issues

Officers did initally advise the applicant that the 10% rule for flatted developments might be
breached by the scheme. By providing a new 5 bed house the applicant has overcome this

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



issue.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislation,
regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to make an
informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion,
national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

For the reasons provided throughout this report, the application is considered to be
appropriate and acceptable and to comply with the relevant policies and planning guidance
for the site. Therefore, the application is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

National Planning Policy Framework

Hillingdon Unitary development Plan Saved Policies (Spetember 2007)
The London Plan July 2011

Representations

Contact Officer: Matt Kolaszewski Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



Kings Lodge

~-"Ruislip Station
(LT)

El Sub Sta

Car Park

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

Lyon Court and
28 - 30 Pembroke Road

Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Planning Application Ref: Scale
66985/APP/2011/3049 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date

North Page 30

May
2012

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

4

HILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda ltem 7

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address IMADA 12 KADUNA CLOSE EASTCOTE

Development: Erection of a first floor side extension to provide 2 two-bedroom flats with
associated parking and amenity space

LBH Ref Nos: 52580/APP/2011/2033

Drawing Nos: Design & Access Statement Received 27th October 2011
Tree Report
1
5 Received 27th October 2011
2
3
4
Flood Risk Assessment

Date Plans Received: 18/08/2011 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 26/08/2011
1. SUMMARY

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a first floor extension to provide two, 2
bedroom self-contained flats. The application follows the dismissal of appeal reference
APP/R5510/A/11/2151121 in respect of application 52580/APP/2010/2293 for an identical
proposal.

The Inspector concluded that the application was acceptable insofar as it would provide
adequate living conditions for future occupiers and that it would not harm the character
and appearance of the conservation area. However, the Inspector concluded that the
proposal would not make adequate provision for the additional educational needs it would
generate.

The revised application confirms agreement to the payment of financial contributions
towards education by way of a Section 106 agreement. However, the Environment Agency
have raised objection in relation to this application on the grounds that if the proposal had
passed the sequential test, it fails to make provision for a safe access/egress from the
site in times of flood. The applicant has failed to provide evidence of a site search
demonstrating that this is the only suitable site for residential development and has not
therefore passed the sequential test. As such the proposal is contrary to Policy OE7 of the
Hillingdon UDP.

2. RECOMMENDATION

The application is the subject of an appeal against non-determination within the
statutory time frame and thus members are requested to determine that the
application would have been refused had an appeal not been lodged for the
reason set out below.

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The applicant has not provided evidence of a site search demonstrating that this is the
only suitable site and has not therefore passed the sequential test. Furthermore, the

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 31



proposed development does not have a safe means of access and/or egress in the event
of flooding. Consequently, the application is contrary to the advice contained within the
National Planning Policy Framework, Policy 5.12 of the London Plan (2011) and Policy
OEY7 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

This application relates to the Imada Health Club building located on the south east side of
Kaduna Close at the end of the cul de sac. The application property comprises a part
single, part two storey detached building located to the south east west of the Eastcote
tennis clubhouse, with associated car parking spaces immediately to the north west and
south west of the building. The building's frontage is on the north west side. The main
entrance is located in the single storey element of the building and comprises a projecting
front porch extension. To the north east of the application site lies tennis courts associated
with the tennis club, with a residential block, 6 to 10 Kaduna Close, beyond. To the south
west lies the rear gardens of 19 and 20 Sutton Close, both semi-detached houses. The
surrounding area is residential in character and appearance and the application site lies
within the Eastcote Village Conservation Area, as identified in the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007). The application site is located within
Flood Zone 3a.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a first floor extension over the existing
single storey element to the front of the building. The proposed extension would follow the
footprint of the single storey element and would measure 14.5m wide along the north west
(front) elevation, 13.1m deep, and finished with a gable end ridged roof 6.8m high at eaves
level, and 10m high at ridge level, projecting 3m above the existing two storey element of
the building. A front gable is proposed above the front porch entrance, replacing the canopy
roof. It would measure 4.8m wide, and finished with a ridged roof set 0.7m below the new
roof ridge.

The proposed extension would provide two, 2 bedroom self-contained flats. Each flat would
measure approximately 76sq.m and would provide a living/dining/kitchen room, two
bedrooms and a bathroom. First floor windows are proposed on all elevations and the
proposed flats would be accessed from the main entrance to the health centre.

An external roof terrace to form private amenity space is proposed over part of the flat roof
of the two storey element, immediately to the south of the proposed extension. This area
measures approximately 35sq.m and would be secured by 1m high railings. An additional
external private amenity space, some 47sq.m in size, 2 parking spaces and cycle stands
are proposed to the rear of the curtilage of the building.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

52580/APP/2010/2293 Imada 12 Kaduna Close Eastcote

Erection of a first floor side extension to provide 2 two-bedroom flats with associated parking anc
amenity space.

Decision: 28-04-2011 Refused Appeal: 02-08-2011 Dismissed

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 32



Comment on Relevant Planning History
52580/APP/2010/2293 was refused for an identical application for the following reasons:

1. The proposed first floor extension, by reason of its overall size, bulk and scale, would
represent an overdominant and visually intrusive form of development which would fail to
harmonise with the character and appearance of the original building. The proposal would
therefore have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the immediate
area and the Eastcote Village Conservation Area, contrary to policies BE4, BE13, BE15
and BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

2. The proposal fails to provide adequate usable amenity space for the 2 two-bedroom
flats. As such, the proposal would fail to provide an appropriate level of residential amenity
for future occupiers, contrary to policy BE23 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007), policy 4B.1 of the London Plan (February 2008)
and paragraph 4.15 of the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: Residential
Layouts.

3. The site is located within the Eastcote Village Conservation Area and there is a mature
Oak and a number of smaller trees located to the rear of the site. These trees contribute to
the appearance of the street scene and this part of the Eastcote Village Conservation Area.
The proposed external amenity space would be severely affected by shade and dominated
by the trees, particularly the Oak. This is considered to put undue pressure to heavily prune
/ fell the Oak, which would be detrimental to the visual amenity and wooded character of
this part of the Eastcote Village Conservation Area, contrary to policies BE4, BE13 and
BE38 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September
2007).

4. The proposed unit adjacent to the tennis courts would be incompatible with the
continued operation of the tennis club, in particular it would be adversely affected by the
floodlighting serving the tennis courts. As such, the unit would not benefit from an
acceptable standard of residential amenity, contrary to policy OE1 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

5. The development is likely to give rise to a significant number of children of school age
that would require additional educational provisions, due to the shortfall of places in schools
serving the area. Given that a legal agreement or unilateral undertaking has not been
offered to address this issue, the proposal is considered to be contrary to Policy R17 of the
Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007) and the
Council's Planning Obligations, Supplementary Planning Document (July 2008).

6. The proposals fail to provide an assessment of the existing parking demand for the car
park, on-street parking stress and swept paths for refuse vehicles. In the absence of
information, the proposals are considered to have inadequate car parking, unsatisfactory
layout for refuse vehicles and are likely to lead to situations detrimental highway and
pedestrian safety contrary to the Council's Policies AM7 and AM14 of the UDP.

This application was dismissed at appeal. The Insector concluded that the application was
acceptable insofar as it would provide adequate living conditions for future occupiers and it
would not harm the character and appearance of the conservation area. However the
Inspector concluded that the proposal would not make adequate provision for the additional
educational needs it would generate.

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



4, Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

LPP 3.3 (2011) Increasing housing supply

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 5.12 (2011) Flood risk management

LPP 7.2 (2011) An inclusive environment

AM4 Safeguarded road proposals - schemes shown on Proposals Map

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BES New development within areas of special local character

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

H7 Conversion of residential properties into a number of units

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection measure:

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 28th September 2011
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations

External Consultees
42 neighbours were consulted by letter dated 31.8.11. A site notice was displayed on site on 31.8.1°

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 34



4 individual letters of objection and a petition of objection have been received. The concerns relate
to:

1. Detrimental impact on Conservation Area
2. Detrimental impact on sewer

3. Insufficient parking

4. Insufficient open space

5. Site located within flood zone 3.

Thames Water:

Thames Water would advise that with regard to sewerage infrastructure we would not have any
objection to the above planning application. With regard to water supply, this comes within the area
covered by the Veolia Water Company.

Eascote Village Conservation Area Advisory Committee:

There are many anomalies to take into consideration when determining this resubmission. The most
incomprehensible being the Planning Inspector's report APP/R5510/A/11/2151121/NWF dated 2nd
August 2011. The only reason given for the appeal being dismissed is that the proposal would not
make adequate provision for the additional educational needs. The many reasons put forward in the
Officer's report, which were upheld by the North Planning Committee were disregarded. As was the
additional reason for refusal, as set out at the NPC 28th April 2011. From the minutes of the Meeting
of the North Planning Committee 28th April 2011.

The proposals fail to provide an assessment of the existing parking demand for the car park, on-
street parking stress and swept paths for refuse vehicles. In the absence of information, the
proposals are considered to have inadequate car parking, unsatisfactory layout for refuse vehicles
and are likely to lead tosituations detrimental to highway and pedestrian safety contrary to the
Council's Policies AM7 and AM14 of the UDP. The Inspector was incorrect in point 18 of the report,
but | note that the Council has raised no objections on this matter and that it considers the proposal
to be in accordance with its policies. It would appear that the Inspector did not read the decision
notice. None of the assessments called for in the reason set above have been submitted with this
application, these should be requested before determination of this application. These are:

- Inadequate provision for refuse vehicles.

- No information provided about existing demand for the Car Park

- No information on spare capacity of car park and on-street parking which
would lead to

- Inadequate car parking for the proposed development.

It must also be noted, that there are banqueting facilities advertised at these premises, seating for
160 persons. Designated car parking available for staff, users of the sports facilities, restaurant and
proposed new residents are 16 spaces. There would appear to be an inadequate supply of parking
spaces currently.

The submitted Design and Access Statement is basically the same as the previous submission.
Disposal of refuse for the proposed flats is by way of use of the existing refuse/recycling enclose.
The report from Waste management states the waste from the new build would need to be
presented separately from the commercial waste generated by the restaurant.

There has not been any effort to address this matter within the current application. Because of the
evident lack of space, the location of the secure cycle store should be called for. If this is to be
situated within the proposed shared amenity space, this will reduce the size of amenity space still

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 35



further.[ This report was requested in the Officer's report but has not been submitted]

Point 6 of the Inspector's report needs to be revisited, the Inspector states that there is not any light
spillage from the Floodlights to affect the proposed dwellings. Which is in direct opposition to the
Officer's report. The floodlighting is clearly not designed to prevent light spillage into the area
proposed for the first floor flats. There have been changes to the boundary treatments and the
buildings are clearly visible from Joel Street. This does make an impact upon the Conservation Aree

The decision of the Planning Inspector to overturn the LPA decision, which was based upon the
UDP and other SPD's should not be allowed to influence the determination of this current
application.

OFFICER COMMENT: The recent appeal decision is a material consideration. The Inspector
accepted the princiael and detail of the application. However, he dismissed the appeal on the
grounds of the failure to address the provision of educational facilities created by the development.

Eascote Tennis Club:

Proposed Flats Amenity Space: In our view shared roof top amenity space, however convenient,
cannot be classed as a suitable amenity. Its proximity to and visibility from the tennis courts means i
lacks any privacy. The application does not therefore include adequate useable amenity space. The
space proposed also overlooks the adjacent properties in Kaduna Close, and in particular the first
floor windows, and would intrude on the privacy of the residents of those properties.

Other living conditions: There appears to be a difference of view between the council and the
planning inspector about the light spillage from the tennis clubs floodlights. Those closest to Imada
have been in place for a number of years, and do not have specific features designed to limit
spillage. [Please see the first two of the attached photographs, which show both how close the lights
would be to the proposed windows at first floor level and the spread of light.] Since all habitable
rooms in the proposed flats would be exposed to the floodlights, it is difficult to see how this would
provide satisfactory living conditions. The fact that potential residents might be aware of the
floodlights before they moved in is of course irrelevant to their impact on the acceptability of the living
conditions.

Tennis Clubs Amenity: It has been suggested that as the tennis courts are already overlooked by the
properties in Kaduna Close, the proposed development would not significantly worsen the noise and
disturbance to which the tennis club is subject. This seems to ignore the difference in proximity
between the nearest buildings in Kaduna Close (some ten metres away), and the proposed
development, which would be within one metre of the court boundary. More significant is the contrast
between the tall hedge which separates the courts from the gardens of Kaduna Close, and the
proposed

open amenity space at first floor level. The proposed development would also unacceptably restrict
the view the tennis club currently enjoys of its three matchplay courts from its clubhouse's first floor
lounge window. [Please see remaining photographs attached, which are taken from the lounge and
show how a second storey on top of the existing single storey would restrict the view.]

Parking: Imada openly advertises on its website capacity to host banquets for up to 160 people. It
does so with 16 designated parking spaces for its staff and guests. The application proposes
allocating two of these spaces for the new flats. While that may be acceptable provision for the flats,
it will only worsen the parking situation for everyone else. There is no assessment of either the
current or future demand for parking and no explanation how any problems caused by the
development would be mitigated. Any future over demand of parking from larger functions would
choke up the already limited parking space within the residential street of Kaduna Close.

Character: In our view the proposed development would be unacceptable in a Conservation Area. It

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 36



would increase the size of an already bulky and unattractive building, which is already out of keeping
with the area. In particular, its scale would further dwarf the tennis clubhouse, as the nearest building
to it. Its increased size would also dominate the adjoining properties.

In conclusion, we note that the application form submitted indicates that the site in not in an area at
risk of flooding. We believe this is incorrect, as the maps from the Environment Agency we have
seen suggest that Imada's site is in Flood Risk Zone 3. If so, a Flood Risk Assessment should be
prepared.

Environment Agency:

This site is located in Flood Zone 3b as determined by your Strategic Flood Risk Assessment. Any
increase in the buildings footprint for more vulnerable uses would be inappropriate in 3b. As there is
no increase in building footprint proposed as part of this application, the 3b classification is not
applicable in this instance.

The site lies within Flood Zone 3. This is defined by the Technical Guidance to the National Planning
Policy Framework as having a high probability of flooding. As outlined in the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) you should ensure that the Flood Risk Sequential Test has been passed by
determining that there are no reasonably available alternative sites outside of this flood zone. If there
are any alternative sites at a lower risk of flooding then this site is not appropriate and you should
recommend refusal.

If you satisfactorily pass the Sequential Test for the proposed development, we have concerns
relating to safe access/egress and object to this application.

Reason

The proposed development does not have a safe means of access and/or egress in the event of
flooding. Consequently, there would be an unacceptable risk to the health and safety of the
occupants in a flood event. This is despite the mitigating measures proposed.

Resolution

As safe access/egress is not available then the applicant should discuss with yourselves whether, in
this particular instance, the provision of an evacuation plan for the development would be sufficient
to ensure the safety of residents of the development. We suggest you involve your emergency
planners when making your decision. Should this be agreed then we will be in a position to remove
our objection.

Advice to Local Authority:

The submitted plan (reference 26097/001/001) within the Flood Risk Assessment (FRA)
demonstrates that the flood levels around the building and along the access route will be classed as
hazardous (danger for some) in a 100 year plus climate change flood event. This is in line with Flood
Risk Assessment Guidance for New Development(FD2320).

The worst case depth of flooding is 431 millimetres (mm) located just outside of the building exit.
Even though the flood waters are some distance from the River channel, as stated in section five of
the FRA, and therefore the velocities experienced should be low, this will still cause a danger for
some according to the guidance contained within FD2320.

Advice to Applicant

Car parking may be appropriate in areas subject to flooding, provided flood warning is available and
signs are in place. Car parks should ideally not be subject to flood depths in excess of 300mm depth
since vehicles can be moved by water of this depth (see Guide to the management of floodplains to
reduce flood risk SR 599 HR Wallingford 2003). Car parks located in areas that flood to greater

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



depths should be designed to prevent vehicles floating out of the car park.

Internal Consultees
Waste Management:

The waste arising from the flats is classed as household waste and would be collected through the
household waste and recycling services:

Weekly residual (refuse) waste, using sacks purchased by the occupier
Weekly dry recycling collection, using specially marked sacks provided by the Council

However, it would have to be presented separately from the commercial waste generated by the
restaurant.

Highways:

Kaduna close is a no through residential road situated on the side of River Pinn and a tennis court
and accessed from Joel Street which is unclassified road. The existing carriageway is approximately
6.0m Wide with approximately 1.5 m wide footway on both sides.

The existing dwelling is used as a squash court, leisure facilities and restaurant, benefiting from a
total of sixteen car parking spaces located at the rear and side of the existing building. Two car
parking spaces will be allocated for the future occupants of proposed two bedroom flats and a total
of fourteen car parking spaces are reserved for guests using tennis club and restaurants.

The proposal for constructing 2 two bedroom first floor side extension flats and allocating two out of
sixteen parking spaces to the new flats and four covered and secured cycle storage facilities
complies with policy AM14 of the Council's UDP.

Given the appeal decision no objection is raised on highways and transportation aspect of the
development, subject to the following issues being covered by suitable planning conditions.
Conditions to cover:

1) Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, a plan shall be submitted to, and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority detailing Details of covered and secure cycle
storage for 4 no. cycles.

1. No development shall take place until details of facilities to be provided for the storage of refuse
bins within the site have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
No part of the development shall be occupied until the facilities have been provided in accordance
with the approved details and thereafter the facilities shall be permanently retained.

Access Officer:

In assessing this application, reference has been made to London Plan Policy 3A.5 (Housing
Choice) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document "Accessible Hillingdon" adopted
January 2010. Given that the property as it stands provides no lift access to the first floor, the
proposed development would not lend itself to Lifetime Homes Standards compliance and no
requirement should be imposed on the developer in this regard.

Conclusion: | have no objection to the proposed development.

Trees/landscape:

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



Tree Preservation Order (TPO)/Conservation Area: This site is covered by TPO 20, TPO 278 and
also within Eastcote Village Conservation Area (therefore, all trees not covered by the TPO are
protected by virtue of their location within the Conservation Area).

Significant trees ther vegetation of merit in terms of Saved Policy BE38 (on-site): There is an Oak to
the eastern side of the squash courts, however it will not be affected by the proposed extension.

Significant trees/other vegetation of merit in terms of Saved Policy BE38 (off-site): There are several
Oak trees to the rear of the Imada site, which will not be affected by the construction of the proposed
extension. However, with regards to landscaping, the amenity space that is to be provided will be
adjacent to/under a dense belt of trees(which is part of a larger, linear landscape feature), including
a very large Oak, along the river Pinn and will therefore be severely affected by shade and
dominated by the trees, particularly the Oak. Concerns were raised on the previous application (Ref:
52580/APP/2010/2293) that this problem will most likely give rise to

pressure to heavily prune/fell the Oak. This planning application was refused, and dismissed on
appeal. The Planning Inspector (Appeal Decision Ref:- APP/R5510/A/11/2151121) did not find there
was a threat to the tree(s) and found that although the location of this amenity space is not
conveniently located, the heavy shade of the trees may well be an advantage and provide shade for
the residents.

Scope for new planting (yes/no): A roof terrace and amenity space have been proposed, however no
details of soft landscaping have been provided. This matter can be dealt with by condition.

Conclusion (in terms of Saved Policy BE38): Acceptable, given the appeal decision and subject to
conditions TL2, TL5 (roof terrace and amenity space) and TL6.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The site is located within an area where in principle additional development that achieves
the relevant design and layout standards may be accommodated provided that it is also in
character with the appearance of the surrounding area. Furthermore, any such
development is also subject to any specific site constraints and the identified impacts on
the amenities of the existing adjoining, nearby and future residents. The Inspector
previously accepted the principle of development in this location in his recent appeal
decision and there has been no change in circumstances to suggest that the principle
would not now be acceptable.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Given the small scale nature of the proposal and the mix of uses within the site, the density
of the development was not an issue in regard to the previous application, which was
refused for other reasons. Thus, the same is applicable to this current proposal.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site is located just inside the boundary of the Eastcote Village Conservation Area.
During the consideration of the previous appeal the Inspector concluded that:

"The conservation area is based on the development and the woodlands along the River
Pinn and includes a number of country houses and high quality housing characterised by
open spaces and landscaping. The appeal site is something of an anomoly in this context
as the building is is of little architectural merit and the site, as a whole, makes no
contribution to the character and appearance of the Conservation Area other than that the
parking area provides some sense of spaciousness. | conclude that the proposal would not
have a detrimental effect on the character and appearance of the immediate area or the
wider conservation area."

It is therefore considered that the proposal would not have an adverse impact on the

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

conservation area.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Environmental Impact

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The existing building does not contain any features of architectural merit, and it is
acknowledged that the proposed development would not be visible from Joel Street and
High Road Eastcote, which lie to the north east and south east, respectively. Furthermore,
the proposed extension has been designed to be in keeping with the existing building.

In his appeal decision the Inspector concluded that:

"The appeal site comprises a large two storey flat roofed structure with a single storey
element to the side and associated parking, used as a Health Club. The proposed
extension would be built above the single storey element. | consider that the resultant two
storey element, in terms of its overall size, height, scale and pitched roof, would reflect the
character and scale of the nearby residential development in Kaduna Close and the
adjacent tennis clubhouse. In this respect, it would be a more appropriate expression of the
more domestic function of this part of the overall building than a design which reflected the
overbearing monolithic appearance of the main building."

The proposal is therefore not considered to be out of character with the existing building,
the character and appearance of the immediate area or the wider conservation area. As
such the proposal would comply with Policies BE4 and BE15 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

Impact on neighbours

Paragraph 4.9 of the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts
advises that all residential developments and amenity spaces should receive adequate
daylight and sunlight and that new development should be designed to minimise the
negative impact of overbearing and overshadowing. It goes on to advise that 'where a two
storey building abuts a property or its garden, adequate distance should be maintained to
overcome possible domination'. Generally, 15m will be the minimum acceptable distance
between buildings. Furthermore, and a minimum of 21m overlooking distance should be
maintained.

The nearest residential properties are 19 and 20 Sutton Close, and 6-10 and 13-14 Kaduna
Close. All these properties are over 30m from the proposed development. This distance is
sufficient to ensure that the proposal would not represent a visually intrusive and
overdominant form of development when viewed from the habitable room windows of those
properties or harm the residential amenities of those properties through overlooking and
loss of privacy.

Concerns have also been raised regarding the impact of the proposal on the operation of
Eastcote Tennis Club and the clubhouse itself. The windows facing the clubhouse would
provide natural light to non-habitable rooms and as such can be fitted with obscure glass to
prevent overlooking onto that building, should planning permission be granted.
Furthermore, the tennis courts are adjacent to the gardens of residential properties of 1-5

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



and 6-10 Kaduna Close, and Joel Street, with its associated traffic noise.

It is therefore considered that the proposal would not detract from the residential amenities
of occupiers of adjacent proeprties. The proposal would threefore comply with Policies
BE20, BE21, BE24 and OE1 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved
Policies September 2007) and paragraphs 4.9 and 4.12 of the Hillingdon Design &
Accessibility Statement (HDAS): Residential Layouts.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

The internal size of the proposed units would meet the requirements of paragraph 4.6 of
the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts which recommends
63sqg.m for two bedroom houses, in accordance with London Plan policy 4B.1.

With regard to amenity space, paragraph 4.16 of the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility
Statement: Residential Layouts sets out the criteria for assessing the type and quality of
amenity space provision and paragraph 4.17 advises that some 25sq.m of private amenity
space should be provided for each 2 bedroom flat.

The Inspector in his previous appeal decision concluded that the proposal would not result
in an unsatisfactory standard of living conditions for future residents in terms of either
amenity space or light pollution. As such the proposal would be in accordance with Policy
BE23 and Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon UDP.

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The existing site is used as a squash court, leisure facilities and restaurant, benefiting from
a total of sixteen car parking spaces located at the rear and side of the existing building.
Two car parking spaces will be allocated for the future occupants of proposed two
bedroom flats and a total of fourteen car parking spaces are reserved for guests using the
tennis club and restaurants.

The proposal for constructing 2 two bedroom first floor side extension flats and allocating
two out of sixteen parking spaces to the new flats and four covered and secured cycle
storage facilities complies with Policy AM14 of the Councils UDP.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

London Plan Policy requires all new housing to be built to 'Lifetime Homes' standards. The
Council's HDAS 'Accessible Hillingdon' also requires all new housing to be built to 'Lifetime
Homes' standards.

The Council's Access Officer has advised that given that the property as it stands provides
no lift access to the first floor, the proposed development would not lend itself to Lifetime
Homes Standards compliance and no requirement should be imposed on the developer in
this regard. However, the submitted plans show a lift to the first floor.

The proposed units are therefore capable of meeting some of these standards, subject to
an appropriate condition, should planning permission be granted.
7.12 Disabled access

This is addressed above.
7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
7.14 Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

There are several Oak trees to the rear of the Imada site, however the proposed extension
would be some distance from these trees.

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



In his previous appeal decision the Inspector concluded that the trees on the site would not
be unduly subject to pressure to prune or fell them beyond normal requirements of proper
management and that in any case, they are adequately protected by the TPO and their
location within the Conservation Area. This is a material consideration and as such the
proposal is considered acceptable in relation to Policies BE4, BE13 and BE38 of the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

7.15 Sustainable waste management

Refuse facilities have not been provided however, this could be secured by way of a
suitable planning condition, in accordance with Policy BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007) and paragraphs 4.40 of the
Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: Residential Layout.

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The application site is located within flood zone 3a, therefore the Council needs to be
mindful of the technical guidance that accompanies the National Planning Policy
Framework. Paragraph 5 of the technical guidance states:

"The overall aim should be to steer new development to Flood Zone 1. Where there are no
reasonably available sites in Flood Zone 1, local planning authorities allocating land in local
plans or determining planning applications for development at any particular location should
take into account the flood risk vulnerability of land uses and consider reasonably available
sites in Flood Zone 2, applying the Exception Test if required."

The withdrawal of Planning Policy Statement 25 (PPS25) and its practice guide reduces
the amount of advice available on the sequential test. However, the principles are still firmly
established. The Council needs to be assured that if they are placing new development in
areas of flood risk, then there must be an appropriate reason. This development will
introduce two new dwellings, albeit at first floor, into an area with a high probability of
flooding.

Although the new development will be outside the flood zone by virtue of being above
ground level, there is still a significant risk in times of flooding. People returning to their
homes may be inclined to navigate flood waters, or seek to retrieve flooded property (e.g. a
vehicle) placing themselves at risk, and putting added burden on emergency services.

The submitted plan (reference 26097/001/001) within the Flood Risk Assessment (FRA)
demonstrates that the flood levels around the building and along the access route will be
classed as hazardous (danger for some) in a 100 year plus climate change flood event.
This is in line with "Flood Risk Assessment Guidance for New Development"(FD2320). The
worst case depth of flooding is 431 millimetres (mm) located just outside of the building
exit. Even though the flood waters are some distance from the river channel, as stated in
section five of the FRA, and therefore the velocities experienced should be low, this will still
cause a danger for some according to the guidance contained within FD2320.

The Council has to be able to accept that the benefits of the development outweigh this risk
by determining there is no available land at a lower risk of flooding i.e a sequential test
needs to be carried out to steer new development to areas with lowest probability of
flooding. The applicant has not provided evidence of a site search demonstrating that this
is the only suitable site and has not therefore passed the sequential test. It is for the
applicant to satisfy the Council as to why these two new flats should be located in this

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



718

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

area. Without suitable evidence the Council should look to alternative sites at a lower risk to
fulfil its housing needs. The majority of the Borough is outside of flood zones 2 and 3,
including its main centres. The Council's housing land studies suggest that there are many
locations across the Borough not at risk of flooding. To overcome the objection the
applicant will need to demonstrate that there is clear justification for developing this area
ahead of sites at a lower risk of flooding. This being the only site owned, is not suitable
justification for putting people and property at risk of flooding. The proposal is therefore
considered unacceptable and contrary to the NPPF and Policy OE7 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007).

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

The comments received in relation to the proposal which to some extent echo the
concerns raised by the Council in respect of the previous refusal of planning permission
are noted. However, the Inspector, whilst dimissing the previous appeal, accepted the
principle and layout of the proposed development. The appeal was only dismissed as the
applicants had failed to make provision for the additional educational requirements. As the
revised application is identical to that dismissed at appeal, other than by agreeing to
financial contributions towards education, the Inspector's appeal decision is a material
consideration.

Planning Obligations

The proposed units would result in a net increase of 7 habitable rooms and therefore would
fall within the threshold for seeking a contribution towards school places in the Eastcote
and East Ruislip Ward. The applicants have agreed in writing to make the contribution of
£1806.00 by way of a Section 106 Agreement.

Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

None

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislation,
regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to make an
informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 43



means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion,
national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'

10. CONCLUSION

The application follows the dismissal of appeal reference APP/R5510/A/11/2151121 in
respect of application 52580/APP/2010/2293 for an identical proposal. The Inspector
concluded that the application was acceptable insofar as it would provide adequate living
conditions for future occupiers and it would not harm the character and appearance of the
conservation area. However the Inspector concluded that the proposal would not make
adequate provision for the additional educational needs it would generate.

The revised application confirms agreement to the payment of financial contributions
towards education by way of a Section 106 agreement. However, the site is located within
flood zone 3a and the applicant has failed to demonstrate that the benefits of the
development outweigh the risk of locating such development within this flood zone by
determining there is no available land at a lower risk of flooding. As such the proposal is
contrary to Policy OE7 of the Hillingdon UDP. The application is therefore recommended
for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

London Plan (July 2011).

Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).
Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts.

Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon.

Lifetime Homes Standards.

National Planning Policy Frawework.

Technical Guidance to the National Planning Policy Framework.

Contact Officer: Nicola Taplin Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 44



Tennis Courts

Eastcote Lawn
Tennis Club

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Imada

12 Kaduna Close

Eastcote

OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
52580/APP/2011/2033 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
May

North Page 45

2012

4

14 Es’!t‘

FILLINGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address LAND AT JUNCTION OF WARREN ROAD SWAKELEYS DRIVE ICKENHAL

Development: Installation of a 15m high telecommunications pole, associated antenna,
equipment cabinet and ancillary developments works (Consultation Under
Schedule 2, Part 24 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995) (as amended.) Application for prior approval for
siting and design.

LBH Ref Nos: 65862/APP/2012/982

Drawing Nos: 100
200
300
400
Site Specific Supplementary Informatior
General Background Information for Telecommunications Developments
CORN/09/014V1.3

Date Plans Received: 18/04/2012 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 18/04/2012
1. SUMMARY

This application has been submitted by Vodafone and seeks determination as to whether
prior approval is required for the erection of a 15m high monopole mobile phone mast and
ancillary equipment cabinet. The installation is required in order to provide future 3G
coverage as part of Vodafone's licence obligations. The applicant has searched the
desired coverage area and concluded that there are no other more suitable locations
available. In support of the application Vodafone have supplied copies of technical details
of their search/coverage area plans and justification for their site selection.

It is considered that the proposed installation would be visually unacceptable in this
sensitive Green Belt location along a busy main road, close to well used bus stops. As
such it is recommended that prior approval of siting and design be required and refused.

2, RECOMMENDATION
RECOMMENDATION (A) That prior approval of siting and design is required.

RECOMMENDATION (B) The details of siting and design are refused.

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development would result in an incongruous and visually obtrusive form of
development which would be out of keeping with the visual character of the adjoining
street scene, the area in general and the wider Green Belt. Furthermore, other potential
solutions have not been fully investigated. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies
pt.1.1, pt.1.10, pt1.11, BE13, OL1 and OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies September 2007.

INFORMATIVES

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 47



1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national

guidance.
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE37 Telecommunications developments - siting and design
OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
OL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new

development
3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The proposed site is located on the grass verge at the junction of Warren Road and
Woodstock/Swakeleys Drive. The site is located within a predominantly residential area,
although there is a large woodland area on the eastern side of Warren Road.

There are lighting columns in the area, although these are approximately only 6 metres in
height and nearby telegraph poles are also significantly shorter than the proposed mast.
There are also a number of trees in the vicinity. The development will allow Vodafone and
02 to provide new 3G coverage to the surrounding area.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is to erect a 15 metre imitation telegraph pole support structure housing 3
antennas. Ancillary radio equipment is to be located within a single cabinet at ground level.
The cabinet would be approximately 1.89m x 0.79m x 1.65m high and would be located
adjacent to the mast. The mast would be made of steel and would have a wood effect steel
finish, with a green cabinet.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History
There is no relevant planning history.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 48



The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.1 To maintain the Green Belt for uses which preserve or enhance the open nature o
the area.

PT1.10 To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity and the
character of the area.

PT1.11 To facilitate the development of telecommunications networks in a manner than
minimises the environmental and amenity impact of structures and equipment.

PT1.8 To preserve or enhance those features of Conservation Areas which contribute to
their special architectural and visual qualities.

Part 2 Policies:

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE37 Telecommunications developments - siting and design

OEA1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OoL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

A total of 27 neighbouring properties were consulted. 6 letters of objection were received on the
following grounds:

i) The mast would be unsightly.

i) No evidence that the installation is required.

iii) The cabinet would be vandalised as school children congregate on the site before and after
school.

iv) Visually intrusive.

A petition with 21 signatures has been received objecting on the following grounds:

i) The proposed 15 metre high mast would make an unsightly impact in open green space close to
the road.

i) Vodaphone s alternative sites should be reconsidered, including Woodland - The Clump' which
was apparently discounted by Vodaphone because LBH "failed to respond to...multiple enquiries".
i) The proposed site does not conform with the principles of good siting at Para 128 of the Code of
Best Practice. Environmental impact could be greatly reduced by placing within an existing group of
trees.

A request has also been received from a Ward Councillor for the application to be referred to the

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 49



planning committee.

Internal Consultees

HIGHWAYS: No objection on highways safety grounds.

7.
7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
The principle of the development

The proposed installation does not exceed the limits set out in Part 24 of Schedule 2 of the
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended).
It would not be located in a conservation area or site of Special Scientific Interest, where
more restrictive criteria are applicable.

In accordance with Part 24 of the Town and Country planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (as amended) the applicant is required to apply to the Local
Planning Authority for a determination as to whether prior approval of the details of siting
and design is required and, if so, for the Local Planning Authority to either approve or refuse
those details.

In this case it is considered that the proposed mast would have a harmful impact on the
character and appearance of this Green Belt location. Accordingly, it is recommended that
prior approval of siting and design be required and refused.

Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this type of development.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site does not lie within a Conservation Area or in an Area of Special Character.
Airport safeguarding

The application site is not located within close proximity of an aerodrome and there is no
requirement to consult the airport safeguarding authorities regarding this proposal.
Impact on the green belt

It is considered that the proposed mast would be utilitarian in design and out of keeping
with the character and appearance of the Green Belt and Nature Conservation Area of
Local Importance. Whilst an imitation telegraph pole design has been chosen in an
attempt to mimic the design of existing street furniture it is considered that the proposed
mast would stand out as at odds with the shorter poles in the vicinity. It would also add to
the street clutter in the area.

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The proposed installation would be located in a prominent location on a public grass verge
by a busy junction within the Green Belt. At 15m high the proposed mast would be
significantly taller than the nearby streetlights, surrounding buildings, and much of the
surrounding vegetation. The sizeable equipment cabinet would also add to its visual
impact, and it would be clearly noticeable to users of Warren Road and Swakeleys Drive.

It is considered that the proposed mast would be utilitarian in design and out of keeping
with the character and appearance of the Green Belt and Nature Conservation Area of
Local Importance. Whilst an imitation telegraph pole design has been chosen in an
attempt to mimic the design of existing street furniture it is considered that the proposed
mast would stand out as at odds with the shorter poles in the vicinity. It would also add to
the street clutter in the area.

In support of the application the applicant has provided details of 7 different sites, which
have been investigated within the search area together with reasons for discounting them.

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 50



7.08

7.09

710

7.1

712

713

7.14

715

7.16

717

718

719

7.20

Amongst the options discounted are two Council owned locations, which the applicant
claims they received no response from the Council to their initial queries, however no
evidence has been provided of this. As such, it is considered that these options should be
further investigated before the proposed prominent streetworks installation is pursued.
Impact on neighbours

The NPPF states that applications for this type of development should be accompanied by
ICNIRP certificate and that if a proposed mobile phone base station meets the ICNIRP
guidelines, it should not be necessary to consider further the health aspects of the
development and concerns about them. The applicant has confirmed that the proposed
equipment would comply with ICNIRP guidelines. There is nothing to indicate that there is a
risk to health, nor is there evidence to outweigh advice in the NPPF on health
considerations. As such it is considered that health fears do not weigh significantly against
the development. As such a reason for refusal on health grounds cannot be substantiated.
Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this type of application.
Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

There would be no increase in traffic to/from the site as a result of the application and there
are no parking requirements associated with the proposal.
Urban design, access and security

Issues of design are addressed withint he Character and Apearance section of this report.

Issue of access and security are not considered relevant to this application.
Disabled access

Not applicable to this type of application.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this type of application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

The proposed replacement mast and associated equipment would be located on a grass
verge. While there are trees within the locality it is considered that the proposed mast is
sufficiently separated from these that they could be protected were the application
approved. There are therefore no landscaping issues.

Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this type of application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this type of application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this type of application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this type of application.
Comments on Public Consultations

Issues (i), (ii) and (iv) are addressed within the body of the report.

In relation to issue (iii) it is not considered that the installation would be more likeley to be
vandalised than any similar street furniture.
Planning Obligations

There is no requirement for the applicant to pay any S106 contributions for this type of
development.

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 51



7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

None.
7.22 Other Issues
None.
8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislation,
regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to make an
informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion,
national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

It is considered that the proposed installation would have an unacceptable visual impact
upon the street scene and would be of detriment to the character and appearance of the
Green Belt. Its height and design in this location would be clearly visible and would draw
attention to it. Alternative options have not been fully investigated and discounted. As such
the proposal is contrary to policies pt1.1, pt 1.10, pt.1.11, BE13, BE37 and OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007 and it is
recommended that prior approval be refused.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007
National Planning Policy Framework

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 52



Contact Officer: Matt Kolaszewski Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 53



“Path

The Clump

Sluice

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

Land at junction of

Warren Road and Swakeleys Drive

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Ickenham S nity
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale i
65862/APP/2012/982 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date 4 \ﬁ’t
May e
North Page 54 2012 HILLINGDON

LONDON




Address:

Development:

LBH Ref Nos:
Drawing Nos:
Date application
approved at

Committee

S$106 Agreement

Agenda ltem 9

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green
Spaces

THE SWAN PH BREAKSPEAR ROAD NORTH
HAREFIELD

Two storey detached building to contain 2 one bedroom
and 4 two bedroom, self contained flats with associated
parking and amenity space and alterations to exisitng
vehicle crossover to front, (involving demolition of existing
building).

18329/APP/2012/242
As per original committee report

North Planning Committee — 26th April 2012

That the recommendation to enter into a planning
obligation to address educational needs arising from the
proposed development is amended and approved to
correct an error in the officer’s report of 26th April 2012.

1.0 CONSULTATIONS

1.1 Internal Consultees

Planning

Obligations Officer: Following the planning committee, the level of the education

contribution was queried by the applicant. Upon review of the
education figure it was discovered that the education
contribution had been calculated incorrectly.

The correct figure should be £7,718. Therefore further
committee authorisation is sought to rectify this error.

It is considered appropriate that the Committee approve the
amendment to the level of the educational contribution to reflect
the habitable room count arising from this scheme.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION

That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning, Sport and
Green Spaces to grant planning permission, subject to the following:

North Planning Committee — 7™ June 2012
PART | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 55



3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

That the Council enter into a legal agreement with the applicants under
Section 106/ Unilateral Undertaking of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 (as amended) or other appropriate legislation to secure:

(i) An education contribution of £7,718

(ii)  That all construction and administration costs in raising/renewing
existing kerbs and reinstatement of the public footway adjacent to
the application site are met by the developer.

That the applicant meets the Council’s reasonable costs in the
preparation of the s106 Agreement and any abortive work as a result of
the agreement not being completed.

If the s106 Agreement has not been finalised within 6 months, the
application is to be referred back to the Planning Committee for
determination at the discretion of the Director of Planning, Environment,
Education and Community Facilities.

That officers' be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of
the proposed agreement.

That on completion of the s106 Agreement, the application be deferred
for determination by the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces
under delegated powers.

That if the application is approved, the conditions and informatives that
were agreed at 26 April 2012 North Planning Committee be attached.

KEY PLANNING ISSUES

The current planning application was lodged on the 6" of February 2012 and
reported to the North Planning Committee on the 26™ of April 2012. The report
is attached as Appendix A and the minutes of that meeting are attached as
Appendix B.

The Committee determined to approve the application, subject to the
applicant, entering into a s106 agreement to secure an education contribution
in the sum of £11,186 and also that the construction and administration costs
in raising/renewing existing kerbs and reinstatement of the public footway
adjacent to the application site are met by the developer.

Post planning committee the level of the education figure was queried by the
applicant as it was the same as that of their 2011 scheme despite this scheme
having a lower number of habitable rooms than the 2011 scheme.

The correct sum should read £7,718 as the revised scheme has four x 4
habitable room dwellings and two x 3 habitable room dwellings. The original
scheme had six x 4 habitable room dwellings.

North Planning Committee — 7™ June 2012
PART | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 56



3.5 Approval to amend the level of the education contribution is therefore sought
to address the error in the officer’s report of 26th April 2012, subject to the
conditions and informatives contained in the report heard by the North
Planning Committee on 26 April 2012.

OBSERVATIONS OF BOROUGH SOLICITOR

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable
them to make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998)
makes it unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.
Decisions by the Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore,
Members need to be aware of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European
Convention on Human Rights (the Convention) directly applicable to the actions of
public bodies in England and Wales. The specific parts of the Convention relevant to
planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for
private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and
Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are
followed, it is unlikely that this article will be breached. Article 1 of the First Protocol
and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of these rights protected
under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for example where
required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which means it
must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective. Article 14
states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without discrimination
on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion, national
or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'.

OBSERVATIONS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

The report indicates that the costs of the development will be fully met by the
developer, and the developer will make a Section 106 contribution to the Council
towards associated public facilities. The developer will also meet the reasonable
costs of the Council in the preparation of the Section 106 agreement and any
abortive work as a result of the agreement not being completed. Consequently, there
are no financial implications for this Planning Committee or the Council.

Reference Documents
(a) North Planning Committee Agenda 26™ April 2012. Report for application
reference 18239/APP/2012/242.

(b) North Planning Committee Minutes 26™ April 2012 resolution for application
reference 18239/APP/2012/242.

Contact Officer: VANESSA SCOTT Telephone No: 01895 250 230

North Planning Committee — 7™ June 2012
PART | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 57



APPENDIX A

North Planning Committee — 7™ June 2012
PART | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 58



Agenda Item 12

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address THE SWAN PH BREAKSPEAR ROAD NORTH HAREFIELD

Development: Two storey detached building to contain 2 one-bedroom and 4 two-bedroom,
self contained flats with associated parking and amenity space and
alterations to existing vehicle crossover to front, (involving demolition of
existing building).

LBH Ref Nos: 18239/APP/2012/242

Drawing Nos: 11/3252/14
11/3252/13
Photographs Sheets 1-4
Design and Access Statement
Energy and Sustainability Statement
Location Plan to Scale 1:1250
11/3252/11 Rev. D
11/3252/10 Rev. C
11/3252/12 Rev. A

Date Plans Received:  31/01/2012 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 31/01/2012
Date Application Valid: 06/02/2012 10/04/2012

1. SUMMARY

This application, together with an application for conservation area consent
(18239/APP/2012/244) which is also being presented to this committee meeting seeks
permission to demolish the existing un-used and vacant Swan Public House and erect a
two storey detached block containing 2 x one-bedroom and 4 x two-bedroom flats, with
off-street parking in the rear garden and a disabled person's space in the front garden
area.

This follows previous applications for planning permission and conservation area consent
(18239/APP/2011/1596 and 1588) for a block containing 6 x two bedroom flats which
was refused permission and an appeal was subsequently dismissed in an Inspector's
decision letter dated 12/03/12 which is attached at Appendix 1.

The scheme has been amended by reducing the size and bulk of the building, amending
its design and the number of bedrooms and re-siting it further forward on site. Off-street
parking has been re-sited at the rear with 6 off-street spaces, served by a side access,
with a disabled person's space at the front.

Although the Council objected in principle to the loss of the building and its contribution to
the character and appearance of the Harefield Village Conservation area, this was not
supported by the Inspector. As regards the reasons for dismissing the appeal, namely,
mutual overlooking, unsightly bin store and the poor outlook and natural lighting of front
facing windows adjoining the Malthouse Pharmacy, it is considered that this revised
scheme has overcome the Inspector's concerns.

As regards the current application, although the internal floor area of the two bedroom

flats are undersized, this is minimal and not of such significance as to justify refusal of
permission. No objections are raised to car parking in the rear garden, given the nature

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 32



of the surrounding area. The new access road does involve crossing the root protection
area of an adjoining protected Ash tree which is not ideal, but a condition has been
added to ensure that the construction of the road safeguards this tree.

The application is recommended for approval.
2. RECOMMENDATION

That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces
to grant planning permission, subject to the following:

1. That the Council enter into a legal agreement with the applicants under Section
106/Unilateral Undertaking of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended) or other appropriate legislation to secure:

(i) An education contribution of £11,186.

(ii) That all construction and administration costs in raising/renewing existing
kerbs and reinstatement of the public footway adjacent to the application site are
met by the developer.

2. That the applicant meets the Council's reasonable costs in the preparation of
the S106 Agreement and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being
completed.

3. If the $S106 Agreement has not been finalised within 6 months, the application to
be referred back to the Planning Committee for determination at the discretion of
the Director of Planning and Community Services.

4. That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement.

5. That on completion of the S106 Agreement, the application be deferred for
determination by the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces under delegated
powers.

6. That if the application is approved, the following conditions be attached:

1 RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans and shall thereafter be
retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and the London Plan (July 2011).

3 RES6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

4 RES7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces, |,
including details of balconies have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance
with the approved details and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

5 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Details of the window cills & arches, string course, chimneys & pots and the eaves
should be submitted at 1:5 scale or as appropriate.

REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

6 NONSC Non Standard Condition

No development shall take place until details of the 'Swan' faience tile to be
safeguarded, appropriately repaired and reinstated on the main elevation. have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be
retained as such.

REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

7 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to the commencement of works on site, a tree report, tree protection plan and
arboricultural method statement to BS5837:2005 shall be submitted to and approved by
the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate how the access road will be constructed
without causing damage to the roots of the adjoining protected Ash tree (T54 on TPO 3).

REASON

To ensure that the adjoining protected Ash tree (T54 on TPO 3) can and will be retained
and not damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms
with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 89



2007).

8 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The access road shall must have a permeable surface and be constructed on site prior to
the commencement of work on the flats.

REASON

To ensure that the adjoining protected Ash tree (T54 on TPO 3) can and will be retained
and not damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms
with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

9 RES8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum
height of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

10 RES9 Landscaping (including refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 82



2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage (inc. elevations if appropriate)

2.b Cycle Storage (inc. elevations if appropriate)

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments (inc. elevations if appropriate)

2.d Car Parking Layouts (including details of the access road, which may need to be
raised to bridge the roots of the adjoining protected Ash Tree and how this will be
assimilated into the landscape scheme).

2.e Hard Surfacing Materials

2.f External Lighting

2.g Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within
the landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority
becomes seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

5. Other
5.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
5.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with
the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual

amenities of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13,
BE38 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) and Policy 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan.

11 RES10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely
damaged during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree,
hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would
leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in
a position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a
size and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be
planted in the first planting season following the completion of the development or the
occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a
schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree
surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1,
Specification for Trees and Shrubs'

Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 83



REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and to comply with Section 197 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

12 RES12 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved facing Apple
Trees, Breakspear Road North.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24.

13 RES13 Obscure Glazing

The first floor bedroom window facing Apple Trees, Breakspear Road North shall be
glazed with permanently obscured glass and non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres
taken from internal finished floor level for so long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

14 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed
to delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken
to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development
which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory
undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme
throughout its lifetime.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OES8 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and London Plan (July 2011) Policy 5.12.

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 82



15 RES16 Code for Sustainable Homes

The dwelling(s) shall achieve Level 3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes. No
development shall commence until a signed design stage certificate confirming this level
has been received. The design stage certificate shall be retained and made available for
inspection by the Local Planning Authority on request.

The development must be completed in accordance with the principles of the design
stage certificate and the applicant shall ensure that completion stage certificate has been
attained prior to occupancy of each dwelling.

REASON
To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development identified in London Plan (July
2011) Policies 5.1 and 5.3.

16 RES17 Sound Insulation

Development shall not begin until a scheme for protecting the proposed development
from (road traffic) (rail traffic) (air traffic) (other) noise has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All works which form part of the
scheme shall be fully implemented before the development is occupied and thereafter
shall be retained and maintained in good working order for so long as the building
remains in use.

REASON

To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed development is not
adversely affected by (road traffic) (rail traffic) (air traffic) (other) noise in accordance with
policy OE5 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and London Plan (July 2011) Policy 7.15.

17 RES18 Lifetime Homes/Wheelchair Units

All residential units within the development hereby approved shall be built in accordance
with 'Lifetime Homes' Standards. Further 10% of the units hereby approved shall be
designed and constructed to be fully wheelchair accessible or easily adaptable for
residents who are wheelchair users, as set out in the Council's Supplementary Planning
Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'.

REASON
To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2

18 RES22 Parking Allocation

No unit hereby approved shall be occupied until a parking allocation scheme has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
parking shall remain allocated for the use of the units in accordance with the approved
scheme and remain under this allocation for the life of the development.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (July 2011).

19 RES23 Visibility Splays - Pedestrian

The access for the proposed car parking shall be provided with those parts of 2.4m x
2.4m pedestrian visibility splays which can be accommodated within the site in both

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 83



directions and shall be maintained free of all obstacles to the visibility between heights of
0.6m and 2.0m above the level of the adjoining highway.

REASON
In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with policy AM7 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

20 RES24 Secured by Design

The dwelling(s) shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the
Hillingdon Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the
Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No dwelling shall be occupied until
accreditation has been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national

guidance.
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
LPP 3.4 (2011) Optimising housing potential
LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 3.8 (2011) Housing Choice
LPP 3.16 (2011) Protection and enhancement of social infrastructure
LPP 5.2 (2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction
LPP 5.13 (2011) Sustainable drainage
LPP 5.15 (2011) Water use and supplies
LPP 7.2 (2011) An inclusive environment
LPP 7.3 (2011) Designing out crime
LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character
LPP 7.6 (2011) Architecture
LPP 7.8 (2011) Heritage assets and archaeology
BE1 Development within archaeological priority areas

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 86



BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.
BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.
BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
H4 Mix of housing units
R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of
recreation, leisure and community facilities
OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures
OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
H8 Change of use from non-residential to residential
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010
HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006
SPD-PO Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted
July 2008
3 11 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

4 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by
either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will
have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results
in any form of encroachment.

5 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 87



extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

6 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not
empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the
owner. If you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

7 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of
08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays,
Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Councilis Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out
construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

8

You are advised that it is contrary to Section 163 of the Highways Act 1980 for surface
water from private land to drain onto the highway or discharge into the highway drainage.
9

The applicant is advised to contact the Council's Highways Team in respect of the
construction of the vehicle crossover and relocation of lamp columns.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1  Site and Locality

The application site is located on the eastern edge of the Harefield Village centre, directly
opposite the village green and pond. It is sited on the south western side of Breakspear

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 88



Road North, some 70m to the east of its junction with High Street and is roughly
rectangular in shape, tapering towards the rear with a 24m frontage and an overall depth
of 42m. The site comprises a detached two-storey building, which was formerly in use as
a public house known as The Swan, but is now vacant and the site boarded up. The main
elevation of the building is set back from the front boundary of the site by approximately
3.3m to 4.0m and this area was used for car parking which appears to have involved
overhanging of the public footway.

The building was built by Charles Brown, a local builder and opened as a public house in
1908. The building is of rough cast render and a plain tiled roof with two asymmetric mock
timber frame gables fronting the street with a decorative swan tile incorporated into the
larger left hand side gable. There is a projecting hipped wing with a cat slide roof at the
rear. Above the windows, there are attractive tile creased arches. The building originally
had an attractive glazed brick string course detail, which has now been vandalised. There
is @ more modern porch to the front and side and rear single storey extensions.

Immediately adjoining the whole eastern side boundary of the site is a part single storey,
part two storey building which is in use a retail pharmacy at the front with residential
above, and as a repair garage further to the rear of the site. The garage use also wraps
around to the rear of the application site. To the west are detached residential houses.
The south eastern side, the boundary of the site is formed by an older buttressed wall
which appears to pre-date the public house, although it is not listed. Adjoining this wall,
within the front garden area of the neighbouring house is a large protected Ash tree which
has been crudely lopped on one side.

The application site is located within an Archaeological Priority Area and forms part of the
Harefield Village Conservation Area. It is also located within the Harefield Local Centre
and covered by a Tree Protection Order (TPO_3). It also forms part of the Colne Valley
Regional Park.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal involves the demolition of the existing public house building, and erection of
a new two storey detached building to provide 4 two-bedroom and 2 one-bedroom flats.
The building would be slightly angled to the road and set back from the back edge of the
footway by approximately 4.5m to 6.3m. It would be 14.4m wide, set off the side boundary
adjoining the Malthouse Pharmacy by 1m and by 4.5m to 6.0m on the side boundary
adjoining Apple Trees.

As on the previous scheme, the building would have an eaves height of 5.1m and ridge
height of 9.1m. The building would still be double fronted, although the roof design has
been simplified, with two, two-storey projecting gable roofed bays. On the ground floor, in
between the bays would be a flat roofed storm porch. The building would have an overall
depth of 16.7m which would comprise an off-set projecting hipped roof wing on the north
western side of the building at the rear, with an adjoining smaller projecting two storey
element on the south-eastern side of the rear wing.

Parking for 6 vehicles would be provided at the rear of the site, accessed by a driveway
on the eastern side of the building. A disabled parking space would be provided at the
front of the building. Provision for refuse storage/recycling would be made at the side of
the building, adjacent to the access road with a cycle store at the end of the rear garden.

This application differs from the previous scheme in that the bulk of the building has been
reduced, with its overall width and depth reducing by approximately 1.3m and 0.8m

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 82



respectively and moved forward on site by approximately 6.5m so as to retain wider gaps
on the boundary with Apple Trees. The design of the building has been simplified, with
more traditional roof being proposed that avoids the need for crown roof elements. The
main area of off-street parking has moved to the rear of the site, with refuse/storage
provision made at the side of the building.

A number of reports have been submitted in support of the application, namely:
Design and Access Statement:

This provides the background to the scheme and describes the site and surroundings.
The design component of the scheme is assessed and advises of the changes made
since the previous refusal. The access component is then assessed. The report then goes
on to describe the landscaping. The reasons for refusal of the previous scheme and
identified and the report concludes that these have now been overcome.

Building Assessment by Dr Mervyn Miller:

This provides the background to the report and includes the qualifications and experience
of the author. A historical context and site description is provided. The report states that
the building was inspected on 27/07/11. The building dates to the first quarter of the last
century and is described as having a general Arts and craft character although it is not a
sophisticated design. It has been disfigured with awkward extensions, which are described
and the interior of the building is noted as being in disarray, being damaged and
vandalised. The conservation area context of the building is then described, and its
contribution to that character. National and local policy is then considered.

Energy and Sustainability Statement:

This lists the measures that will be employed to reduce the impact of the building on the
environment. As regards renewable energy, it states that in order to satisfy Level 3 of the
Code for Sustainable Homes, either solar panels or photo-voltaic cells will supplement the
conventional system.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History

A previous scheme (18239/APP/2011/1588) for a two storey detached building comprising
6 two-bedroom flats with associated parking and amenity space and alterations to the
existing vehicular crossover to the front (involving the demolition of the existing public
house building) was refused on 27/10/11 for the following reasons:-

1. In the absence of a full structural survey or similar and/or a financial viability appraisal,
the proposal fails to demonstrate that all options for the renovation and repair of the Swan
PH have been explored. Until such time that all options have been explored, it is
considered that its demolition is premature. The proposal is therefore considered to be
contrary to PPS5.

2. The proposal, by reason of its layout, siting, bulk, excessive habitable room density and
roof design, including the introduction of an extensive area of hardstanding to the front of
the building, represents a cramped and incongruous form of development that fails to
leave adequate space around the building, commensurate with the character of the
surrounding area and fails to harmonise with the pattern, scale and design of surrounding
residential development. The proposal would be detrimental to the visual amenities of the

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



street scene and would fail to maintain or enhance the character and appearance of the
Harefield Village Conservation Area. The proposal is therefore contrary to policies BE4,
BE13, BE19 and BE22 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Residential Layouts.

3. The proposed development by reason of the siting of the proposed building and its
windows would result in the overlooking of the first floor flat at the adjoining Harefield
Garage, Breakspear Road North, causing an unacceptable loss of privacy to the
occupiers. The proposal is therefore contrary to policy BE24 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and the adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

4. The proposed development by reason of its overall size, height, siting and length of
projection would result in an overdominant/visually obtrusive form of development in
relation to the neighbouring property, Apple Trees, Breakspear Road North and as such
would constitute an un-neighbourly form of development, resulting in a material loss of
residential amenity. The proposal is therefore contrary to policy BE21 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and the adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

5. The proposal, by reason of overlooking of the windows from the adjoining first floor flat
at Harefield Garage in the rear elevation and the poor outlook from the lounge windows of
the ground and first floor flats adjoining the Malthouse Pharmacy due to the length of
projection of the building at the front of the building, would fail to provide an acceptable
standard of residential accommodation, contrary to policy BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and the adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

6. The proposed bin store, due to its siting, size, scale and excessive height, would
appear as a visually intrusive and incongruous feature, detrimental to the visual amenity of
the street scene and harmful to the character and appearance of the Harefield Village
Conservation Area. As such, the proposal is contrary to policies BE4, BE13 and BE19 of
the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and
the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

7. The development is estimated to give rise to a significant number of children of school
age and additional provision would need to be made in the locality due to the shortfall of
places in schools serving the area. Given that a legal agreement at this stage has not
been offered or secured, the proposal is considered to be contrary to Policy R17 of the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and the
adopted London Borough of Hillingdon Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning
Document (July 2008).

A subsequent appeal was dismissed on 12/03/12 and the Inspector's decision letter is
attached at Appendix 1.

An application for conservation area consent (18239/APP/2012/244) also forms part of the
current submission which is also being reported to this committee.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.7

PT1.8

PT1.10

PT1.16

PT1.30

PT1.39

To promote the conservation, protection and enhancement of the archaeological
heritage of the Borough.

To preserve or enhance those features of Conservation Areas which contribute to
their special architectural and visual qualities.

To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity and
the character of the area.

To seek to ensure enough of new residential units are designed to wheelchair and
mobility standards.

To promote and improve opportunities for everyone in Hillingdon, including in
particular women, elderly people, people with disabilities and ethnic minorities.

To seek where appropriate planning obligations to achieve benefits to the
community related to the scale and type of development proposed.

Part 2 Policies:

NPPF
LPP 3.4
LPP 3.5
LPP 3.8
LPP 3.16
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.15
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.3
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.6
LPP 7.8
BE1

BE4
BE13
BE19
BE20
BE21
BE22

BE23

National Planning Policy Framework

2011) Optimising housing potential

2011) Quality and design of housing developments
2011) Housing Choice

2011) Protection and enhancement of social infrastructure
2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

2011) Sustainable design and construction

2011) Water use and supplies
2011
2011) Designing out crime
2011
2011
2011) Heritage assets and archaeology

An inclusive environment

(

(2011)

(2011)

(2011)

(2011)

(2011)

(2011) Sustainable drainage
(2011)

(2011)

(2011)

( ) Local character

( ) Architecture

(

Development within archaeological priority areas

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 92



BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

H4 Mix of housing units

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

H8 Change of use from non-residential to residential

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning

Document, adopted January 2010

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

SPD-PO Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2008
5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 14th March 2012

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

47 neighbouring properties have been consulted and 5 responses have been received, making the
following comments:

(i) Development does not respect the current village kerbside frontage,

(ii) Proximity of building to adjoining properties will lead to a loss of natural light,

(iii) There will be a significant level of overlooking from the proposed upper floor accommodation
leading to loss of privacy to adjoining properties and their gardens, which would be exacerbated by
removal of trees,

(iv) Proposal represents a significant improvement in terms of previous application and its impact
upon the adjoining property, Apple Trees and street scene as bulk has been reduced, block moved
to front which now has more character. Side windows to the left should be translucent and render
on front should be in keeping with the street scene,

(iv) Parking provision for the flats is totally inadequate given that surrounding areas are heavily
parked, particularly Pond Close, the nearest residential street and parking prohibited on
Breakspear Road North. This scheme is likely to require at least 10-12 spaces, plus 3 for visitors. A
further influx of cars will exacerbate an already serious situation and have further detrimental

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 93



impact on emergency services attending the bottom of Pond Close,

(v) Proposed access has poor sight lines, Council should consider road crossing at front of property
to assist with increased pedestrian traffic,

(vi) Parking at rear will introduce open access, resulting in security risk for adjoining properties,

(vii) Proposal, with small amenity area which appears inadequate for the proposed occupancy, will
involve area being intensively used, resulting in noise disturbance with little screening provided for
neighbours,

(viii) Excavations and development will endanger root structure of adjacent TPO'd trees and historic
wall from Harefield House estate,

(ix) Contributions to education funding will not solve problem of an oversubscribed school and a
village with a lack of facilities for young people and familites,

(x) Prior to demolition, Council should conduct a thorough building and site survey to identify all
hazardous material and that it is removed safely and residents be given a copy of results,

(xi) Site security should be a high priority and the Council should ensure contractor fully enforces
this,

(xii) As Breakspear Road is very busy, provision needs to be made for contractor's parking,

(xiii) Contractor's hours need to be specified,

(xiv) 48 hours notice required for those residents who will suffer disruption of utilities,

(xv) Doorway width appears to be under 800mm which is going to be very tight for a wheelchair,
(xvi) Proximity of building to adjoining properties, particularly the vehicle workshops will be a fire
risk,

Harefield Village Conservation Panel:

The Panel has no objection to the proposal which would be a suitable replacement for the 'Swan'.
The plaque with the image of a swan on the front elevation of the pub should be preserved and
included in the front elevation of the new building by condition.

Campaign for Real Ale:

Object to this application, unless it can be shown that a reasonable effort has been made to sell the
place, at a realistic price, to pub companies and breweries for use as a public house.

Thames Water:

Standard advice provided - no objections raised.

Internal Consultees
URBAN DESIGN/CONSERVATION OFFICER:

BACKGROUND: Following the appeal dismissal, discussions were held with agent and applicant.
The scheme has been revised as per advice.

COMMENTS: The main contention was the rear elevation and the resulting roof form. The advice
to reduce the width of the rear element would be detrimental to the scheme's viability. However, the
'butterfly hip' has been revised with a single hip, albeit with a shallower slope. Whilst this is not ideal
and perhaps not the best design solution, it would not be visible from the street scene and would
help to resolve the rear elevation. Therefore, there would be no objections to the proposed roof
form in this instance.

The revisions proposed re the new location of the bins, the defensive space to the rear and the
minor design elements to the front elevation are acceptable.

In lieu of above, it is felt that, whilst the loss of the existing building is regrettable, the new building

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 92



would not be considered detrimental to the appearance of the area and would relate to the local
street scene. It is therefore acceptable. Following conditions should be attached:

Re demolition Consent:

1. Any hidden historic features which are revealed during the course of works shall be retained in
situ, work suspended in the relevant area of the building and the Council as local planning authority
notified immediately. Provision shall be made for the retention proper recording, as required by the
Council

Re new development:

1. All materials should be traditional- clay tiles for the roof and timber doors and windows in
particular. Samples for render, brick, tiles, timber boards (included in the gables) and finials & ridge
tiles, should be submitted for approval to the Council.

2. Details of the window cills & arches, string course, chimneys & pots and the eaves should be
submitted at 1:5 scale or as appropriate.

3. The 'Swan' faience tile to be reinstated on the main elevation should be safeguarded and
appropriately repaired. Further details re the same should be submitted.

Reason: To achieve a high quality of design and standard of materials in order to enhance the
appearance of the conservation area.

CONCLUSION: Demolition Consent should be approved. New development should be approved
with conditions as above.

HIGHWAY OFFICER:

Breakspear Road runs from Ickenham Road in the south to the Harefield village in the north and is
classified as Borough Secondary Distributor Road. The site which used to trade as a public house
is located close to the Harefield village centre, southern side of Breakspear Road, fronting a large
green open space and is currently vacant.

Currently the site is benefiting from single yellow line parking restriction in carriageway and 1.5m
wide concrete footway with a drop kerb across its entire frontage.

Proposal is to demolish existing building and construct a two storey building containing 4 x 2 bed
and 2 x 1 bed flats with associated six secured and covered cycle stands and six off street car
parking spaces at the rear with a single disabled parking space on the front of the development,
which complies with minimum standard required by the Council's UDP. Policy AM14 of the UDP
refers to the Council's vehicle parking standard contained in the Annex 1. The standard requires 6
vehicle parking spaces for similar dwellings. It is also proposed that the existing in/out vehicle
access would slightly be relocated to provide an easy access into the rear off street parking area.

proposal is therefore unlikely to result in an additional on street demand for car parking to the
detriment of highway and pedestrian safety, and is not considered to result in a noticeable increase
(if any) in traffic when compared with existing use of the property.

Consequently, no objection is raised subject to the following conditions and informatives being
applied:

Conditions

1. A suitable condition being attached to ensure that all construction and administration costs in
raising/renewing existing kerbs and reinstatement of footway outside the applicant's property is

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 938



covered by the applicant.

2. The use of the land for vehicle parking shall not be commenced until the area has been laid out,
surfaced and drained and shall be permanently maintained and available for the parking of vehicles
at all times thereafter to the Authority's satisfaction

3. The access for the proposed car parking shall be provided with those parts of 2.4m x 2.4m
pedestrian visibility splays which can be accommodated within the site in both directions and shall
be maintained free of all obstacles to the visibility between heights of 0.6m and 2.0m above the
level of the adjoining highway.

Informatives

1. It is contrary to section 163 of the Highways Act 1980 for surface water from private land to drain
onto the highway or discharge into the highway drainage system.

2. The applicant is advised to contact the Council's Highways Team in respect of the construction
of the vehicle crossover and relocation of lamp columns.

TREE/LANDSCAPE OFFICER:

TPO/Conservation Area: This site is covered by TPO 3 and also located within the Harefield Village
Conservation Area. Therefore, all trees not covered by the TPO are protected by virtue of their
location within the Conservation Area.

Significant trees/other vegetation of merit in terms of Saved Policy BE38 (on-site): There are two
small Larch trees at the end of the rear garden and a small Hawthorn along the side boundary.
Whilst the trees do not constrain the development of the site, they should be retained for their
screening value.

Significant trees/other vegetation of merit in terms of Saved Policy BE38 (off-site): There is a large,
protected Ash (T54 on TPO 3) to the side of the site (at Apple Trees, Breakspear Road North),
close to the front, eastern boundary. The tree has been lopped on one side (eastern side - within
Apple Trees) and now appears un-balanced. However, the tree is re-sprouting and, given time,
should recover.

The main access to the proposed parking area (at the rear of the proposed building) is likely to cut
across half of the Ash tree's root protection area (RPA). No relevant tree-related details have been
provided to show how the proposed access road will be constructed without causing long-term
damage to the protected Ash.

Scope for new planting: The plans appear to show new trees within the site. However the trees are
not detailed. The plans should be amended to show the species of tree and specification (i.e.
standard size and short-staked). However, this matter can also be dealt with by condition at a later
stage.

The plans also appear to show soft landscaping around the proposed car park(s). No further details
have been provided, however this matter can also be dealt with by condition at a later stage.

Does scheme conform to HDAS/SUDS: The proposed scheme appears to show that about 25% of
the frontage has been set aside for soft landscaping. The applicant should also provide details of
materials to be used. This matter can be dealt with by condition at a later stage.
Recommendations: In accordance with BS 5837 (2005), a tree report, tree protection plan and
arboricultural method statement should be provided to show how the proposed access road will be
constructed without causing damage to the protected Ash tree (T54 on TPO 3).

Conclusion (in terms of Saved Policy BE38): As it stands, this scheme is unacceptable because it

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 96



does not make provision for the protection and long-term retention of the protected Ash tree (T54
on TPO 3). Please re-consult on receipt of the requested information.

Further comments

Further to my original advice below and our conversation today, the following points must be
addressed. As explained in my original advice, the current design is unacceptable because it does
not make provision for the protection and long-term retention of the adjacent protected Ash (T54 on
TPO 3). It may be the case that any tree-related information that is provided at this late stage may
still not be acceptable.

In accordance with BS5837:2005, a tree report, tree protection plan and arboricultural method
statement must be provided to show how the access road will be constructed without causing
damage to the roots of the protected Ash tree (T54 on TPO 3). A 'no-dig' design that bridges the
roots of the tree and/or the use of Geoweb is likely to be required.

The access road must have a permeable surface.

The access road must be constructed before the flats.

A landscaping scheme should also be provided to show how the access road will be incorporated
into the proposed scheme (because it is likely to be several centimetres higher than the existing
ground level).

This tree-related information must be provided before the Committee meeting.

Access Officer:

In assessing this application, reference has been made to London Plan July 2011, Policy 3.8
(Housing Choice) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'
adopted January 2010.

The above SPD states that a residential development comprising five or more units should
incorporate a passenger lift designed in accordance with the building regulations. However, as 50%
of the proposed units would be at ground floor level, and as the number of units proposed is only
one above the minimum threshold, the provision of a lift would likely render the scheme unviable. It
is considered therefore, that the design as proposed is principally acceptable in this instance.

In most other respects, the proposal satisfies the core principles of the Lifetime Home Standards.

The following access observations are provided:

1. Level access into the proposed development should be demonstrated through the submission of
a topographical survey.

2. Details of the floor gully drainage should be provided within the bathrooms, should be specified
on plan.

3. The plans should preferably indicate a void to allow installation of a future passenger lift within
the communal areas.

Conclusion: On the proviso that revised plans would be received to address the above
observations, no objection would be raised from an accessibility perspective.

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 9%



SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER:
| have no objections to the proposed development subject to the following conditions:

CONDITION

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the provision
of sustainable drainage systems to drain surface water runoff has been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall demonstrate that runoff can be
attenuated as close to the source as possible in compliance with the London Plan's drainage
hierarchy. The development shall proceed in accordance with the approved scheme.

REASON
To prevent the increased risk of flooding and aid adaptation to climate change in accordance with
PPS25, and London Plan policies.

CONDITION

Prior to the commencement of development, the applicant shall submit a design stage certificate
demonstrating the proposals will meet Code for Sustainable Homes Level 3. The certificate must
be signed by a licensed Code for Sustainable Homes Assessor on behalf of the BRE.

Prior to the occupancy of the development, the applicant shall submit a completion certificate
demonstrating the development has been built to Code for Sustainable Homes Level 3. The
certificate must be signed by a licensed Code for Sustainable Homes Assessor on behalf of the
BRE.

REASON
To ensure compliance with London Plan policies.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

No objections were raised by officers, Members or the Inspector on the previous appeal
as regards the loss of the public house use. The officers report noted that policy 3.16 of
the London Plan (July 2011) protects social infrastructure, but only where there is a
defined need for that type of infrastructure. This could apply to public houses, particularly
where they provide a strong focus for the community, but that is not the case here, where
there are a number of alternative licensed premises in the vicinity. No objections can
therefore be raised to the loss of the use.

As regards the principle of demolition of the existing building, the Inspector on the
previous appeal considered the issue in some detail. In paragraph 8 of the decision letter
dated 12/03/12, he states that 'although the building is not unattractive, it is not part of a
cohesive group and little of its important original detailing survives intact. PPS5 advises
that we should protect what is 'significant' about an asset rather than protecting everything
for its own sake. In this instance, the Council's stance appears to be one of protecting the
building for its own sake and converting it to residential use, notwithstanding the extent of
damage it has incurred or the appellant's indication that it is not readily capable of
conversion for residential use. Although the Council refer to it as a heritage asset they
clearly do not hold it in such high regard to warrant placing it on the local listing. The
building is not designated a heritage asset and | find it is not of sufficient historic or design
significance to warrant its retention, restoration and conversion.'

The replacement of PPS5 with the National Planning Policy Framework in March 2012

does not materially compromise the Inspector's assessment, as this emphasises that
heritage assets should be afforded protection proportionate to their significance.

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 96



Given the Inspector's assessment, it is considered that no further objection to the
demolition of the Swan Public House can be maintained.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (July 2011) advises that Boroughs should ensure that
development proposals maximise housing output having regard to local context, design
principles, density guidance in Table 3.2 and public transport accessibility. Table 3.2
establishes a density matrix to establish a strategic framework for appropriate densities at
different locations.

The site is located within a suburban area and has a Public Transport Accessibility Level
(PTAL) of 1b, where 6 is the most accessible and 1 the least. Paragraph 4.2 of the
Council's HDAS: Residential Layouts advises that for the purposes of calculating habitable
room density, habitable rooms over 20sgm should be counted as two rooms where they
could be sub-divided. However, that is not the case here as accepted by a planning
Inspector on a similar scheme at 8 Sunningdale Avenue (19038/APP/2010/770), which
had a similar room arrangement.

Taking the site parameters into account, the matrix recommends a density of 50-75 u/ha
and 150-200 hr/ha, with an average unit size of 2.7 hr/u. This proposal equates to a
density of 75 u/ha and 200 hr/ha, which accords with the Mayor's guidance in terms of the
maximum acceptable residential density on this site. It should also be noted that the
Inspector in considering the previous scheme, did not consider the higher habitable room
density of 225 to be a factor which in it self itself warranted a refusal of permission.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The application site is located within an Archaeological Priority Area. On the previous
application, English Heritage (Archaeology) advised that in this instance, the proposals
are not considered to have any significant affect on any heritage assets of archaeological
interest and there is no requirement for a pre- or post-determination archaeological
condition. As such, the scheme is considered to comply with policy BE1 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2011).

Officers consider this scheme to be a significant improvement in design terms on the
previous application. In particular, the building has been reduced in size and moved
forward on site so that it would maintain a more traditional relationship with the road,
splitting the difference between the set backs of the adjoining properties, with the
adjoining Malthouse Pharmacy being sited on the back edge of the pavement and Apple
Trees being some 13m back from the road. The revised siting also allows for a larger
undeveloped gap to be retained to the side boundary with Apple Trees, a particular
concern of the previous scheme.

The design of the scheme has also been amended, with a more traditional and simplified
roof form which avoids the need for crown roof elements. Having said that, the Inspector
on the previous scheme was not particularly critical of the building's layout or design,
noting that the character and appearance of surrounding buildings was extremely diverse.

A significant change with this application is that the off-street car parking has been re-
sited from within the front garden area to the rear, accessed via a side driveway. It is
considered that placing the parking at the rear removes the previously proposed large
area of hardstanding from within the front garden area. Furthermore, as noted by the
Inspector, the application site is at a point of transition between a housing area and the
commercial core of the village. Both the adjoining garage and the hall at the rear of the
site are extensively hard surfaced, mainly providing vehicular access and parking so that

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 99



7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

the proposed parking in the rear garden would not be out of character in this context.

The only aspect that was criticised by the Inspector was the bin store. Agreeing with the
Council, the Inspector considered the 5.6m long, 1.5m deep and 2.4m high bin store
within 2m of the pavement to be very prominent and unsightly, harmful to the appearance
of the Conservation Area. The bin store has now been re-sited against the side wall of the
proposed building, where is would not appear as a prominent structure, being viewed
against the bulk of the building.

The Council's Design Officer does not raise any objections to the scheme, subject to
recommended conditions to control materials, details of window cills and arches, string
courses, chimneys & pots and eaves and the 'swan tile to be retained and restored. The
application is therefore considered to accord with policies BE4, BE13 and BE19 of the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and
overcomes refusal reasons 2 and 7.

Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

The application does not form part of or is conspicuous from the Green Belt and therefore
no Green Belt issues are raised by the application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

This is dealt with in Section 7.03 above.
Impact on neighbours

The adjoining residential flats in Malthouse Mews do not contain any windows in their side
elevation which overlook the application site, with their only windows on this side being
skylights on the main roof that would not be materially affected by the proposal.

There are ground floor offices and the owner's first floor flat connected to the garage use
further to the rear of the Malthouse Mews flats that contain side windows that do overlook
the application site. It was previously considered that given the commercial nature of the
ground floor office windows and the fact that the proposed building would not have
previously been sited immediately in front of them, the scheme was acceptable in terms of
the ground floor windows. However, the relationship of the proposed flats with the first
floor flat, which would have had a habitable room window sited some 5.5m beyond the
rear elevation of the proposed building was considered to result in an unacceptable loss of
privacy, with windows in the rear elevation of the proposed block being some 8m from the
first floor flat window within a 45° line of sight. The Inspector also considered this
relationship to be unacceptable in terms of overlooking, having regard to the Council's
design guidance which requires a minimum 21m separation distance.

The current proposal has re-sited the building further forward on its plot so that it would
now be some 14m from the nearest first floor habitable room window and the 45 line of
sight would not be breached. As such, the potential for overlooking and loss of privacy
would be minimal and the scheme complies with Policy BE24 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and design guidance.

The Council also had a concern as regards the length of projection of the proposed
building beyond the rear elevation of the adjoining property to the south west, Apple
Trees, although this was not accepted by the Inspector. With the re-siting of the block, this
relationship is much improved, and the proposed building would not now project beyond
the extended ground floor of this property.

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 86



The proposal is therefore considered to have overcome the Inspector's overlooking
concerns in relation to the adjoining flat within the garage and refusal reason 3 of the
previous application.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

The proposed one and two bedroom flats would have 52sqm and 60sgm internal floor
areas. Although the one-bedroom flats satisfy the Mayor's 50sqm guidance for one-
bedroom flats, the two bedroom flats are very marginally undersized to satisfy the Mayor's
61sgm guidance. However, it is considered that the minimal shortfall is not significant and
would not justify a refusal of the application.

The Inspector also agreed that there would be mutual overlooking of the rear elevation
from the adjoining flat at the garage, but similarly, with the re-positioning of the block, this
concern has been overcome by this proposal.

It was previously considered that with the building being set back on its plot, the habitable
room windows adjoining the Malthouse pharmacy would be poor, as this building would
project some 11.3 beyond them, encroaching upon their 45° line of sight. The Inspector
also cited this as a reason to dismiss the appeal. The building would now only project by
4m to 5m beyond the nearest habitable room windows so that there would only be minimal
encroachment upon the 45° line of sight and their outlook and natural lighting has been
greatly improved.

Private amenity space:

Design guidance requires shared amenity space to be usable and a minimum 20m? and
25m? provided for each one and two-bedroom flat respectively. In this instance, some
170m? of shared amenity space would be provided, which would satisfy this standard. The
plans also show defensive planting in front of all ground floor habitable room windows to
safeguard the privacy of their occupiers.

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The Council's car parking standards advise that the maximum car parking provision for
this proposal would be 9 off-street spaces. The Council's Highway Engineer advises that
the proposed 6 off-street parking spaces with a disabled person's space at the front are
acceptable and that the proposal is unlikely to result in additional on street demand for car
parking to the detriment of highway and pedestrian safety, and would not result in any
noticeable increase in traffic when compared with the existing use of the property.

The access at the side of the building also represents an improvement as compared to
the existing situation with the public house use involving customers reversing out onto
Breakspear Road North.

A cycle store is shown in the rear garden and 1 cycle space per flat would be provided.

The Highway Engineer raises no objections, subject to conditions relating to re-instating
public footpath, car parking to be provided prior to use commencing and a visibility splay.
As such, the scheme is considered to comply with policies AM7, AM9 and AM14 of the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2011).

7.11 Urban design, access and security

Given the scale of the development, it is considered that 4 x two-bedroom and 2 x one-
bedroom flats would be appropriate to comply with policy H4 of the Adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

7.12 Disabled access

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 89



Policy 3.8 of the London Plan (July 2011) advises that all new housing development
should be built in accordance with Lifetime homes standards. Further guidance on these
standards is provided within the Council's Supplementary Planning Document: Accessible
Hillingdon, January 2010.

The Council's Access Officer advises that the scheme satisfies the core principles of
Lifetime homes standards, but a number of detailed matters need revision to ensure full
compliance with Lifetime homes standards. A condition has been added to ensure that the
scheme fully complies with standards.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application, given the nature of the proposed development.
7.14 Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

The Council's Tree Officer advises that the site is covered by a TPO and is within the
Harefield Village Conservation Area. There are no trees on the site that would constrain
the development. However, there are two small Larch trees at the end of the rear garden
and a small Hawthorn along the side boundary which should be retained for their
screening value.

Of more importance is a protected Ash Tree (T54 on TPO 3) on the side boundary in the
front garden of the adjoining property, Apple Trees. This should be a significant feature in
the local landscape but has been subject to some crude tree surgery on the east and
south sides only of its upper crown which has un-balanced its appearance and made the
tree more susceptible to limb breakage in high wind. However, the tree is re-sprouting
and, given time, should recover.

The Tree Officer advises that the main access to the proposed parking area is likely to cut
across half of the Ash tree's root protection area (RPA). No relevant tree-related details
have been provided to show how the proposed access road will be constructed without
causing long-term damage to the protected Ash.

The plans also appear to show new trees within the site. However the trees are not
detailed. This matter can be dealt with by condition at a later stage.

The plans also appear to show soft landscaping around the proposed car park(s). No
further details have been provided, however this matter can also be dealt with by condition
at a later stage.

The proposed scheme appears to show that about 25% of the frontage has been set
aside for soft landscaping. The applicant should also provide details of materials to be
used. This matter can be dealt with by condition at a later stage.

Although not ideal in terms of the protected Ash tree, conditions have been added to take
account of the matters raised by the Tree Officer.
7.15 Sustainable waste management

The proposal makes provision for refuse and recycling storage within a store at the side of
the proposed building.
7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

An Energy and Sustainability Statement has been submitted with the application. The
Council's Sustainability Officer advises that the scheme is acceptable on sustainability
grounds, subject to conditions.

7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PRagd 62



The application does not lie within an area prone to flooding. A condition has been added
to ensure a sustainable drainage scheme is provided.
7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

This application raises no specific noise or air quality issues. A noise insulation scheme to
ensure the flats were adequately protected from noise generation by other occupants
within the building has been controlled by condition.

7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

As regards the responses received, points (i) - (vi), (viii) and (xvi) have been dealt with in
the main report. Point (vii) would be mitigated with secure by design condition. As regards
point (ix), tree matters have been covered in the report, whereas the wall would be
unlikely to be affected by the proposals. As regards the other matters raised, these are
not planning matters.

7.20 Planning Obligations

Policy R17 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) is concerned with securing planning obligations to offset the additional
demand on recreational open space, facilities supporting arts, cultural and entertainment
activities, and other community, social and education facilities through planning
obligations in conjunction with other development proposals. These UDP policies are
supported by more specific supplementary planning guidance.

Given the nature and scale of the scheme, only a potential contribution towards additional
educational provision would be generated. A contribution towards additional education
space of £11,186 is required (Nursery - £1,215, Primary - £4,978, Secondary - £3,076 and
Post-16 - £1,917).

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

No enforcement issues are raised by this application.
7.22 Other Issues

There are no other issues raised by this application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 831



infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

It is considered that this scheme overcomes the Inspector's concerns as regards a
previous appeal for a similar flatted development on this site.

Furthermore, the revised proposal, with the flatted block amended involves a reduced
bulk, simplified design and a siting further forward on its plot is considered to present a
satisfactory appearance within the Conservation Area and would safeguard the amenities
of adjoining residents. It would also provide adequate amenities for its future occupiers. A
significant change has been the siting of 6 off-street parking spaces in the rear garden
which would involve the access passing within the root zone of a protected Ash ftree,
which would need to be mitigated by an appropriate construction for the road, which has
been controlled by condition.

The application is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)

London Plan (July 2011)

Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
HDAS: Residential Layouts & Accessible Hillingdon

Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, July 2008
Consultation responses

Contact Officer: Richard Phillips Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PRagd 82



MW The Planning
= |Inspectorate

Appeal Decisions
Site Visit made on 24 February 2012

by E C Grace DipTP FRTPI FBEng PPIAAS
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 12 March 2012

Appeal A: APP/R5510/E/11/2166151
Swan Inn, Breakspear Road North, Harefield, Uxbridge UB9 6NF

e The appeal is made under sections 20 and 74 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 against a refusal to grant conservation area consent.

e The appeal is made by Mr S Murphy - Clearview Homes Ltd against the decision of the
Council of the London Borough of Hillingdon.

e The application Ref 18239/APP/2011/1586, dated 28/6/11, was refused by notice dated
27/10/11.

e The demolition proposed is: demolition of the existing two storey detached building.

Appeal B: APP/R5510/A/11/2166154

Swan Inn, Breakspear Road North, Harefield, Uxbridge UB9 6NF

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Mr S Murphy - Clearview Homes Ltd against the Council of the
London Borough of Hillingdon.

e The application Ref 18239/APP/2011/1588, dated 28/6/11, was refused by notice dated
27/10/11.

e The development proposed is two storey detached building to contain 6 two-bedroom
self-contained flats with associated parking and amenity space and alterations to
existing vehicle cross-over to the front (involving demolition of existing building).

Decisions

1. Appeal A is dismissed.
2. Appeal B is dismissed.
Main Issues

Appeal A

3. The main issue in Appeal A is whether there are sufficient grounds to justify the
demolition of the existing building and if so whether harm would ensue to the
character and appearance of the Conservation Area.

Appeal B

4. The main issues in Appeal B are whether the proposed development would:
a) preserve the character and appearance of the Harefield Village Conservation
Area;
b) harm the living conditions of occupants in neighbouring buildings;
c) provide a poor standard of privacy and outlook for future occupants; and
d) make inadequate provision in respect of education infrastructure.

http://www.planning-inspectorate.gov.uk

Page 883



Appeal Decisions APP/R5510/E/11/2166151, APP/R5510/A/11/2166154

Reasons

Appeal A

5.

The Council indicate that they have no objection in principle to the loss of the
public house and I saw that several others remain in operation a short distance
away. However, whilst they acknowledge that the Swan is not a statutorily
Listed Building, or included in the local list of buildings of architectural or
historic interest, they nevertheless indicate it was erected by a local builder
and opened as a pub in 1908 and contains attractive detailing which makes a
positive contribution to the character and appearance of the Harefield Village
Conservation Area. The Council’s Conservation Officer regards it as having
architectural merits of its own, whereby it is considered to be a heritage asset
for the purposes of PPS5 and he found no structural grounds to necessitate its
demolition. In the absence of any supporting structural survey or cost viability
assessment of refurbishment to justify the demolition of the building, the
Council consider it to be potentially capable of retention and refurbishment to
preserve the character and appearance of the Conservation Area.

The public house is positioned in the village centre directly opposite the village
green and pond. The building has been vacant for some time and it has been
subject to vandalism. At my visit I saw that the damage to the building was
extensive and the site is now boarded up and overgrown. Whilst Policy HE7.6
in PPS5 advises that evidence of deliberate neglect or damage to the building
should not count in favour of obtaining consent, I have seen no such evidence
in this case, but observed that it appears to be the result of a combination of
wanton vandalism and metal theft.

The demise of the pub follows a nationwide trend as a result of diminishing
financial viability for such premises, and the appellant indicates the design and
layout of the building does not readily lend itself to residential conversion and I
saw it has narrow corridors, doorways and stairs. The Council regard the
building to be a heritage asset, but I would agree with the appellant’s architect-
Dr Miller’s view that it is of an unsophisticated design that has been subject to
later, unsympathetic extensions to 3 sides. I also saw that internally it was
subject to a 1960s makeover, whereby there are no original internal features of
note remaining. Decorative tiling externally has largely been destroyed and
the only noteworthy detail I saw is the Swan motif in the front gable, though
there may be some etched glass remaining in some boarded up windows.

In my appraisal of the Conservation Area, I saw that it contained a very wide
range of buildings of varying styles, ages and uses and these are readily
apparent in the 360 degree panorama from the village green. Although the
building is not unattractive, it is not part of a cohesive group and little of its
important original detailing survives intact. PPS5 advises that we should
protect what is ‘significant’ about an asset rather than protecting everything for
its own sake. In this instance, the Council’s stance appears to be one of
protecting the building for its own sake and converting it to residential use,
notwithstanding the extent of damage it has incurred or the appellant’s
indication that it is not readily capable of conversion for residential use.
Although the Council refer to it as a heritage asset they clearly do not hold it in
such high regard to warrant placing it on the local listing. The building is not
designated as a heritage asset and I find it is not of sufficient historic or design
significance to warrant its retention, restoration and conversion. Also, such a
solution would not resolve the current unsatisfactory parking arrangement.

http://www.planning-inspectorate.gov.uk

PRggd 66



Appeal Decisions APP/R5510/E/11/2166151, APP/R5510/A/11/2166154

10.

My conclusion thus is reinforced by the Harefield Village Conservation Panel
raising no objection to the proposed loss of an old building that has a presence
overlooking the village green as they consider the new building would be of a
style and size that represents an acceptable replacement and suggest the swan
plaque should be preserved and incorporated in the new building.

In light of the above, I conclude that the value of this claimed heritage asset is
relatively low, with the majority of the detailed features of interest irreparably
damaged or already removed and that its loss is outweighed by the benefit of
bringing the site back into beneficial use. I regard these factors as being
sufficient grounds to justify the demolition of the existing building subject to
there being an acceptable scheme of redevelopment to replace it. I therefore
now shall appraise the development proposal in Appeal B.

Appeal B

Effect on Character and Appearance of the Conservation Area

11.

12.

13.

In the first issue, the Council were critical of the design, scale and layout of the
proposed building, insofar as it does not reflect the established character and
townscape around The Green and would be set back further into the site than
the existing structure and extend closer to its flank boundaries. However, the
character and appearance of the buildings here are extremely diverse and I
consider the incorporation of gables to the front elevation reflects architectural
features found in the existing building. The structure would be the same height
as the Swan PH and although it would be wider, it would be set further away
from the road thereby providing for the introduction of some soft landscaping
where currently there is none. Although the Council state that the introduction
of an extensive area of hard surfaced parking would appear visually intrusive
and incongruous, the pub has a dropped kerb along its entire frontage with a
drive on and reverse off parking forecourt that is totally hard surfaced. The
adjacent garage also has forecourt parking as does the nearby Kings Arms. I
do not therefore agree that forecourt parking is alien to the appearance of the
area and I observed that the site stands at the point of transition between a
housing area and the commercial core of the settlement.

Although the proposed building’s roof design also comes in for criticism by the
Council due to the inclusion of some elements of flat “crown” roof, these would
not be readily apparent from the street scene and would serve to provide an
area for concealment of the solar panels. Furthermore, it includes chimneys
and I regard the design as being manifestly superior to the mono-pitch roofs of
the 3 storey 1960s maisonettes at The Poplars situated 30m west of the site.

The Council maintain the proposed building would give rise to an unacceptably
high density of development, having regard to Policy 3.4 of the adopted London
Plan. They indicate the site is within a low accessibility PTAL area where the
density matrix in Table 3.2 indicates a density range of 50-75u/ha and 150-
200hr/ha would be appropriate. The proposal equates to a density of 75u/ha
and 225hr/ha, and the Council consider it to be excessive in terms of the
second parameter of habitable rooms. Whilst density is often an indicator of
the appropriateness of a development I note the number of units corresponds
with the maximum and there appear to be a frequent number of bus services
nearby. Therefore, I do not regard this factor by itself to warrant refusal or
that the scale and mass of the proposed building would cause harm to the
prevailing character and appearance of the Conservation Area.

http://www.planning-inspectorate.gov.uk

Page 805



Appeal Decisions APP/R5510/E/11/2166151, APP/R5510/A/11/2166154

14.

15.

16.

Whilst the Council consider the increased depth of the proposed building and
correspondingly reduced extent of the rear garden would render it visually
intrusive in views from Pond Close to the rear, I saw that it would be set some
distance away from this vantage point and the limited views would be blinkered
by the undistinguished 1970s housing in the foreground. Moreover, the flank
elevation is staggered to reduce its perceived mass when viewed from both
there and Breakspear Road North and its built form would not extend as deeply
into the site as the building immediately to its west.

By setting the building back, it would align its frontage with the adjacent
dwelling “Apple Trees” and position it behind the canopy of the protected ash
tree in its front garden. Whilst it is evident the tree has been subject to some
crude surgery over the neighbouring property and the arboricultural report
recommends further surgery where it extends over the appeal site, to redress
its balance, the tree can be retained and serve to mitigate the impact of the
building’s greater width. The additional exposed area of flank wall of the
adjoining pharmacy is proposed to be softened by new landscape planting.

However, the Council were concerned that the size and siting of the bin store
along the eastern boundary would be visually intrusive and damaging to the
street scene. I agree that the standardised bin housing measuring 5.6m wide
by 2.4m high by 1.5m deep positioned within 2m of the pavement and angled
towards it would be very prominent and unsightly and harm the appearance of
the Conservation Area. The Waste Services Department comments are that
the waste and recycling for 6 flats could be accommodated in one bin and that
the 3 bulk bins proposed would be more than sufficient. This suggests to me
there is scope for reducing its scale and positioning it further away from the
pavement and designing an enclosure that is more sympathetic in appearance
to the historic boundary wall it adjoins, in order to reduce its visual impact. In
the absence of any detailed evidence as to precisely what recycling and waste
storage facilities are required or would be acceptable, I am unable to gauge
whether I could satisfactorily impose a condition to address this matter. 1
therefore find the proposed siting, scale and design of the proposed bin store
would harm the character and appearance of the Conservation Area.

Harm to the living conditions of occupants in neighbouring buildings

17.

18.

The Council’s concerns in the second issue relate to the impact of the proposal
upon occupants in Apple Trees to the east and the flat at adjacent Harefield
Garage to the west. I would generally agree with the appellant that the
change of use from pub to flats would undoubtedly be beneficial to the living
conditions for occupants of those neighbouring dwellings in terms of potentially
less noise and disturbance from the pub garden and the removal of a large
open sided covered smoking area which adjoins the boundary with Apple Trees.

Nevertheless, the Council consider the projection of the proposed building
approximately 9m beyond the rear elevation of the two storey element of Apple
Trees and about 6m further than the single storey part would be overbearing in
the outlook from that property. However, as the appellant demonstrates, no
part of the new building would transect a 45 degree line drawn from the corner
of Apple Trees and a minimum separation distance of 6.5m would be provided.
As the structure would be staggered away from the boundary and a lower
eaves level incorporated into that furthest projecting part, I am content it
would not appear so overbearing in views out from within that property, or its
garden to warrant refusal.

http://www.planning-inspectorate.gov.uk

PRggd 86



Appeal Decisions APP/R5510/E/11/2166151, APP/R5510/A/11/2166154

19.

20.

The rooms served by windows of the flat at the adjacent Harefield Garage have
limited existing privacy as they are located in the elevation facing directly onto
the former pub garden. The change of use of this area to an amenity space for
the proposed flats would to my mind be no worse and could potentially be
better in respect of privacy. However, with the proposed building extending
deeper into the site than the former pub, rear windows in the new flats would
be closer to the nearest of the windows in the garage flat, with the separation
distance being just 8m. The Council referred to the acceptable minimum as
being 21m within the 45 degree line of sight, as specified in their design guide.
Although the appellant considers that relates to facing habitable room window
distance, and that an oblique view does not necessarily require the same
separation distance, I could find no indication in the guide which provides for a
lesser distance in such circumstances.

Consequently, having regard to the minimal 8m separation distance between
them and the fact that the windows in the respective buildings would be within
the 45 degree line of sight, I find there would indeed be potential for mutual
overlooking. Due to the nature of the rooms which are served by these
windows in the proposed flats, I do not consider it would be appropriate to
mitigate the problem by requiring them to be obscure glazed or fixed shut. I
therefore conclude the proposal would give rise to actual and perceived mutual
overlooking between the rear windows of the proposed flats and the flat at
Harefield Garage and thereby contravene Local Plan Policies BE21 and BE24.

Standard of privacy and outlook for future occupants

21.

22.

With regard to the third issue, the Council consider the intended occupants of
the proposed flats would have a poor standard of residential amenity due to
overlooking at the rear from the first floor window of the flat at the adjacent
Harefield Garage. This is the corollary of the previous issue where I have
found there would be an unacceptable loss of privacy due to actual and
perceived overlooking. I consider there is an added factor with regard to the
proposed private amenity space for the two ground floor flats closest to the
garage flat, where the overlooking would be felt particularly acutely due to the
minimal separation distance. Although the appellant maintains that purchasers
would be aware of the situation and claims most flat buyers neither want nor
expect the levels of privacy accorded to family housing, they clearly anticipate
the flats are capable of family occupation by acceptance of the requirement to
provide a payment towards the provision of education infrastructure.

In addition, the Council consider the outlook from the lounge windows of the
front flats closest to the pharmacy would be poor due to the wall projecting
11.3m forward of them, and infringing the 45 degree line of view. Not only
would this two storey flank wall, positioned just 1m away from the side of the
proposed building, appear overbearing and blinker the view, it would also serve
to reduce the level of light entering these lounges which are in the north facing
elevation. Whilst the appellant indicates there would be light from secondary
windows in the side of the building, as these are quite small and positioned just
1m from the flank wall of the pharmacy, they would provide only a modicum of
additional light but not improve the outlook. I therefore conclude on this issue
that the development would provide a poor standard of privacy, outlook and
light in respect of the main living rooms and private amenity space of some of
the flats and thus contravene Local Plan Policies BE24, BE21 and BE20 and
guidance in the adopted HDAS: Residential Layouts SPD.

http://www.planning-inspectorate.gov.uk

Page 807



Appeal Decisions APP/R5510/E/11/2166151, APP/R5510/A/11/2166154

Provision in respect of education infrastructure

23. Finally, in connection with issue four, the appellant submitted a Unilateral
Undertaking dated 13 February 2012 in respect of making a financial
contribution towards the provision of education facilities. The appellant has
accepted the need for such and the sum is based on a formulaic calculation set
out in the Council’s Supplementary Planning Document resulting from annual
assessment of demographic change within school catchments and the
subsequent demand for school places. I am satisfied that the sum of £11,342
is fair and proportionate in light of the evidence base and that it would meet
the statutory tests of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations. The
Council also indicate this suitably addresses their refusal on this ground and
results in the proposal complying with Local Plan Policy R17.

Conclusion

24. Nevertheless, for the reasons given above I concur with the Council that the
development in Appeal B would: harm the character and appearance of the
Harefield Village Conservation Area due to the design, size and location of the
proposed bin store; result in unacceptable mutual overlooking between the rear
windows of the proposed flats and the flat at Harefield Garage; and provide a
poor standard of privacy, outlook and light in respect of the main living rooms
and private amenity space of some of the proposed flats. In the absence of an
acceptable scheme of redevelopment for the site, I consider demolition of the
building in Appeal A would give rise to an unsightly gap within the Conservation
Area and thereby harm its character and appearance. Accordingly, in a very
finely balanced decision, I conclude that both the appeals should be dismissed.

Edward Grace

Inspector

http://www.planning-inspectorate.gov.uk 6
PPage 08



Harefield

The Green

\
, N
]
>
,
, ,
, .
/ /
, ,
/ ‘. ©
’ /I N
,
/ / N,
’ ’
’ ’~
v /’
,
o
S A .
, . .
, . N
) , el
S N
Q' -
N e
4 ey L
: LN .
'

\
\ AR
’ A LT T,
/ i A
’ N
/
,
¢ N
\

'

“\The Coa_gh/i-'l’dggéf

L=~ o

Harefield House Cricket Ground
Notes Site Address LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary The Swan P.H. OF gllg_nLnlil;‘lgDON
For identification purposes only. Breakspear Road North Environment, Education
This copy has been made by or with Harefie|d & Community Services
the authority of the Head of Committee Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Services pursuant to section 47 of the Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale ’
Act 1988 (the Act). .
Unless the Act provides a relevant 1 8239/APP/201 2/242 1:1 a250
exception to copyright. - -
_ Planning Committee Date 1P OS
© Crown copyright and database Aprll
ights 2012 Ord S = I |
qlgoos19283 ranance strvey North Page 9@9 2012 ’1’ } [ [ 1 l :\ (l [ )( ) :\
LONDON




APPENDIX B

North Planning Committee — 7™ June 2012
PART | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 92



external flue to be submitted (to the Planning Department for
approval).

170.

214 WHITBY ROAD, RUISLIP - 35710/APP/2012/171 (Agenda ltem
11)

214 Whitby Road, Ruislip - 35710/APP/2012/171

Change of use of ground floor from retail (Use Class A1) to dental
surgery (Use Class D1).

The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being

put to the vote was unanimously agreed.

Resolved — That the application be approved as per the officer’s
report and the changes set out in the addendum.

Action by

James
Rodger &
Meg Hirani

171.

THE SWAN PH, BREAKSPEAR ROAD NORTH, HAREFIELD -
18239/APP/2012/242 (Agenda ltem 12)

The Swan PH, Breakspear Road North, Harefield -
18239/APP/2012/242

Two storey detached building to contain 6, two-bedroom, self
contained flats with associated parking and amenity space and
alterations to existing vehicle crossover to front, (involving
demolition of existing building). (Resubmission)

Officer's introduced the report. In discussing the application, the
Committee noted that since the Addendum had been published the
applicant had contacted the Council with further information about the
use of a geogrid membrane which sought to address the outstanding
arborial issues concerning the application.

Referring to the officer report, the Committee questioned how
architectural features of the building could be retained if the building
was approved for demolition. Officers clarified this condition related to
removal and retention of the Swan motif from the existing building and
the requirement for this to be integrated into frontage of the proposed
development.

In relation to the protected ash tree highlighted in the report, officers
confirmed that a non standard condition could be used to ensure this
was protected and not damaged during the construction phase.

The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being
put to the vote was unanimously agreed.

Resolved — That the application be approved as per the officer’s
report and the changes set out in the addendum subject to issues
relating to trees being satisfactorily resolved (with the final
decision delegated to the Head of Planning).

Action by

James
Rodger &
Meg Hirani

Page 93




Harefield

The Green

.
.

\
’ S~
. B
MR
/
/
) ’ S
, RN
. / , N
/ /
. /
. . & .-
’ ’ © 27N
’ ’ N \
/ / N , X
/ B .
/ . .
Car Park ’ v
/
‘ . ar rar e R
Y O . N e
(/II \\ ’
.
A \ ’
’ vos f
. ~. ;
’ “\
.. ,
’
.

’
’ '
'

3 @

.

,

\
' e
) LT
N ]
' 3
.
'
J
k -
8

“\The Coa_gtgH’dégg‘ef
Harefield House Cricket Ground

Notes Site Address LONDON BOROUGH

Site boundary The Swan P.H. OF AL LINGDON
For identification purposes only. Breakspear Road North Environment, Education
This copy has been made by or with Harefield & Community Services
the authority of the Head of Committee Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Services pursuant to section 47 of the Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale ’
Act 1988 (the Act). .
Unless the Act provides a relevant 1 8239/APP/201 2/242 1 1 ,250
exception to copyright. - - 4:

_ Planning Committee Date i Sy
© Crown copyright and database Aprll T
ights 2012 Ordnance Surve : = &
ioco10283 o North Page 94 2012 HNHILLINGDON
LONDON




Agenda ltem 10

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address LAND AT WILLOW FARM (FIELD 3116) JACKETS LANE HAREFIELD

Development: Permanent use of the land as a gypsy and traveller caravan site and for the
keeping and breeding of horses with associated operational development,
including the siting of two mobile homes and a touring caravan, retention of
two stable blocks, and the formation of a garden area with the erection of a
garden shed, yard and paddock areas, parking spaces, landscaping and
fencing (Part retrospective application).

LBH Ref Nos: 57685/APP/2011/1450

Drawing Nos: MCA-1 (Location Plan’
Tree and Shrub Planting Schedule
Planning, Design and Access Statement
Un-numbered Existing Site Layout 201~
Proposed Site Layoul
SOC1
SOC2
Agent's covering e-mail dated 23/5/1:

Date Plans Received: 14/06/2011 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 14/07/2011
Date Application Valid: 11/07/2011 17/05/2012
22/05/2012
23/05/2012

DEFERRED ON 10th January 2012 FOR FURTHER INFORMATION .

Members may recall that this application was originally presented to the North Planning
committee on 10th January 2012, where the application was deferred in order to allow correct
plans to be submitted and for further information to be submitted on the uses.

Amended plans have now been submitted, with existing and proposed site plans and elevatione
drawings of the existing and proposed main mobile home. These show a replacement mobile
home to measure 13.5m by 6m, being sited 2.5m from and parallel to the north west boundary
of the site, whereas the existing mobile home is sited at 90° to it and at some 3.5m wide, is
smaller. To the rear of this, and separated by a garden area and a 4.5m by 2.5m garden shed
would be sited a second 12.5m by 6m mobile home with a similar relationship to the boundary
which would replace the existing square shaped temporary showroom type building. To the rea
of this would be sited a touring caravan. At the rear of the site, close to the north western
boundary are two existing 7.5m by 3m stable buildings. The plans also show the two mobile
homes connected to a septic tank.

Since this application was presented to committee in January 2012, the National Planning
Policy Framework has been adopted. This mainly re-asserts previous guidance on the Green
Belt. Paragraph 87 makes clear that inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the
Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special circumstances. The guidance
adds in the next paragraph that such circumstances will not exist unless the potential harm to
the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm, is clearly outweighed by
other considerations.

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 95



A separate document to be read in conjunction with the NPPF has also been produced by
Central Government entitled 'Planning policy for traveller sites'. This advises that local planning
authorities should make their own assessment of need and working collaboratively, develop fait
and effective strategies to meet need through the identification of land for sites. However,
paragraphs 14 and 15 specifically deal with traveller sites in Green Belt. Paragraph 14 states
that traveller sites, both temporary and permanent, in the Green Belt are inappropriate
development.

Paragraph 15 goes on to state:

'Green Belt boundaries should be altered only in exceptional circumstances. If a local planning
authority wishes to make an exceptional limited alteration to the defined Green Belt boundary
(which might be to accommodate a site inset within the Green Belt) to meet a specific, identifiec
need for a traveller site, it should do so only through the plan-making process and not in
response to a planning application. If land is removed from the Green Belt in this way, it should
be specifically allocated in the development plan as a traveller site only.'

No objections are raised to the horse rearing and breeding element of the use of the site and
associated stables which appear rural in scale and appearance and have been discretely sited.
This part of the use would be akin to an agricultural use and would be appropriate within the
Green Belt, maintaining its open character.

The clarification of the proposed works is welcomed. However, the proposal involves increasing
the residential mobile home footprints on site and it is considered that the assessment provided
in Section 7.07 would not fundamentally alter in that the various residential structures would
have an urbanising impact, harmful to the openness of the Green Belt.

As regards the revised scheme and the use of a septic tank, the Sustainability Officer advises:

'Drainage - Use of Septic Tank
| object to the use of a septic tank for the proposed development.

It is a slight improvement from the original scheme which proposed a cesspit. However, there is
no information provided to demonstrate that a septic tank will work in this location. | therefore
object to the proposed development due to the lack of information on drainage:

Circular 03/99 provides a hierarchy for foul drainage requirements of new development. Circula
03/99 states:

This Circular provides advice on the exercise of planning controls on non-mains sewerage and
associated sewage disposal aspects of future development so as to avoid environmental,
amenity or public health problems which could arise from the inappropriate use of non-mains
sewerage systems, particularly those incorporating septic tanks.

The hierarchy is as follows:

- Connection to Public Sewer

- Use of Package Treatment Plant

- Use of Septic Tank

- Use of Cesspool only in exceptional circumstances

The site is in rural location, and the connection to a mains sewer may be uneconomical for the

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 96



development; however this still needs to be investigated as part of a wider non-mains drainage
assessment. Circular 03/99 states:

If, by taking into account the cost and/or practicability, it can be shown to the satisfaction of the
local planning authority that connection to a public sewer is not feasible, a package sewage
treatment plant incorporating a combination of treatment processes should be considered.

A package treatment plant is a more advanced form of treatment than a septic tank and should
always be seen as a preferred solution. Nonetheless, the circular proceeds to state:

Only if it can be clearly demonstrated by the developer that the sewerage and sewage disposal
methods referred to in paragraphs 3 and 4 [i.e. mains drainage or package treatment plant]
above are not feasible, taking into account cost and/or practicability, should a system
incorporating septic tank(s) be considered and proposed if appropriate

The use of a cess pit with the previously approved temporary permissions is considered
acceptable. However, this application is now for a permanent siting, which requires
reconsideration of the preferred method of drainage in line with Circular 03/99.

A septic tank provides no treatment to foul water, relying on gravity to remove solids. The
remaining foul liquid discharge is then directed to a soakaway. In this area, soakaways may nol
be appropriate, which means that raw sewage will either discharge to nearby watercourses
creating a pollution incident, remain at ground level creating a health issue, or flow directly to
groundwater creating a pollution incident. For these proposals, a package treatment plant may
be the best alternative to a mains sewer. However the site is within a source protection zone 1.
The groundwater in this area is highly vulnerable to pollution and therefore any discharges
needs to be carefully considered.

The applicant needs to carry out a full foul drainage assessment in accordance with C03/99
that considers the use of a package treatment plant. It should consider the requirements of
C03/99 and in particular it should also provide details on:

. If the receiving environment is suitable
. What level of sewage treatment is required
. How the groundwater can be protected.

Ecology

The site is designated as a Site of Importance for Nature Conservation. The applicant needs to
respect this designation and the site, which performs a valuable role to play in the ecological
setting of the Borough. The change from temporary siting of existing mobile homes to
permanent will have a long term impact on the Grade 1 SINC. The applicant should therefore b
required to contribute to the enhancement of the SINC.

The proliferation of development on the SINC beyond that already approved, and these
proposals would have a significant effect.

Sustainability

The applicant should be required to submit a sustainability statement demonstrating how the
site can contribute to sustainable development. In particular the statement shall demonstrate
how the applicant shall reduce potable water demand (London Plan Policy 5.15), reduce energy
demands (London Plan Policies 5.3 and 5.2) and promoting ecology (London Plan Policy 7.19).

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 97



With the introduction of the National Planning Policy Framework in March 2012 and the
important changes made to national policy in the 'Planning policy for traveller sites', March 201:
there is now stronger policy support for a refusal of permission on this site. This application is
therefore similarly recommended, but the reasons for refusal have been updated to take
account of the amended plans and the new National Planning Policy Framework.

1. SUMMARY

This application seeks permanent planning permission for the use of the site as a gypsy
and traveller caravan site which has previously been granted twice at appeal, albeit on a
temporary basis.

The application site comprises a 0.25ha triangular shaped field located on the southern
side of Jackets Lane, approximately 700m to the south east of its junction with Northwood
Road. It is located within open countryside which forms part of the Green Belt and a
Countryside Conservation Area and also lies adjacent to a Nature Conservation Site of
Metropolitan or Borough Grade 1 Importance.

The two previous Inspectors did not consider that this site was suitable for a permanent
gypsy and traveller caravan site, the harm to the character and appearance of the Green
Belt and Countryside Conservation Area being too great. They have only been prepared to
grant temporary permission, mainly due to the compelling personal circumstances of the
applicant and his family. The previous Inspectors were also concerned about the Local
Planning Authority's lack of assessment of traveller's needs within the UDP and no
alternative site's being available in the vicinity. A temporary permission would enable the
Local Planning Authority to progress the LDF and for site-specific allocations to be made
(if appropriate).

Although the personal circumstances of the applicant and, to a more limited extent his
family, are still valid and there are still no alternative sites available, in considering the
previous application, the last Inspector considered that the matter was finely balanced so
that a 4 year temporary permission was considered acceptable so that at least the harm
to the Green Belt could be restricted by limiting the duration of the use, in which time it
was hoped the LDF could be progressed. The LDF has been progressed but not to the
extent that specific sites have been allocated (if required). To allow a further period would
be to extend the duration of the harm so that it is considered that on balance, the other
factors, including the personal circumstances of the applicant and his family would no
longer justify a further extension of time with a continuation of the harm.

Furthermore, although this application is described as being for the permanent use of the
land as a gypsy and traveller caravan site and no operational development is described,
the submitted plan does not accurately show existing caravans/mobile homes/buildings
on site. The agent has been advised of the apparent discrepancies and requested to
clarify what is being sought but to date, no such clarification has been forthcoming. As
such, the Local Planning Authority could not be certain of the full extent and impacts of the
works being proposed. Nonetheless, it is clearly evident that the real harm of the
proposals is greater than the submitted plans indicate with respect to the Green Belt and
landscape of the Countryside Conservation Area.

The Environment Agency also object to the absence of an assessment dealing with
pollution risks of foul drainage.

The scheme also fails to demonstrate that it will contribute towards sustainable

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 98



development.

The application is recommended for refusal on these grounds.
2, RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The residential use and associated development is considered to represent inappropriate
development within the Green Belt in terms of the guidance contained in the National
Planning Policy Framework which is harmful by definition to its open character and
appearance. Furthermore, there are no very special circumstances provided or which are
evident which either singularly or cumulatively justify the permanent retention of the
residential use which would overcome the presumption against inappropriate development
in the Green Belt. The development is therefore harmful to the Green Belt and the
landscape of the Countryside Conservation Area, contrary to the National Planning Policy
Framework (including the accompanying Government Guidance 'Planning Policy for
Traveller sites'), Policy 7.16 of the London Plan (July 2011) and Policies 1.1, OL1 and
OL15 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

2 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed mobile homes and associated residential structures are harmful to the
Green Belt and the landscape of the Countryside Conservation Area contrary to the
National Planning Policy Framework, Policy 7.16 of the London Plan (July 2011) and
Policies PT1.1, OL1 and OL15 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

3 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

It is proposed that foul drainage is dealt with by maintaining the connection to a septic
tank. In the absence of a non-mains drainage assessment, it has not been demonstrated
that other more appropriate means of disposal are available and for an assessment to be
made of the risks of pollution to ground and surface waters arising from the proposed
development within this Source Protection Zone 1. As such, it is considered that the
permanent retention of the gypsy/traveller use discharging to a cesspool results in an
unacceptable risk to groundwater quality, contrary to the National Planning Policy
Framework (March 2012) and policy 5.14 of the London Plan (July 2011).

4 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

In the absence of a Sustainability Statement, the proposal fails to demonstrate how the
permanent use of the site will contribute towards sustainable development. As such, the
proposal is contrary to Policies 5.2, 5.3, 5.15 and 7.19 of the London Plan (July 2011).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 99



The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national

guidance.
LPP 3.1 (2011) Ensuring equal life chances for all
LPP 3.8 (2011) Housing Choice
LPP 5.14 (2011) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
LPP 7.2 (2011) An inclusive environment
LPP 7.16 (2011) Green Belt
OL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development
OoL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings
OL15 Protection of Countryside Conservation Areas

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises a 0.25ha triangular shaped field located on the southern
side of Jackets Lane, a mainly single width track which links Northwood Road with Ducks
Hill Road, although the track is gated and bollarded towards its ends to prevent a through
route for vehicles. Vehicular access to the site is from Northwood Road. The site is
roughly halfway along the track's length, being approximately 470m to the south east of its
junction with Northwood Road and 620m to the north west of its junction with Ducks Hill
Road. The site lies within a valley surrounded by open fields and wooded areas, with some
linear residential development along the valley ridges. The immediately adjoining fields are
also in the applicant's ownership and are in use for the breeding and rearing of horses.

The main residential building on site is located at the front of the site, along its north
western boundary and appears to comprise a mobile home which has been placed on a
brick base and has a tiled hipped roof and bay windows. Another temporary building has
been sited to the rear which also has a tiled roof and appears to provide residential
accommodation. Two caravans were also present on site at the time of the site visit and
two stable buildings have been erected towards the rear of the site with this part of the site
being used as a paddock area. A mature hedgerow forms the north western boundary and
an overhead national grid power line crosses the site. A number of public footpaths
surround the site, and meet outside its entrance, namely U10 which runs along Jackets
Lane from Northwood Road, R13 which crosses the field to the south east to join Jackets
Lane further to the east and U11 which runs along the north eastern boundary of the site.
Jackets Lane to the east of the site forms an ancient highway (bridle way) which is not
adopted.

The site forms part of the Green Belt, a Countryside Conservation Area and lies adjacent to
a Nature Conservation Site of Metropolitan or Borough Grade 1 Importance.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is for the permanent use of the land as a gypsy and traveller caravan site.
Two mobile homes are shown on the submitted site plan, sited parallel to the north eastern
boundary of the site, close to its entrance, the larger one sited closest to the entrance and
measuring approximately 13.5m by 6m, the other one behind being 11.5m by 6m. A small

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 100



garden area would separate the two homes, with a shed sited between the buildings, some
4.5m by 2.5m. A 3.5m square of concrete hardstanding is shown at the front of the larger
mobile home. A total of five car parking spaces would be provided in front of the mobile
homes, with a caravan stored on the south eastern side of the smaller mobile home. The
rear of the site would provide a yard area, with the south western part of the site providing a
paddock, separated by a post and rail fence. The two mobile homes would be connected to
a cesspool. Tree planting and a new hedge is also shown along the south eastern
boundary of the site and along the line of the new fencing.

A number of supporting documents have been submitted with the planning application,
namely:-

Planning, Design and Access Statement:

This states that the documents which must be taken into account in determining these
proposals include the Inspector's decision letter dated 20th June 2007; the Council's Local
Development Framework (LDF) including the core Strategy (2011) and any emerging Land
Allocations Development Plan Document(PDP); London's Gypsy and Traveller
Accommodation Assessment; the replacement London Plan (2009); the West London
Housing Partnership Study; the advice contained in Circular 01/2006 (until it is replaced)
and any Government guidance published before the applications are determined.

The statement then lists and briefly describes planning policy, as recorded by the Inspector
in his decision letter at the time of the previous appeal in June 2007. The previous
Inspector's conclusions on the planning policy position are described. The statement then
goes on to describe the current plan policy position.

The statement then refers to the need for gypsy caravan site provision generally in the area
in 2007 as referred to by the Inspector. The statement notes that at that time, 12 families
were on the waiting list for a pitch at the Council's site at Colne Park and future demand
from family growth was expected. The Inspector noted that two bids in 2006 and 2007 for
funding to improve and provide two additional pitches had been made. The statement notes
that that funding is no longer available. The Inspector also noted that the Council's letting
policy would preclude the Connors family from being considered for a pitch. A West
London survey of 7 boroughs (including Hillingdon) is also cited which identified chronic
overcrowding, lack of facilities and poor environmental quality at most public sites.
Furthermore, The neighbouring counties of Buckinghamshire and Hertfordshire GTAAs
found a need for some 100 additional permanent pitches in each area whilst the Thames
Valley Sub-Region, the GTAA indicated a requirement for 187 additional pitches for the
period 2006 - 2011. The Inspector concluded that there was a clear need for additional
gypsy accommodation.

The statement considers that that need has not diminished over the intervening period and
the initial Replacement London Plan (2009) originally specified the level of need for
additional pitches in Hillingdon. It states that the prospects of the Connors family of
securing an alternative site were slim indeed and the situation has not improved. There is
still no suitable, affordable, available alternative site in the locality to which they could
relocate.

The statement then considers the occupation of the site and compares the 2007 situation
with that of the present. In 2007, the site was occupied by Mr Michael Connors (Snr.) and
his children, Michael (Jnr.), his wife Barbara, Luke (aged 17 years), Johnny (16) and Mary
(14). Since that time, Michael (Jnr.), his wife, Barbara and their two sons (Michael, aged 3

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 101



years and Tommy (3 months) have vacated the site for a traditional travelling lifestyle. Luke
has married and with his wife Anne and their daughter, Kathleen (9 months) is shortly to
move into a house. Mary and her partner are away from the site travelling. Mr Connors
eldest daughter Elizabeth (aged 22 years) has returned to the site with her two children,
Michael (18 months) and Ellie-Marie (4 months). Johnny has remained on site and helps
with the horse breeding.

The statement goes on advise that although the children have now completed their formal
education, the medical circumstances of Michael Connors (Snr.) remain a significant
material consideration. The Inspector previously attached significant weight to Mr Connors'
poor health and the good access this site afforded to Mount Vernon and Harefield
Hospitals. The statement advises that Mr Connors (Snr.) condition has deteriorated further
over the last 4 years. Also, Ellie-Marie suffers from a rare genetic condition which leads to
the build up of amino acid in the blood and brain which if left untreated, can lead to severe
learning difficulties. Ellie-Marie is seen regularly by consultants at Great Ormond Street
Hospital and Elizabeth is visited by a nurse and a social worker on a twice-weekly basis.

The statement concludes by stating that the reduction in the number of households on the
site, with less domestic activity and paraphernalia and vehicle parking in the open has
reduced the impact of the site on the Green Belt. There is considerable scope for structural
planting to add to the planting that has already taken place. Permanent permission would
enable the site layout and landscaping to be finalised and fully implemented.

Tree and Shrub Planting Schedule:

This details the essentially native hedge and tree planting, including Hawthorn, Hazel, Holly
and Blackthorn.

Supporting Information:

A confidential report from the Gypsy Council has also been submitted which details the
health needs of Michael Connors (Snr.) and Ellie-Marie and includes supporting
collaborative information from hospitals.

Supporting letters have also been received from health visitors and the Harefield Children's
Centre.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History

An application for the part retention and use of the site as a permanent private family
caravan site (6 pitches) (57685/APP/2002/2129) was refused on 24/04/2003.

Following an appeal against the serving of an enforcement notice, an application was
deemed to have been made for the use of land for the stationing of mobile homes and
caravans for residential purposes and the parking and storage of commercial vehicles
(57685/APP/2003/241). Following a Public Inquiry held in July and October 2003, the
enforcement notice was quashed and planning permission was granted on 13 January
2004 for the use of the land for a mixed use comprising the stationing of mobile homes and
caravans for residential purposes, the parking and storage of commercial vehicles and the
breeding and keeping of horses and associated operational development. The permission
was personal to the appellant, Mr Michael Connors, only and limited to a 2-year temporary
period. The Inspector also imposed a number of other planning conditions including a
condition allowing no more than one mobile home and one touring caravan or

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 102



caravanette/motor home to be stationed on the site at any time. The temporary permission
expired on 13 January 2006.

Two applications were submitted seeking to discharge condition 4(i) of the Inspector's
decision notice requiring details of the site layout to be submitted. The first of these
(57685/APP/2004/418) was refused on the 7 May 2004 on the grounds that the proposed
stables/barn, horse trailers, garden and shed for the mobile home would be detrimental to
the openness of the Green Belt. The second application (57685/APP/2004/1083) was
approved on the 27 May 2004 which showed a mobile home parallel with the northern
boundary of the site with a caravan behind.

An application for the renewal of planning permission granted on appeal dated 13/01/2004
(57685/APP/2006/120) was refused on 27/07/2006 for the following reasons:

1. The development is considered to represent inappropriate development within the Green
Belt in terms of the guidance contained in Paragraph 3.4 of Planning Policy Guidance Note
2 (Green Belts). Furthermore, there are no very special circumstances provided or which
are evident which either singularly or cumulatively overcome the presumption against
inappropriate development in the Green Belt. The development is therefore contrary to the
aims of Policy OL1 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

2. The development, by reason of its siting, size, appearance and the additional traffic
generated, is prejudicial to the character, openness and visual amenities of the Green Belt
and Countryside Conservation Area. As such, it is contrary to the aims of Policies OL1 and
OL15 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

Following an appeal and a public enquiry, permission was granted on 20/06/07 but again,
the permission was made personal to Mr Michael Connors (senior) and his resident
dependants, Mr Michael Connors (junior) and/or his wife Barbara and their resident
dependants, limited to a 4 year period and no more than 3 caravans (of which no more
than one shall be a static or mobile home) shall be stored at the site.

An application seeking to discharge details of the internal layout of the site was submitted
(57685/APP/2007/2898) but not determined.

4, Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.1 To maintain the Green Belt for uses which preserve or enhance the open nature o
the area.

Part 2 Policies:

LPP 3.1 (2011) Ensuring equal life chances for all

LPP 3.8 (2011) Housing Choice
LPP 5.14 (2011) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 103



LPP 7.2 (2011) An inclusive environment
LPP 7.16 (2011) Green Belt

OoL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development
oL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings
OL15 Protection of Countryside Conservation Areas

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 18th July 2011

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

53 surrounding properties have been consulted, three site notices have been displayed (one outside
the site, the other two at each end of Jackets Lane) and the application has been advertised in the
local press as being a departure from the development plan. 15 responses objecting to the proposal
have been received, together with a petition with 64 signatories. 2 responses in support have also
been received.

The petition states:

We the undersigned appeal against new planning application for the land at Willow Farm (3116)
Jackets Lane, Harefield, submitted by Mr Michael Connors, for Permanent use of land as Gypsy &
Traveller Caravan site, Hillingdon Ref. No. 57685/APP/2011/1450.

Letters of objection raise the following matters/concerns:-

(i) Proposal would spoil the quality of the area,

(ii) This land has always been designated as Green Belt and has never been re-zoned for any type
of housing, whether it be for travelling people or any other,

(iii) If this settlement should be permitted to remain, it would open up the whole valley to further
planning applications, which would surely be hard to refuse and cause more destruction of Green
Belt land,

(iv) In 2003, the Secretary of State said that this settlement was inappropriate but granted temporary
permission in order for Mr Connors' children to complete their education which has now been done
and for Mr Connors senior to receive medical care, yet there is still no sign of the family moving from
this Green Belt land,

(v) The Connors family say that they cannot live in a house made of bricks and mortar and because
of their background have refused Council property. However, their static mobile home has not
moved in 10 years and when they do go travelling, the caravan is taken,

(vi) The Connors family have stated that they need to be there for the horses/livestock, but other
keepers/breeders of horses in the local area do not have caravans/mobile homes on site. If there
should be a problem, owners sit in their cars and wait in case they need a vet or the mare foaled. If
anybody else placed a mobile home on the land, the Council would not allow it. The travelling
community should not be treated differently,

(vii) If permission granted, other family members and relatives might move in and site could become
an encampment like site in Essex,

(viii) Has Hillingdon done the work of identifying new sites for the travelling community?

(ix) House prices in the area will be affected,

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 104



(x) concerns regarding anti-social behaviour,

(xi) Current employment brings me into contact with travellers and | feel this location is not one
where they or the local community would benefit,

(xii) Walkers will avoid this area if permission passed,

(xiii) Will be able to see traveller/gypsy site,

(xiv) Area has many different animals and is more like a nature reserve which will be damaged by
gypsy site,

(xv) People do have a right to live somewhere but there must be more remote sites around the
country,

(xvi) Scheme just to let Willow Farm make money,

(xvii) I have just purchased a house in Harefield and if | had known this was going ahead | would not
have considered moving to Harefield,

(xviii) I note that in 2007, similar plans were not approved,

(xix) Local facilities will be stretched,

(xx) What legislation exists to restrict usage?

(xxi) Jacket Lane is a bridle path to Ducks Hill which goes back to the Doomsday Book. 'Willow
Farm' used to be part of 'Battlerswell Farm'. When the farm was sold, field 3116 was sold to a Mr
Edwards for his daughter to keep her pony. A small hardstanding was put there for a barn/stable for
the pony in bad weather, nothing more. Many years passed and Jackets Lane was just wide enough
to walk down with a small stream at the side. After a long while, the pony was moved and the field
lay empty and overgrown. In January 2002, a man introduced himself as 'Paul' to neighbours and
said he had bought the field for his wife and daughter to keep their horses and would be tidying up
the field and making the lane wide enough to get his car down. The lane became wider and wider
and at the end of July they all moved in and the rest is history,

(xxii) Jacket Lane now a two lane road with cars and trucks coming up and down the lane at all
hours,

(xxiii) The settlement has grown and more young children live there who will no doubt want to
explore their own and neighbouring surroundings which could threaten neighbouring property, given
reputation of travelling people,

(xxv) It has never been confirmed that Mr Connors is the legal owner of 'Willow Farm' and that they
are still the current owners,

The responses in support of the proposal (albeit from people who do not reside within the borough)
make the following points:

(i) I have known the Connors for at least 10 years and visit Jackets Farm at least twice a week with
my two children who have great pleasure in seeing and riding the horses. The Connors are always
welcoming and very polite,

(ii) I have known Mr Connors for over 30 years and when he moved to Jackets Farm, | would see
him on a regular basis and still go there every other day. He is very helpful and very well mannered
and has a lot of time for people. | help him maintain Jacket Farm and we both share a great interest
in horses.

Nick Hurd MP:

| have been contacted by several constituents who are very concerned over the proposed planning
application for the land to be used as a permanent gypsy and traveller caravan site. The proposed
development will be in violation of Green Belt guidelines.

| share their concerns and also wish to register my objection to this planning application.

Ward Councillor: Requests that the application be heard at committee.

Northwood Residents Association:

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 105



The Northwood Residents Association wishes to object to this proposal on the grounds that the
development would be on Green Belt land contrary to the UDP Part One Policies - notably Pt1.1 'To
maintain the Green Belt for uses which preserve or enhance the open nature of the area'. In no way
could this proposal enhance the open nature.

Harefield Village Conservation Panel:

Although the site does not fall within the Harefield Vilage Conservation Area, the panel have
commented thus:

1. The layout shown in the drawing MCA-2, submitted as part of the planning application, does not
show correctly the layout of elements on the site. When viewed from the gate to the property,
instead of a mobile home parallel to the site boundary there is what appears to be a substantial
single storey building at right angles to the boundary - see photograph attached. It was not possible
to see what lay behind this building.

2. The page with site ownership details was not included with the application form.

The Panel objects to the application for permanent use of the object site as a gypsy and traveller site
for the following reasons:

a. The use proposed for the site is quite inappropriate for an undisturbed and attractive area of
Green Belt.

b. The decision to grant temporary use of the site as a gypsy and traveller site in 2007 was based
upon Mr Connor Snr's health needs and the proximity of local hospitals and schooling for his
children. The children have now been educated and various members of the family have left the site
and Mr. Connor's chronic health conditions are deteriorating.

c. Having left previously, some members of the family are now returning to the site with children
creating a succession which was not envisaged in the original consent for a temporary use.

d. It is noted from the colouring of the site plan that the whole of Field 3116 appears to be in the
same ownership as the object site. The Panel is concerned that if permanent use is granted for the
object site it would just be a matter of time before the whole of the field became a gypsy and traveller
site with a significantly increased area.’

Harefield Tenants and Residents Association:

Our members discussed this application at our last meeting and we wish to register our objections
to the permanent use of this Green Belt land as a Gypsy and Traveller site.

It is totally in the Green Belt and residential use is against planning policy guidance. In our view there
are not very special circumstances shown for the Council to go against Green belt planning policy
and we therefore request refusal and a time scale for the removal of all the associated structures
present on the land.

The Council meets the need of the travelling community by providing a site in the Borough for them
at West Drayton.

Environment Agency:

We object to the proposed development as submitted because it involves the use of a non-mains
foul drainage system. No assessment of the risks of pollution to ground and surface waters have
been provided by the applicant. We recommend that planning permission should be refused on this
basis.

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 106



Reason

The site is in Source Protection Zone (SPZ) 1, which is an area of high ground floor vulnerability
which supplies an abstraction point for drinking water.

The application form indicates that foul drainage is to be discharged to a cesspool. The applicant
has not justified the use of non-mains drainage facilities in line with DETR Circular 03/99. It advises
that full and detailed consideration is given to the environmental criteria listed in Annexe A.

The application does not provide a sufficient basis for an assessment to be made of the risks of
pollution to ground and surface waters arising from the proposed development.

This poses significant risks to the environment which cannot be overcome by a condition.
Resolution

The applicant needs to complete and submit a satisfactory foul drainage assessment (see
http://www.environment-agency.gov.uk/reseaerch/planning/33368.aspx).

Within this the applicant needs to:

* Justify the use of a cesspool over preferred alternative means of foul disposal, for example, mains
foul sewage system, septic tank or package treatment plant in accordance with the hierarchy set out
in DETR Circular 03/99/WO Circular 10/99 and Building Regulations Approved Document H.

* Demonstrate London Clay in the area is thick enough and provides enough coverage to protect the
drinking water aquifer beneath.

Thames Water:
Waste Comment

Thames Water would advise that with regard to sewerage infrastructure we would not have any
objection to the above planning application.

Water Comment

With regard to water supply, this comes within the area covered by the Veolia Water Company.

Internal Consultees
TREES AND LANDSCAPE OFFICER:

LANDSCAPE CONTEXT: The site lies within an undulating valley landscape characterised by a
mosaic of woodland and farmland, with field boundaries defined by hedgerows with trees. It is
currently occupied by two mobile homes, a caravan and shed which are situated within a yard and
garden. The site is enclosed by a mix of post and rail fences, with some mature and some young
hedgerows with trees. This area, in the north of the Borough, is identified within London's Natural
Signatures as the 'Ruislip Plateau Natural Landscape Area', as designated by Natural England.

The site lies within an area of designated Metropolitan Green Belt, at the junction of Jackets Lane (an
Ancient Highway) and three statutory footpaths (ref. U10, U11 and R13), which link Ducks Hill Road
(Northwood) to the east and Harefield to the west. Hillingdon's draft Landscape Character
Assessment includes a detailed description and appraisal of this area which it refers to as 'South
Harefield Wooded Undulating Farmland' (ref.LCA D1). Several parcels of land close to the site are

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 107



designated Nature Conservation Sites of Metropolitan or Borough Grade 1 Importance. There are no
Tree Preservation Orders on, or close to, the site, nor does it fall within a designated conservation
Area.

PROPQOSAL: The proposal is to extend a temporary permission to a permanent use of the land as a
gypsy and traveller site. The application includes a drawing which shows the existing field hedge
along the north-west boundary and a new native hedgerow with trees along east boundary.

LANDSCAPE CONSIDERATIONS: Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of
topographical and landscape features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping
wherever it is appropriate.

* No trees or other landscape features will be affected by the proposal. However, the location of the
site, which is on a hillside, is clearly visible from Jackets Lane and the vantage points from footpath
ref. R13 to the east. Approaching the site from the west, along footpath ref. U10, intervening hedges
and woodland effectively screen the site from view, when the vegetation is in leaf. There is little
scope for providing additional planting to screen views across the valley in what is predominantly
open countryside.

* One of the five purposes of including land in the Green Belt is to assist in safeguarding the
countryside from encroachment (PPG2). The visual effect of retaining the mobile homes, caravan
and outbuildings has an urbanising influence in an area which is predominantly agricultural and
pastoral. Again it is not considered that the impact of the development on the character and
appearance of the surrounding landscape can be overcome by landscape conditions.

RECOMMENDATIONS: For the reasons above, | object to this proposal. The retention of the mobile
homes and ancillary buildings/caravans is visually intrusive and inappropriate in the Green Belt. They
fail to harmonise with the landscape character and visual amenity of the area.

SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER:
Drainage - Use of Cess Pit
| object to the proposed development due to the lack of information on drainage:

Circular 03/99 provides a hierarchy for foul drainage requirements of new development. Circular
03/99 states:

This Circular provides advice on the exercise of planning controls on non-mains sewerage and
associated sewage disposal aspects of future development so as to avoid environmental, amenity
or public health problems which could arise from the inappropriate use of non-mains sewerage
systems, particularly those incorporating septic tanks.

The hierarchy is as follows:

* Connection to Public Sewer

* Use of Package Treatment Plant

* Use of Septic Tank

* Use of Cesspool only in exceptional circumstances

The site is in rural location, and the connection to a mains sewer may be uneconomical for the
development, however this still needs to be investigated as part of a wider non-mains drainage
assessment. Circular 03/99 states:

If, by taking into account the cost and/or practicability, it can be shown to the satisfaction of the local
planning authority that connection to a public sewer is not feasible, a package sewage treatment

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 108



plant incorporating a combination of treatment processes should be considered.

A package treatment plant is a more advanced form of treatment than a septic tank and should
always be seen as a preferred solution. Nonetheless, the circular proceeds to state:

Only if it can be clearly demonstrated by the developer that the sewerage and sewage disposal
methods referred to in paragraphs 3 and 4 [i.e. mains drainage or package treatment plant] above
are not feasible, taking into account cost and/or practicability, should a system incorporating septic
tank(s) be considered and proposed if appropriate.

The use of a cess pit with the previously approved temporary permissions is considered acceptable.

However, this application is now for a permanent siting, which requires reconsideration of the
preferred method of drainage in line with Circular 03/99. The circular discourages the use of Cess
Pits/Pools.

Whilst this Circular primarily deals with septic tank drainage systems, the attention of developers
and local planning authorities is drawn to the implications of the use of cesspools. In principle, a
properly constructed and maintained cesspool, being essentially a holding tank with no discharges,
should not lead to environmental, amenity or public health problems. However, in practice, it is
known that such problems occur as a result of frequent overflows due to poor maintenance,
irregular emptying, lack of suitable vehicular access for emptying and even through inadequate
capacity.

The Environment Agency also discourages the use of Cess Pools for permanent drainage
purposes. Their Pollution Prevention Guideline 4 states:

If you require a temporary sewage disposal system whilst you are preparing a permanent solution, a
cesspool might be a suitable method. We don't encourage the use of cesspools and you might
need permission from the local authority Environmental Health Officer. In Scotland, the Building
Standards do not permit the use of cesspools.

The main issue with cesspools is down to the mismanagement which has resulted in considerable
complaints to the Environment Agency, particularly in rural areas. Cesspools require a strict
management regime to maintain safety and avoid pollution. They require emptying by specialist
permitted contractors to take the contents to sewage treatment works. These contractors can be
costly, particularly if called out in an emergency i.e. when the tank unexpectedly reaches capacity.
The mismanagement referred to in Circular 03/99 is associated with the need to reduce the reliance
on an expensive third party contractor. Mismanagement techniques include putting holes in the base
of cess pools so they leak into the ground, or emptying contents into nearby watercourses. These
save individuals money by not requiring expensive contractors, but can have significant impacts on
the environment through the discharge of untreated sewage.

The best course of action is to avoid the use of cess pools in the first instance as outlined in the
hierarchy in Circular 03/99.

For these proposals, a package treatment plant may be the best alternative to a mains sewer.
However the site is within a source protection zone 1. The groundwater in this area is highly
vulnerable to pollution and therefore any discharges needs to be carefully considered.

The applicant needs to carry out a full foul drainage assessment in accordance with Circular 03/99
that considers the use of a package treatment plant. It should consider the requirements of Circular
03/99 and in particular it should also provide details on:

* If the receiving environment is suitable

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 109



* What level of sewage treatment is required
* How the groundwater can be protected.

Cess pools should only be seen as a last resort and may preclude the permanent siting of
development in this area. Any use of cess pools on this site should not set a precedent to allow the
proliferation of further development.

Sustainability

The applicant should be required to submit a sustainability statement demonstrating how the site
can contribute to sustainable development. In particular the statement shall demonstrate how the
applicant shall reduce potable water demand (London Plan Policy 5.15), reduce energy demands
(London Plan Policies 5.3 and 5.2) and promoting ecology (London Plan Policy 7.19).

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH OFFICER:
| do not wish to object to this proposal.

| have spoken with the Environmental Health Officer in Private Sector Housing Enforcement Team
about this proposal and am advised that the site would need to comply with model site licence
conditions under the Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960.

| note that foul drainage is proposed to be made to a cesspit.

Should planning permission be granted, please add the construction site informative.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

As confirmed by the Inspectors in considering the two previous appeals (App. Nos.
57685/APP/2003/241 and 2006/120 refer), the use of the site for a gypsy and traveller
caravan site represents inappropriate development within the Green Belt.

Paragraph 3.2 of the PPG2: Green Belts makes clear that inappropriate development
inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt and should not be
approved except in very special circumstances. The guidance adds that such
circumstances will not exist unless the harm is clearly outweighed by other considerations
and that it is for the applicant to show why permission should be granted.

The two previous Inspectors both considered that the use was only acceptable on a
temporary basis, given the personnel circumstances of the family and the lack of an
adequate assessment of gypsy and traveller needs and plot/pitch provision in the UDP.

In considering the latest appeal (App. No. 57685/APP/2006/120), the Inspector in his
decision letter dated 20th June 2007 at paragraph 15 stated:

'Inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt (PPG2, paragraph
3.2); such definitional harm is accepted by the appellant. In addition, | consider harm would
arise from the presence on site of a mobile home and touring or other caravans and any
ancillary buildings such as a shed. The site is in an area of predominantly open countryside
and so the items already on site or sought detract from the area's openness (which
paragraph 1.4 of the PPG notes is the most important attribute of Green Belts). The
developed, occupied appearance of site results in encroachment into the countryside and
some harm to the Green Belt's visual amenities.'

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 110



The Inspector goes on in paragraph 18 that:

'The appeal site is in attractive, undulating countryside, the landscape quality of which is
recognised by its CCA designation (which remains part of the development plan and so |
attach little weight to speculation about its continuance). The site is clearly visible from its
Jackets Lane entrance and its various structures can also be seen particularly readily
across the valley from the south-east end of Jackets Lane (and, | would expect, from some
of the dwellings in that area)."

The Inspector concludes the assessment on the impact upon the character and
appearance of the area by stating that the proposed development would cause
unacceptable harm to the character and appearance of the surrounding area.

The Inspector then goes on to assess other considerations. He states in paragraph 23 that

"The previous appeal Inspector deplored the absence of an appropriate gypsy policy in the
UDP and found the Council's failure to undertake a proper quantitative assessment of the
accommodation needs of gypsies to be a matter of serious concern. The UDP policy
position is unchanged and does not conform with the more recent London Plan.’

Previously, policy 3A.11 (London's travellers and gypsies) of the London Plan (February
2004) stated that boroughs should, in co-ordination with other boroughs, assess the
accommodation needs of gypsies and travellers and review pitch capacity and formulate
policies to protect existing sites, establish criteria for new sites and identify them where
shortfalls occur.

More recently, there has been some discussion as to how demand for gypsy/traveller sites
should be assessed which has influenced changes to national and strategic guidance on
gypsy and traveller sites.

In April 2011, the Government produced a Consultation Paper on PLanning for Traveller
Sites which it is intended will replace Circular 01/2006. As the guidance is at consultation
stage, only limited weight can be given to it.

In the explanation of the proposed new policy stance, this advises that discrimination and
poor social outcomes among traveller communities must be addressed (paragraph 2.15)
but that it also wants to tackle unauthorised development in all its forms (paragraph 2.16)
and goes on to to advise that the Government:

"... will not tolerate abuse of the planning system by a small minority of travellers, who set
up unauthorised developments which create tension, undermine community cohesion and
create resentment against the over-whelming majority of law-abiding travellers who do not
live on unauthorised sites'.

The attached Draft Planning Policy Statement states at paragraph 4:

"The Government's overarching objective is to ensure fair and equal treatment for
travellers, in a way that facilitates the traditional and nomadic way of life of travellers while
respecting the interests of the settled community.'

The Government specifically states at paragraph 5 that one of the objectives for planning
as regards traveller sites will be to protect the Green Belt from development and proposes

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 111



greater clarity at paragraph 14 by stating that traveller sites in the Green Belt are
inappropriate development, whereas Circular 1/2006 advises that they are 'normally
inappropriate development'.

The draft guidance goes on to advise that development plans should have policies and
strategies in place for delivering their locally set targets, including identifying specific sites
that will enable continuous delivery of sites for at least a 15 year period and a 5 year supply
of of deliverable sites. In terms of transitional arrangements, the draft guidance states that
if after six months of the new guidance being adopted, a five year supply of deliverable sites
is not available, local planning authorities should considerr favourably applications for the
grant of temporary planning permission.

As regards the Local Development Framework which will replace the UDP, the issue of
gypsy and traveller pitch provision is addressed in emerging Core Strategy Policy H3
(Gypsy and Traveller Pitch Provision). This sets broad criteria for the location of sites to
accommodate the specific needs of the travelling community. Any policy on gypsy and
traveller pitch provision would need to be in general conformity with the London Plan.

The 2004 London Plan has now been replaced and policy 3.8 advises that whilst working
with the Mayor, boroughs should ensure that 'the accommodation requirements of gypsies
and travellers (including travelling show people) are identified and addressed in line with
national policy, in co-ordination with neighbouring boroughs and districts as appropriate.'
This has undergone various revisions prior to the replacement London Plan being adopted
in July 2011. For instance, in October 2009, the then Policy 3.9 of the Draft Replacement
London Plan stated that Hillingdon should provide 22 traveller pitches between 2007-2017.
In March 2010, the Mayor proposed minor alterations to this policy with Hillingdon's pitch
provision target being reduced to 7 pitches. In September 2010, Further Minor Alterations to
then policy 3.9 were published by the Mayor, stating that 'boroughs are best placed to
assess the needs of these groups.... It was therefore proposed to remove borough
specific pitch provision targets from the policy. In March 2011, the Examination in Public
(EIP) Panel Report was published and proposed the inclusion of sub-regional targets for
gypsy and traveller pitch provision in policy 3.9. In July 2011, the Mayor adopts the London
Plan and chooses not to accept the Inspector's recommendations on policy 3.9. The
provisions of the policy are thus consistent with the September 2010 Proposed Minor
Alteration.

As a result of the changes to the Mayor's policy on Gypsy and Traveller Provision, policy H3
in the Submission version of Hillingdon's Core Strategy states that the Council will work
with the Mayor to ensure that needs are identified and the accommodation requirements for
gypsy and traveller groups are addressed locally and in line with national policy.

Therefore, in terms of emerging policy, there is nothing to suggest that this site should now
be considered as being more suited to provide a permanent gypsy/traveller site.

The two previous Inspectors were only prepared to grant temporary permission on this site
given the lack of any alternative gypsy/traveller sites in the vicinity and the compelling
personal circumstances of the applicant and his family. In considering the last appeal (App.
No. 57685/APP/2006/120), the Inspector noted that during the course of the Inquiry, the
Council and the appellant reached an agreement that the appropriate way forward would be
to grant a temporary consent for 4 years, subject to conditions, so that the level of need for
gypsy sites could be identified and properly addressed through the Local Development
Framework (LDF). This agreement was taken into account.

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 112



Although there are still no alternative gypsy/traveller sites available in the vicinity of the
application site, progress is being made to ensure that the emerging LDF does conform to
the London Plan (July 2011) and now the NPPF that will include appropriate assessment
and specific site allocation (if appropriate). However, the numerous changes to the London
Plan has delayed the process.

As regards the personal circumstances of the applicant and his family, in considering the
last appeal, the Inspector noted that Michael Connors (Snr.) continues to suffer from
chronic ill health requiring numerous hospital (Hilingdon or Mount Vernon) visits and
surgery consultations and he and other family members are registered with the Harefield
Health Centre. The children also had health problems, but the Inspector noted that the
children's below average health is not untypical of the gypsy community and although
access to health services would be more difficult with no settled base, this did not provide
a compelling reason by itself for the occupation of the site. However, the Inspector did
attach significant weight to the benefit of stability for Michael (Snr.) close to medical
facilities where staff are familiar with his condition.

The Inspector also considered the educational needs of the children and noted that Mary
was at an important stage in her education at Harefield Community College and although
there was nothing to suggest that her needs could not be met as well elsewhere,
unplanned moves would be particularly disruptive at such a stage and so some weight was
attached to this.

The last Inspector concluded:

'... the family's needs as gypsies are not unusual. Nor do | consider permanent residence
on the appeal site to be essential to look after the horses.

On the other hand, the plan policy shortcomings are a supporting matter and there is a
general need for additional gypsy accommodation in the area, notwithstanding the lack of a
London GTAA. The medical needs of Mr Michael Connors (senior) and the education needs
of Mary are particularly significant. There is no known available, affordable or suitable
alternative land for the family to move to and, in light of this, the interference in the family's
human rights would have a disproportionate effect. When these matters are taken in
combination and with the main parties' suggestion of a temporary permission, | conclude
that the harm to the Green Belt and the surrounding area's character and appearance for
only a limited time period would be clearly outweighed by these other considerations.
Consequently, very special circumstances exist to justify the inappropriate development in
the Green Belt.'

As regards the current personal circumstances of the applicant and his family, the
submitted Planning, Design and Access Statement advises that:

'In 2007, the site was occupied by Mr Michael Connors (Snr.) and his children, Michael
(Jnr.) and his wife, Barbara, Luke (aged 17 years), Johnny (16) and Mary (14). Since that
time, Michael (Jnr.), his wife and their two sons (Michael aged 3 years and Tommy (3
months) have left the site and have taken up the traditional travelling lifestyle. Luke has
married and with his wife Anne and their daughter, Kathleen (9 months) is shortly to move
into a house. Mary and her partner Michael are away from the site travelling. Mr Connor's
eldest daughter, Elizabeth (aged 22 years) has returned to the site with her two children,
Michael (18 months) and Ellie-Marie (4 months). Johnny (20) has remained on site and
helps his father with their horse breeding business.

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 113



As regards the families' personal circumstances, although the children have now
completed their formal education, the medical circumstances of Michael Connors (Snr.)
remain a significant material consideration. Evidence of Mr Connors' chronic ill health was
before the inquiry in 2007 and his condition has deteriorated further over the past 4 years.
The Inspector attached significant weight to Mr Connors' poor health and his not infrequent
need for immediate access to facilities at both Mount Vernon and Harefield Hospitals
(paragraphs 37 and 38). In addition to Mr. Connors' health problems, Elizabeth's daughter
Ellie-Marie suffers from Phenylketonuria (PKU), a rare genetic condition present from birth.
The body is unable to break down an amino acid called Phenylalanine which builds up in
the blood and brain. If left untreated high levels of this chemical can disrupt the normal
development of a child's brain and can cause severe learning difficulties. A strict dietary
regime and constant monitoring are necessary especially in early life to ensure that the
condition is controlled. Ellie-Marie is seen regularly by consultants at Great Ormond Street
Hospital and Elizabeth is visited by a nurse and a social worker on a twice-weekly basis.’

A confidential report has also been submitted from the Gypsy Council which details the
health needs of Michael Connors and Ellie-Marie and includes supporting collaborative
information from hospitals. In particular, the evidence submitted substantiates the
difficulties Mr Connor would experience due to his medical condition from having to resume
a travelling lifestyle and the importance to Ellie-Marie of having a stable base so her dietary
requirements can more easily be met. This involves a special low phenylalanine diet which
avoids many staple food types, and an artificial amino acid supplement which is quite
unpalatable and time consuming to encourage a child to take. Also, Ellie-Marie's diet has to
be monitored carefully, with weekly blood samples sent off for analysis and results
conveyed back to the family with possible discussions and modification of her diet.

Supporting letters have also been received from health visitors and the Harefield Children's
Centre. These also substantiate the health care needs of Ellie-Marie and advise that the
site is close to Elizabeth's mother, Kathleen Connors who is able to provide support in the
care of Ellie-Marie and also help to her other daughter, Mary following the birth of her first
baby. Both sisters attend the Harefield Children's Centre. The supporting information
stresses the detrimental impact that would be caused by the disruption of the relationship
and trust the family has built with health professionals by having to move from the site.
However, officers consider that the healthcare needs of Ellie-Marie do not mean that it is
imperative for her to stay at this site.

Therefore the personal circumstances that the previous Inspector considered warranted
very special circumstances to outweigh the harm to the Green Belt on a temporary basis in
the case of Mr Michael Connors (Snr.) are still just as relevant, whilst the education needs
of Mary are no longer a factor. The special dietary and monitoring needs of Ellie-Marie are
not insurmountable with a travelling lifestyle and therefore justify limited weight being
attached. As a result, it is considered that the personal circumstances of the family as a
whole are a material consideration, but officers are not convinced that the health needs of
Mr Michael Connors (Snr.) should justify a permanent approval.

However, this has to be weighted against the continuing occupation of the site. The last
Inspector made his assessment in 2007, five years after the use appears to have
commenced in 2002 and after only a two year temporary permission for the site had been
granted by the original Inspector. Now the site has been occupied for over 9 years, with the
extension of harm to the Green Belt that the use entails. The last Inspector noted that a
temporary permission would not lessen the harm to the Green Belt, but by limiting the
use's duration, the harm would be restricted and on this basis was prepared to only grant a

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 114



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

4 year temporary permission. This application seeks permanent permission but even
considering the compromise of granting a further temporary permission, it is considered
that on balance, the overall duration of harm to the Green Belt would no longer be
outweighed by other factors, including the families personal circumstances, given that
previous Inspectors have made it clear that the site is not suited for permanent retention.

The proposal represents inappropriate development, the permanent retention of which is
harmful by definition, to the Green Belt and the Countryside Conservation Area, contrary to
PPG2: Green Belts, Policy 7.16 of the London Plan (July 2011) and Policies 1.1, OL1 and
OL15 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).
Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this development for a gypsy/ traveller caravan site.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this development.
Impact on the green belt

This has been considered in Section 7.01 above.
Environmental Impact

The main environmental impacts of this development are considered in Sections and
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Due to the anomaly between existing buildings/structures and mobile homes/caravans on
site and the submitted Block Plan, MCA-2 and the application forms making no reference to
the need for any operational development on site, describing the development as retention
of the existing gypsy/ traveller site, the full extent of the proposed works is unclear. For
instance, the plan shows a larger mobile home parallel and close to the north western
boundary of the site whereas it is turned through 90 degrees on site. Also, a second
rectangular shaped mobile home is shown behind the larger one on the plan, whereas a
square shaped temporary building is in a similar position on site. Sheds have also been
erected at the rear of the site which are not shown on the plan. Despite seeking clarification
on this point, to date, no such clarification has been forthcoming.

The last Inspector considered that the site was clearly visible from Jackets Lane and the
site's various structures where clearly visible across the valley. There has been no change
in the conditions on site to suggest that this is no longer the case. The Inspector then went
on to consider the use of landscaping but considered that this was unlikely to overcome the
harm, particularly in nearer views. He concluded that the residential element was harmful
to the special character of the landscape of the Countryside Conservation Area.

The Council's Tree and Landscape Officer has carried out a more recent site inspection
and assessment of the current proposal and considers that the retention of mobile homes,
caravan and outbuildings has had an urbanising influence in an area which remains
predominantly agricultural and pastoral. He concurs with the previous Inspector that the
impact of the development on the character and appearance of the landscape could not be
overcome by landscape conditions.

Impact on neighbours

The nearest property to the application site is known as the Bungalow, which is sited on the
southern side of Jackets Lane, just over 300m from the application site. From this
direction, the site would largely be screened by the boundary hedge and given the single
storey height of the proposed mobile homes, the buildings or the use would not unduly

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 115



7.09

710

7.11

712

713

714

715

7.16

717

affect their residential amenities. From the other direction, the site is more exposed, and
the site can be glimpsed from residential properties on lveagh Close. However, this
distance, at over 400m would ensure that their amenities would not be materially affected.

The previous Inspector also did not consider that the impact of the development upon
neighbouring properties, whilst also having regard to the human rights of the appellant, was
not so significant to justify a refusal of permission.

Living conditions for future occupiers

The Council's guidelines relating to internal floor space standards are not applicable to
mobile homes and caravans.

The area around the mobile home, temporary structure and caravans functions as informal
amenity space and the submitted plan shows a shared area of amenity space between the
two mobile homes which is considered of an acceptable size to address the families
amenity space requirements.

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

There is adequate parking and vehicular access to the site. No objections are therefore
raised to the development on highway grounds, in accordance with Policies AM7 and AM14
of the adopted Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Urban design, access and security

The relevant issues have been considered in other sections of this report.
Disabled access

Not applicable to this development.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

There are no protected trees on site. The application site is also sufficiently separated from
the adjoining Grade | Site of Nature Conservation Importance so that its ecology would not
be adversely affected.

Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this development.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policies 5.2 and 5.3 of the London Plan (July 2011) require development proposals to make
the fullest contribution towards minimising carbon dioxide emissions and to achieve the
highest standards of sustainable design and construction respectively. Policy 5.15 expects
development proposals to protect and conserve water supplies and resources and policy
7.19 to protect, enhance, create, promote and manage London's biodiversity.

This application is for permanent use of the site, whereas no sustainability statement has
been submitted to demonstrate how the site can contribute to sustainable development.
The Council's Sustainability Officer objects to the proposal on this ground.

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Policy 5.14 of the London Plan (July 2011) requires development proposals to have
adequate wastewater infrastructure capacity and advises that proposals which adversely
affect water quality should be refused. Circular 03/99 provides additional guidance to that in
PPG23: Planning and Pollution Control on foul drainage requirements.

The submitted plan shows the two mobile homes connected to an existing cesspool. The
Environment Agency advise that the site is in Source Protection Zone 1, which is an area of

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 116



718

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

high ground water vulnerability which supplies an abstraction point for drinking water. They
object to the proposal as no assessment of the risks of pollution to ground and surface
waters has been provided. The use of non-mains drainage facilities needs to be justified, in
line with DETR Circular 03/99.

The Council's Sustainability Officer advises that the use of a cess pool/pit with the
previously approved temporary permissions is considered acceptable, as if properly
constructed and maintained, their use should not lead to environmental, amenity or public
health problems as they are essentially holding tanks with no discharges. However, in
practice, it is known that problems can occur with overflows resulting from poor
maintenance, irregular emptying, lack of vehicular access for emptying and inadequate
capacity. Now the application is for permanent use, a reconsideration of the preferred
method of drainage is required to accord with the circular.

The EA advise that the use of cesspools is not encouraged as they require a strict
management regime with specialist contractors taking sewage away to a sewage
treatment works to maintain safety and avoid pollution. These contractors can be costly
whereas this cost can be avoided by emptying the untreated contents to nearby
watercourses or puncturing the tanks so they leak to the ground.

Circular 03/99 provides a hierarchy for foul drainage requirements of new development and
only in exceptional circumstances should the use of cesspools be considered. The site is
in a rural location, where the cost of connecting to a mains sewer may be prohibitive,
however this still needs to be investigated as part of a wider non-mains drainage
assessment. The lack of an appropriate foul sewage disposal system may preclude this
site from being suitable for permanent retention.

In the absence of a non-mains drainage assessment, it has not been demonstrated that
other more appropriate means of disposal are available and for an assessment to be made
of the risks of pollution to ground and surface waters arising from the proposed
development within this Source Protection Zone 1. As such, it is considered that the
permanent retention of the gypsy/traveller use discharging to a cesspool results in an
unacceptable risk to groundwater quality, contrary to Planning Policy Statement 23:
Planning and Pollution Control, Circular 03/99 and policy 5.14 of the London Plan (July
2011).

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

The material planning issues raised by the individual objectors have been considered in the
main report. The comments in support are noted.
Planning Obligations

Not applicable to this scheme.
Expediency of enforcement action

The use of the site as a gypsy/traveller caravan site represents inappropriate development
that is harmful to the character and appearance of the Green Belt and the Countryside
Conservation Area. To allow the use to continue contravenes PPG2: Green Belts, Policy
7.16 of the London Plan (July 2011) and Policies 1.1, OL1 and OL15 of the adopted Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007). If this application is refused, then a
further report on the possibility of serving an enforcement notice will be put before
committee.

Other Issues

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 117



There are no other relevant planning issues raised by this application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislation,
regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to make an
informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion,
national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The two previous Inspectors did not consider that this site was suitable for a permanent
gypsy and traveller caravan site, the harm to the character and appearance of the Green
Belt and Countryside Conservation Area being too great. They have only been prepared to
grant temporary permission, mainly due to the compelling personal circumstances of the
applicant and his family. The previous Inspectors were also concerned about the Local
Planning Authority's lack of assessment of traveller's needs within the UDP and no
alternative site's being available in the vicinity. A temporary permission would enable the
Local Planning Authority to progress the LDF and for site-specific allocations to be made (if
appropriate).

Although the personal circumstances of the applicant and his family are still valid and there
are still no alternative sites available, in considering the previous application, the last
Inspector considered that the matter was finely balanced so that a 4 year temporary
permission was considered acceptable so that at least the harm to the Green Belt could be
restricted by limiting the duration of the use, in which time it was hoped the LDF could be
progressed. The LDF has been progressed but not to the extent that specific sites have
been allocated (if required). To allow a further period would be to extend the duration of the
harm so that it is considered that on balance, the other factors, including the personal

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 118



circumstances of the applicant and his family would no longer justify a further extension of
time with a continuation of the harm.

Furthermore, the submitted plans do not show the existing arrangement of buildings,
structures and mobile homes/caravans on site. As such, it is not clear precisely what is
being proposed.

The Environment Agency also object to the absence of an assessment dealing with
pollution risks of foul drainage.

The scheme also fails to demonstrate that it will contribute towards sustainable
development.

The application is recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

Planning Policy Statements and Guidance

London Plan (July 2011)

Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
HDAS: Residential Layouts & Accessible Hillingdon

Consultation responses

Contact Officer: Richard Phillips Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 119



Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2011 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

Harefield

Land at Willow Farm
Jackets Lane

LONDON BOROUGH

OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
57685/APP/2011/1450 1:2,000
Planning Committee Date
NorthPage 120 November

2011

LONDON




Agenda ltem 11

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address 439 VICTORIA ROAD RUISLIP

Development: Change of use of from retail (Use Class A1) to financial and professional
services (Use Class A2).

LBH Ref Nos: 67990/APP/2012/728

Drawing Nos: 1:1250 Location Plan
439/VR/R/01/AB Rev. B
439/VR/R/02/AB Rev. B
439/VR/R/03/AB Rev. B
Design and Access Statement

Date Plans Received:  27/03/2012 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 27/03/2012
1. SUMMARY

This application seeks permission for the change of use of the ground floor of a corner
property within a 4 unit retail parade from Class A1 (retail) to Class A2 (financial and
professional services) and follows an application (67990/APP/2011/1964) to change the
use of this unit to a Class A5 hot food takeaway and install an extract flue to the rear of the
adjoining property which Members may recall was due to be considered at the North
Planning Committee on the 17/11/11, but was withdrawn prior to the meeting. Although
officer's had recommended the application for refusal as the proposed flue was
considered to be intrusive to a neighbouring property and highway issues had not been
resolved. No objections were raised to the principal of the loss of the retail unit. This
proposal, for a financial and professional service unit does not raise similar concerns and
is considered acceptable.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 1:1250 Location
Plan, 439/VR/R/01/AB Rev. B, 439/VR/R/02/AB Rev. B, and 439/VR/R/03/AB Rev. B and
shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Unitary

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 121



Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and the London Plan (July 2011).
INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)

LPP 6.3 (2011) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

LPP 6.13 (2011) Parking

LPP 7.2 (2011) An inclusive environment

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping
areas

S7 Change of use of shops in Parades

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,

Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

3 15 Party Walls

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:

carry out work to an existing party wall;

build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner and
are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building Control
Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements with the
adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as removing
the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further
information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory
booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Planning & Community
Services Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 122



4 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override property
rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not empower
you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the owner. If
you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

5 15 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of
08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays,
Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:20009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Councilis Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

6 125 Consent for the Display of Adverts and llluminated Signs

This permission does not authorise the display of advertisements or signs, separate
consent for which may be required under the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) Regulations 1992. [To display an advertisement without the necessary
consent is an offence that can lead to prosecution]. For further information and advice,
contact - Planning & Community Services, 3N/04, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge,
UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250574).

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the north eastern side of Victoria Road, some 250m to
the north west of the South Ruislip Local Centre, on a prominent corner plot at the traffic
lighted junction with West Mead. It forms a two storey, end of terrace property within a retail
parade comprising 4 units. This unit was previously in use as a domestic appliance shop,
although it is now vacant. The adjoining unit is in use as a mini-supermarket (No. 441), No.
443 is a cafe/takeaway (Class A3/A5) and No. 445 is a nail salon (sui generis). The first
floor is in use as residential flats. N0.439A is accessed directly from West Mead via an
external staircase, with the other three flats being accessed from the service road to the
rear of West Mead via their rear yard areas and external staircases. The parade has two

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 123



projecting two storey wings at the rear and a number of the ground floor units have single
storey extensions at the rear.

Adjoining the site to the rear and on the opposite side of West Mead are residential
properties. To the south of the parade is an electricity sub-station. On the opposite side of
Victoria Road are retail warehouses which are currently vacant but were last occupied by
Focus DIY and Land of Leather.

The application site forms part of a retail parade as designated within the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks the change of use of the application site from retail (Class A1) to
financial and professional services (Class A2). Other than the removal of existing signage,
no external alterations are proposed to the shopfront or building and the only internal
alterations include the removal and installation of internal partition walls and formation of
workspaces.

A Design and Access Statement has been submitted which advises that disabled access
to the unit would be afforded by means the existing level threshold on the shop entrance
and all internal doors would allow wheelchair access.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

67990/APP/2011/1964 439 Victoria Road Ruislip

Change of use of No. 439 Victoria Road from retail (Use Class A1) to hot food takeaway (Use
Class A5) and installation of extractor duct to rear of Nos. 441/441A Victoria Road.

Decision: 17-11-2011  Withdrawn

Comment on Relevant Planning History

An application (67990/APP/2011/1964) to change the use of the retail shop (Class A1) to
hot food takeaway (Class A5) and install an extract flue to the rear of Nos. 441/441A
Victoria Road was placed on the North Committee agenda for the 17th November 2011 but
was withdrawn before it could be considered.

Prior to being withdrawn the application was recommended for refusal for the following
reasons:

1. The proposed extractor flue, by reason of its size and siting, in proximity to the first floor
lounge window at No. 441A Victoria Road, would appear as a dominant and intrusive
feature, resulting in an unacceptable loss of residential amenity to the occupiers of the
adjoining residential flat. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE21, OE1 and S6
of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

2. The proposal fails to demonstrate that the proposed change of use would not give rise to
additional on-street parking which would adversely affect traffic conditions on the public
highway, including the local bus service and result in harm to the residential amenities of
surrounding occupiers. The proposal is contrary to Policies BE19, OE1(iii), S6(iii) and (iv)
and AM7 (ii) of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 124



The current application proposes an A2 use, as opposed to the A5 use which was
previously sought and does not seek the provision of an external flue.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.10 To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity and the
character of the area.

PT1.19 To maintain a hierarchy of shopping centres which maximises accessibility to
shops and to encourage retail development in existing centres or local parades
which is appropriate to their scale and function and not likely to harm the viability
and vitality of Town or Local Centres.

PT1.20 To give priority to retail uses at ground floor level in the Borough's shopping areas

PT1.31 To encourage the development and support the retention of a wide range of local
services, including shops and community facilities, which are easily accessible to
all, including people with disabilities or other mobility handicaps.

Part 2 Policies:

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)

LPP 6.3 (2011) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

LPP 6.13 (2011) Parking

LPP 7.2 (2011) An inclusive environment

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping areas

S7 Change of use of shops in Parades

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning

Document, adopted January 2010

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1
5.2

Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable

Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 125



6. Consultations
External Consultees

3 neighbouring properties have been consulted, together with the South Ruislip Residents'
Association and a site notice has been displayed on site. No responses have been received.

Internal Consultees

Access Officer: No objection.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The main principle that needs to be considered with this application is the loss of a retail
shop.

The main thrust of retail policy within the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007) is to maintain an appropriate hierarchy of shopping
areas to serve local communities. The application site forms part of a retail parade as
designated by the adopted Hillingdon UDP Saved Policies (September 2007), one of the
lower levels within the shopping hierarchy where only a limited number of essential shop
uses would be expected, serving a small catchment area.

Policy S7 states that permission will only be granted for the change of use of Class A1
shops in parades if:

(i) the parade retains sufficient essential shop uses to provide a range of shops appropriate
to the size of the parade and to its function in the shopping hierarchy;

(i) the surrounding residential area is not deficient in essential shop uses; and

(i) the proposal accords with Policy S6.

This is a small retail parade comprising 4 units. Of these, No. 443 Victoria Road has been
converted to a cafe/hot food takeaway and No. 445 is in use as a nail salon (sui generis).
This leaves the application site which is currently vacant (although last used as a Class A1
shop selling domestic appliances) and No. 441 which provides a Class A1 convenience
store which provides a grocery, off-licence and newsagent. Given the size of the parade, it
is considered that the convenience store provides an appropriate range of goods relative to
the size of the parade. Furthermore, the parade is some 240m from the northern edge of
the South Ruislip Local Centre and 120m from the BP petrol filling station on Victoria Road
which also has a BP Connect shop and cafe selling grocery goods, newspapers and beers
and wine, together with bread and sandwiches. It should also be noted that the former use
of the shop did not provide an essential use and therefore the proposal would not reduce
the number of essential shop uses serving the surrounding residential area. As such, it is
considered that no objections in principle can be raised to the loss of the retail use.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application for a change of use only.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to the application site.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 126



No external works are proposed as part of this application. The scheme complies with
Policies BE13 and BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policy S6 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) states that to safeguard the amenities of shopping areas, the Local Planning
Authority will only grant permission for changes of use of class A1 shops if, amongst other
criteria, the proposed use will not cause unacceptable loss of amenity to nearby residential
properties by reason of disturbance, noise, smell, fumes, parking or traffic related
problems.

Policy OE1 states that proposed uses should not have a detrimental impact on the
character of an area or the amenities of neighbouring properties by reason of noise and
vibration or the emission of dust, smell or other pollutants.

The proposed use as a financial and professional office would not give rise to any
additional noise and general disturbance than that likely to be generated by the former use
of the premises as a Class A1 shop. As such, the scheme would not be detrimental to the
residential amenities of the first floor flats or other surrounding occupiers, in accordance
with Policies S6 and OE1 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this scheme.
7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The London Plan does not stipulate minimum car parking standards for proposed
development, only setting maximum limits and these standards require employment uses
to generally provide less parking than retail uses. Policy S6 of the UDP Saved Polices
(September 2007) advises that to safeguard the amenities of shopping areas, the Local
Planning Authority will only grant permission for changes of use of class A1 shops fif,
amongst other criteria, the proposed use will not cause unacceptable traffic related
problems. Policy AM7 at criteria (ii) advises that proposals should not prejudice highway
and pedestrian safety.

The site does not provide any off-street car parking. However, it is considered that the
proposal for a Class A2 office would not be likely to generate any additional demand for
parking over and above that generated by the existing retail use. As such, the scheme
would not be detrimental to highway and pedestrian safety as compared to the current
situation, in accordance with policies S6 and AM7(ii) of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

7.11 Urban design, access and security

Not applicable to this scheme.
7.12 Disabled access

The Submitted Design and Access Statement advises that there is an existing level
threshold to the premises and the Council's Access Officer advises that on this basis the
scheme, no specific access improvements are required and the scheme is acceptable
although advises on the use of informatives to advise of provisions within the Equality Act
2010.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this scheme.
714 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 127



715

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Not applicable to this scheme.
Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

If the application had not been recommended for refusal, the only drainage issue concerns
the build up of fat in the sewers and an informative could have been added to any approval,
recommending the use of a fat trap in accordance with best practice.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

This application raises no specific noise and air quality issues that have not already been
considered in Section 7.08 of this report and by the Council's Environmental Health Officer
Comments on Public Consultations

No comments have been received.
Planning obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

No enforcement issues are raised by this application at the application site.
Other Issues

This application does not raise any other planning issues.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislation,
regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to make an
informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion,
national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 128



9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

No objections are raised to the loss of this retail unit within a small parade, which would still
retain a small convenience store and is sited close to the South Ruislip Town Centre. The
proposed financial and professional services use would have no greater impact upon the
amenities of the area and surrounding residential properties than the existing retail use and
would have no greater requirement for parking. It is therefore recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

National Planning Policy Guidance, March 2012

London Plan, July 2011,

Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
Consultation Responses

Contact Officer: Richard Phillips Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 129



N

S NEN
N N
AN N AR
\\ A} N \\
Shelter N N
N \ Shelter
’ N AN N
N NN
X N
N
N
N

Catholic Church
of
('St Gregory the Great

N
.

’ /I
’ .” EISubSta

Notes Site Address LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary 439 Victoria Road OF AL LINGDON

For identification purposes only. RUISllp Environment, Education
This copy has been made by or with & Community Services
the authority of the Head of Committee Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Services pursuant to section 47 of the Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale i
Act 1988 (the Act). .
Unless the Act provides a relevant 67990/APP/201 2/728 1 1 ,250 )
exception to copyright. - - ‘

_ Planning Committee Date it
© Crown copyright and database May s
rights 2012 Ordnance Surve Y
100019283 e NorthPage 130 2012 HNILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda ltem 12

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address THE BREAKSPEAR ARMS BREAKSPEAR ROAD NORTH HAREFIELD

Development: Conservatory to side and provision of 'jumbrella’ and outdoor seating areas to
exterior of property

LBH Ref Nos: 10615/APP/2012/488

Drawing Nos: 11:120/01 Rev: A
11:120/02 Rev: A
11:120/04 Rev: A
11:120/05 Rev: A
11:120/06 Rev: A
Design and Access Statement
11:120/03 Rev: E

Date Plans Received:  01/03/2012 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 08/03/2012
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks permission for a single storey conservatory to the existing Public
House which would be situated along the northern flank. The proposal also includes some
minor alterations to the garden area with the provision of a jumbrella and outdoor seating
area.

The proposed extension would fail to integrate with the architectural style of the main
building due its excessive height and depth. Given the positioning of the conservatory in
proximity to a prominent junction, it would have a detrimental visual impact on the
character and appearance of the existing building and the Green Belt setting.

It is therefore recommended for refusal.
2. RECOMMENDATION

REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed extension by reason of its siting, size, bulk, excessive depth, height and
design, would fail to appear as a subordinate addition to the existing building and would
thus be detrimental to the appearance of the original building and its Green Belt setting. It
would therefore be detrimental to the visual amenities of the street scene, harmful to the
character and appearance of the Green Belt and contrary to policies OL4, BE13, BE15,
and BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 131



(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national

guidance.
ol Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development
oL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings
OL5 Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
R16 Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and
children
R7 Provision of facilities which support arts, cultural and entertainment
activities
OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures
LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction
LPP 7.16 (2011) Green Belt
LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character
LPP 7.6 (2011) Architecture

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises a two storey detached public house situated on the
crossroad where Breakspear Road and New Years Green Lane intersect. The public
house is situated on a large plot of land (3.6ha) with a car park and childrens play area to
the north and seating areas in front of the entrance to the west. A lawn area separates the
public house from the site boundary with several mature trees providing additional
landscaping to the site. Directly north and south of the site are large open green fields. To
the south west on the opposite side of Breakspear Road South lies the Crows Nest Farm
Complex. The area is on the edge of the open countryside with a large residential area
situated 80m west of the site on Breakspear Road. These properties are predominately
two storey semi detached. The site falls within the Green Belt as designated in the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 132



3.2

3.3

Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a single storey conservatory to be
situated along the northern flank of the property facing onto the car park. The conservatory
would be located adjacent to the entrance of the public house and would measure 7.2m
deep by 8.4m wide. It would have a gable ended roof style which would follow a similar roof
line pattern as the existing building and would have a maximum height of 7.4m. The
materials used in the finish would be a mixture of glazing and brick work to match the
existing.

The front of the property would also include a new patio area adjacent to the entrance
which would provide additional outdoor seating for customers. This would be enclosed with
a fence and a new gate providing access to the seating area.

A further outdoor seating area including a fixed jumbrella (providing protection against the
elements)which would be situated along the southern flank adjacent to the smoking sheltel

Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History
None relevant.

Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

OoL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

oL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

OoL5 Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

R16 Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children

R7 Provision of facilities which support arts, cultural and entertainment activities

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012

PART 1

- MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 133



LPP 7.16 (2011) Green Belt

LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character
LPP 7.6 (2011) Architecture
5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

Two neighbouring properties as well as Ruislip Residents Association were also consulted on the
12th March 2012 and a site notice was displayed to the front of the property on the 12th March 2012.
No representations have been received.

Internal Consultees
Access Officer

As the application is for a conservatory and outdoor area which appears to be accessible, no
specific observations are offered.

However, as the proposed plan submitted demonstrates internal reconfiguration and redecoration,
the following informative should be attached to any grant of planning permission:

1. The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services from
discrimination on the basis of a protected characteristic, which includes those with a disability. As
part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and within the structure of their
building, particularly in situations where reasonable adjustment can be incorporated with relative
ease. The Act states that service providers should think ahead to take steps to address barriers that
impede disabled people.

Conclusion: acceptable
Tree Officer:

LANDSCAPE CONTEXT: The site is occupied by a pub at the junction of Breakspear Road and
Breakspear Road North, situated within the Green Belt. The pub is set within a space which includes
a beer garden, children's play area and car park. There are a number of trees around the site which
are not protected by TPO or Conservation Area designation.

PROPQOSAL: The proposal is to remove the fixed play equipment from the rear of the building and
build a conservatory on part of the existing grass area. To the front (Breakspear Road frontage) a
paved seating area is proposed.

LANDSCAPE CONSIDERATIONS: Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of
topographical and landscape features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping
wherever it is appropriate.

- The submitted proposals do not provide details of existing trees or landscape features. However,
according to the plan proposals, no trees or other landscape features of merit will be affected by the

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 134



development. Some loss of green/open space is inevitable to accommodate the conservatory and
the new paved area.

- Although no landscape enhancement has been proposed, there is space and opportunity for new
planting which should both complement the proposed development and enhance the Green Belt.

- A landscape management/maintenance plan should be submitted to ensure that the landscape is
established and maintained in accordance with good practice.

RECOMMENDATIONS: No objection, subject to the above considerations and conditions COMS,
COM9 (excluding item 3) and COM10.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land
permanently open. This is achieved by resisting inappropriate development which by
definition is harmful to the Green Belt.

There has been an exisiting Public House on this site for considerable period of time. This
provides a community facility within the countryside for a many surrounding neighbours, in
particular those situated along Breakspear Road. It contributes significantly to the vitality
and viability of the local economy, while also contributing to the social and community
infrastructure in the Green Belt. The extension of the building would therefore be
acceptable in principle subject to complying with Policy OL4 and OL5 of the UDP.

Policy OL4 states that the replacement or extension of buildings within the Green Belt will
only be acceptable where they do not result in a disproportionate change in the bulk and
character of the original buildings, and the development would not injure the visual
amenities of the Green Belt by reason of siting, design or activities generated.

The proposal would increase the size of the building area by 15.4% adding an additional
60sq.m in floor space. However, in the context of the site, the size, depth and in particular
height of the proposal would impact on the character and appearance of the existing
building. The proposed gable ended roof design would create an awkward visual
relationship with the existing roof styles on the property. The conservatory would have a
height and depth of over 7m which is considered excessive given its positioning. The site is
situated on a prominent junction and the conservatory would have a bulky appearance that
would fail to appear subordinate to the main public house.

Due to the positioning, height and depth of the proposal, it would fail to appear compatible
with the existing building or the surrounding area. It would therefore have a detrimental
impact upon the visual amenity of the locality, in particular the Green Belt area. As such, it
would be contrary to Policies BE13, BE19 and OL4 of the UDP (Saved Policies September
2007).

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Discussed in Section 7.01.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 135



7.08

7.09

710

7.1

712

713

714

715

7.16

717

Discussed in Section 7.01.
Impact on neighbours

Given the position of the site along the junction with open fields to the north and south, it
would not cause an adverse impact on the neighbours' amenity. The nearest residential
unit is on the opposite side of Breakspear Road South. While the large residential
development on the main Breakspear Road is some 80m away. As such, there would be
no loss of outlook, no loss of privacy or light, nor any overshadowing or visual intrusion. In
addition no objections have been received to the proposal from the adjoining occupiers.

As such, the application proposal would not represent an unneighbourly form of
development and in this respect would be in compliance with policies BE20, BE21 and
BE24 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September
2007).

Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this application.
Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The proposal involves improvements to the existing Public House and is considered not to
be of such a scale that it would result in a significant increase in traffic. There is already a
sizeable car park on site that is capable of accomodating a large number of vehicles. The
proposed extension would not affect any parking and/or access fo the site and therefore is
considered to comply with policies AM7 and AM14 of the UDP (Saved Policies September
2007).

Urban design, access and security

Discussed in Section 7.01.
Disabled access

The design and access statement demonstrate that adequate provision has been made for
access for people with a visual or mobility impairement. The Access Officer has been
consulted on the scheme and has no objection or observations subject to complying with
the Disability Act 2010.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

The Tree Officer has been consulted on the scheme and has commented that there would
be no trees or other landscape features of merit affected by the development. Some loss of
green/open space is inevitable to accommodate the conservatory and the new paved area.
The Officer has commented that the opportunity for new planting to complement the
proposed development and enhance the Green Belt should be considered. A condition
could be attached to the decision requiring a landscape scheme to be submitted if the
application is considered acceptable.

Therefore, subject to appropriate conditions the application is considered to comply with
Policy BE38 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007).
Sustainable waste management

The proposal is for a conservatory and it would not lead to a significant alteration to the
waste management of the business. As such, the existing waste management
arrangements would not be altered.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 136



718

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

The proposal is not within a flood risk zone and there would not be any flooding or drainage
concerns.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Policy OE1 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007) states permission will not be
granted for uses which are likely to become detrimental to the character or amenities of
surrounding properties and OE3 states buildings or uses which have the potential to cause
noise annoyance will only permitted if the impact can be mitigated. In this instance given
the location of the site in the Green Belt, the proposed conservatory and external seating
due to the distance from the neighbours would not result in any additional noise and
disturbance, over and above the current site circumstances, thereby complying with
policies OE1 and OE3 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007).

Comments on Public Consultations

None.
Planning Obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

None.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislation,
regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to make an
informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion,
national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'

Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 137



10. CONCLUSION

The proposed extension due to its overall size, scale, bulk, height and positioning would fail
to integrate with the existing public house and the surrounding area. It would therefore have
a detrimental impact on the openess, character and appearance of the Green Belt and
would be contrary to Policies BE13, BE19 and OL4 of the UDP. It is therefore
recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007
The London Plan (2011)
National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Eoin Concannon Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 138



Crows Nest
Farm

Crows Nest Farm

Old Crows Nest

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

The Breakspear Arms

Breakspear Road North

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Harefield
Planning Application Ref: Scale
10615/APP/2012/488 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date

North Page 139

May
2012

AR
HILLINGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 140



Agenda ltem 13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 152



Agenda ltem 14

By virtue of paragraph(s) 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 153



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 160



Agenda Annex

Plans for
North
Planning Committee

7th June 2012

FHILLINGDON

NNNNNN

www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address LYON COURT AND 28-30 PEMBROKE ROAD RUISLIP

Development: Erection of 3, part 3, part 4 storey blocks, to provide 61 residential units,
comprising 25 one bedroom, 27 two bedroom, 8 three bedroom apartments
and one 4 bedroom house, together with construction of a new access,
associated parking and landscaping, involving demolition of existing buildings
and stopping up of existing vehicular access.

LBH Ref Nos: 66985/APP/2011/3049

Date Plans Received: 16/12/2011 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 25/01/2012
Date Application Valid: 25/01/2012 23/05/2012

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 162



ov | 00kd/wiZh

on 0402 snbny
»o omp

AP v ® 0024
we o

pesodoid Se Ue|d 100]4 PunoI

diisiny ‘peoy xoiquad ‘Wnog uokT

poumieqjatpeubupsxa ()
AN

i ‘porow gy SoIE

>nE28

uBisap sisyEads Jns o) pajepdn Budeospue
suorsinel yedieo Joun

‘poAOL e ‘PeleIUeLOR §Z 0} 0 S00edS

¥ 4001q 0} SMOPUIM PUE Bupy/edIED 0 SUOS

€ or>Fx

‘o105 paonpa ojesedos ai) BUNOA]
posIAD) 810300 0fOAD.

‘AemuBiH 91and oy PoROwD 8002 posodosd
‘peoy oxoiquod o) pourelos 00 Butsia

°
P POpP E5000I 1OAOSSOLD PUB SOUEAUO OPNOA
X umesp Buuuaig posodoid 52 wio) Yeip Ul panss| N
A [
x
-
r ooz 3
x ovove
Wedieo puR 19015 Wl pasS3008 0 § 0 ' DROIE 1
A ovorn pappe saieb aunozs
‘pesinas ony pue 'sonoofed ‘S19¥001 90K0  H
AT OVOVSO  Peppe oy pue BupoAo puB esnjes SIRNOISRKD  ©
A oveose OMmpouss Ui 0} 0) suoisal oUN 4
AT 0V60ZZ  Suonera uepiES 0Eq o) pappe SaIUIIEE pUE 0RLDL

PauBisepa; § ¥00IG 'V ¥00I8 WOY PeAOS) i
“Paubisap S| ‘ParOwa) Y0op padeaspue)
“parowas  yoofG Buuofpe sjun 008 3

"G00 PRAOULR] Syun Joo} PUNCIE
Q901 19pun ek ed ‘POAOLII Y00 J0 UOOY

AT 0160’12 1004 puni  ¥00iq O} peppe Siun ‘peBiejus pieAuNCO N
a

A oveos0 poppe Budeospuel pue sioN01 O
AT oreoso poppe Buidedspue| pue sease ‘Soul0ld @
AT 0r60s0 onss) feuwioid v
Co) war

“BuMEIp S1y ofE0s 10U 0

S8lON

!

T

EEEEREES

Ty

LTS,

o = e

$ezieialalalala/ it

He®

Qg'uufy% :
e Qs
gl

age 163

e —




ov Loldiviel
on 0402 1snBy
~ o
AP v ® 0024
pasodoud se ue|d 00| isil4

diisiny ‘peoy 8joiquiad ‘UnoQ Lok

wofort

llamie3 | piojuels

5 xxx xxxnE

5 5xx3

§z33

2
e
e
2o

s

ovorer

ovorik
010150
ove08z
sz

ove0iz

016020
01800
01600

o

g3y swoig

>nE22

2% 01g uo shea paiue spnoul
souenu3 seotuen o suoneseiy

o0 W U oul Ut

‘SInoke| uswiEde JIEUOISAUA PUE SWOOJUIE] POSIAS)
Suped 20 paesiq o suoneely

‘SueuwL00 W Uy U

‘Snofe oussads BUOIOOUAN PUB SLIOOATI poSIAB
Buped 20 poresiq o suonely.

ubisap sisieads yns o} pojepdn Buideospue
Suoyspes yoceo sourw

“POAOU LjBd ‘PAIEIUBLI08] BZ O) OZ S80BdS

¥ X001Q O} SMOPUIM PUB BUEAIED O] SUOSIA) JOUIW
‘esnoy e pue sBuiping

ofeos paonpa ajeiedos oau) BUNOAL| 1noke] MoON
‘siey dzg | Aq peceidal 1581

umesp Buuei posodoid se wio) e i ponss)
‘poppe siuiod UONBI00 0sNJas D "CONS BuMEsp
ASM PUE 0011 BUMEID YUGE S JO 1UBII BU) U1 POsIAGY

x

x zoa or>3Fx

Kuepunoq werse3 woy Aeme poind Buping
“Kiepunoq wielnnos o) poppe Buideospue
(ko 5100 adr) pasamol 0 3 3'G X008

LoT -

‘suopersfo uapued youq 0 poppe sotoofeg pue aveud]
'PoUBISIPOI B YOOI 'Y 00l WO PORDWR i
pauBiSap 158, ‘panoual yoop podeaspue|

‘porowa y ot Buuiolpe sun @ 08

w

Poppe Buideospue, pue sease 'S0 10ld
onss) Kieuwjoig

i<aovo

“BUmeIP Siu) 91205 100 00

S8lON




X cotdiviet

N 0102 1snBny.
o o

AP v ® 0024
o o

SUB|d 100]4 PAIYL PUB PUODSS

dijsiny ‘peoY 8x0Iquiad ‘UnoD U0k i

llamie3 | piojuels

1V Z1's07zueuwen seuued se ssnoy o) spuswe 'POrDU GFY KO8 X
ST 7100 powow swopusm seuloq pue POpPE SHOPUXIGA M
ST zon posyeiskeapabey A
1z p0ig uo

9009 SYEUIS D B ¥ 0018 U0 SAeq plbuE OpnUl
o zeow SueuwL00 e U

im0k UOULEGE JELOIRGUM PUB SLIOOIIEQ POSIAY 1
AP WFLKOL Y000 01 SHOpUM U Bupyedieo o] suosaG) oUW S
A wore asnoy @ pue s6upIng

‘ofeas peonpe ejesedes oaiu) BUINOAU INOKE] MON 3
AT 0VILEZ o
ArObLLRE Buwesp Bujuuel pasodosd se wioj eip | panss|
"\ueid J00|d PIE PUB PUZ, poweuy N

) -

ue|d Jooj4 p2iyL 002: |

‘BuMeI SI 9180s 10U 0

S8lON

Ueld 100|4 PUCDAS 00Z:L

Page 165




on

AP

A EOkdIZH

0102 1snBny.
o o

v ® 0024
o o

ue|d JooY % 100|4 Yyuno4

dijsiny ‘peoy axoiquwad ‘Unod uoA

wofort

llamie3 | piojuels

ST ZUSOEO  PoNOW IO POLO POPPE SNOPUI XIOA PUS OWIOT A
ST ZVVOL  O00[E UO SWOPUI XNIOA O} SNOPUIM JOWLOP OBUELD N
v zeon Suou0 HgrT
‘Snoke wounsede JeUOIROUN PUB SO 1
ACWIKOL Y3p00 0f sMopum pue Bupyedieo of s
A wore osnoue.
ofeos paonpol ajesecos 0o BUNOAUIOReI MON 4
A OVHVEZ o
A ol
N
) o

oo

Ue|d Jooyd 002: 1

S=; SISy e,
a (]

o [] 0= n

oo D oo O
g . = =5 3

= = =

‘BuMeI SI 9180s 10U 0

S8lON

oo

ueld 400l Yunod 00Z:k

Eﬂ/;\ﬂﬂ =

Page 166




s _ Okkdmiel

N 0102 Jequieldes
» aw

AP v ® 002+
o o

(1 198YS) pasodoid Se suoleAs|y

diisin ‘peoy axoiqad ‘Unog uokT

llemie3 | piojuelg

*

PEOY 3X0IqUad V-V UoeAs|3 002: L

juewdojeneq |enuapisey Bunsix3

s

¥

l

N
osnoy e pue sBuping

ofe0s poonpol ajesedes 001y BUAOAUI In0Rel WON I

PesiAG) ZQ 1un o} Mopup pue uEId @US

unuetg Joj ponss| Posina) UBid o pUB SIOGET X

e wauno oy posiay 1

puo wouos poubisapey  H

paopusdmy  ©

(13121 005) s1004S Omy 10n0 i ds Bumesp

PopPe 1XaI00 ‘SUeld WOLMD 0} posinas 4

pasamo siooy soddn @ pue 0 'g PO 3

a

znn z@xuny xanzk 8

11Ul posiney
Pasamo] q 001G ‘POPPE SBUIPING JUaOElpY

AT 0V'B0'IZ 4004 PUNQiB ¥ X00(q O} PIPPE Sijun ‘paBIBIuD piekiND
00(q 5191 Jaddn 0} pappe syun

(3 uonens|3) uoyels Jo UOHEAS|T 00S: L

G 201G poRoWel SJun 001 PN
"G00 opUN }RIED ‘PoNOWe) Y09 JO UOOS @
AT oveoso onssy Ksuwiioid v
o o] o
"
“Bumesp s oeos 1ou 00

S8JON

Ppeoy axoiquisd V-V UoieAs|3 00S: L

g-g uoneAs|3 00z:L




wo_ bhdmigl

3-3 uoneAs|3 002: L

v 0402 1snBy
o o

AP v ® 0024
o o

(2 199yg) pesodoid se suoilers|3

Buyiema

diisiny ‘PeOY @Yoiqwed ‘WN0Q UoKT

Buyiema

Buiiema

Buyiema 4
u:__.oaﬁ_@&}

m,m.“m_u.omm,m\ )
llemie3 | plojuels

ued Aa% 000111

d-a uoyeAs|3 00z: 1

Page 168

T
I

PEMBROKE ROAD

-0 uoneAs|3 00z: 1

cveoes ‘suieouco yBiluns/uBiiAep

A
Ssouppe Oy S921s MOPUM POSAGY T
A uze ponouwes sawcors ¥
x wzio Buuueid ojponss 1
AT LR pesmarsayaiod  H
A wove osnoy e pue sbupIng
ofeos paonpas ajesedas oau) BUNONU Inokel MoN  ©
A posnoy UBId S 3
A BunUelg 10} ponss| asIAG) UBId ofs pUe SPodET 3
A undweuno oy posiey @
on Pu3 WoWNOS POUBISIPOY O
on pojeopu| sdpmy @
Ar 0LOVEE onss| Aeuwieid v
) Toar

"Bumep s o808 100 00
SsloN




chidiviel

210z hen
o o

v v ® 0024
o o

UOIBAS|T PEOY B)0IqWad

diisiny ‘peOY @Yoiquad ‘UnoY uok]

wofort

oo ponsRepicjues BpoIISEs 3
6995062210 4
09¢156 62210 1

llemies | piojuels

ueid A& 0001:1

peoy axoiquad V- UoneAs|3 00Z: b

suspieg eouenuzy
Buipjing eoyj0 snuesy y O1BAUd paieys a>o01g @ o Pelepeindes vV ¥oig
x

x XK X XK

Q [enuapisay Bunsixg

*

=

= ‘HHHIET H|E

BE
|
|
i

pospel saiod
‘osnoy e pue suipiing

‘ofeas paonpe, ajesedes 081U BUIAOAU] INOKE| MON|
PoSIABI 2 JUN OI MOpUI pue UEId Bl
Bueid oj panss| ‘posiaGy ueid oS pue s10qE

55352 9

peoy axjoiquisd -V UoneAd|3 00S: 1

0z peteoipul scpmy
0L0L6E (Lhbaiiviz) 998) s190us omy Jno yds Bumesp

ovorzs pasamof si00y Jaddr ‘gs¥woig
ororih sueid 1 posiney
ove0zz pasaol q yooig ‘pappe: weoelpy.
‘SuoerSfo UapIEB Y08 01 PappE SAIUOO[Eg PUE @0BLBL
'PaUBISapaI § 3001g 'Y Y00l WO poroLwl Y
“paubisap 1Sal ‘panowes y0op padeaspue)
‘perowsa v yooig Bupujofpe syun @00l O
01'60'KZ 400 PUnaiB Y 00(q O PAPPE SIjuN 'PaBeIuR PIEANCD
@00(q 5121 saddn 0} pappe syun
'Q ¥001q PAOLIBS SYun 400} PUNOID
QP0G J9PUN YiEcieD ‘PAAOII Y09 JO UOOd &
AT 0100 onssy Keuuiierd v
03

Owu OrX-xa3 zazo

555 383333

5

“BuMEIp SI ofE0S 10U 0

SsloN




VA%Y S-6v00L-OWL :4od Bumeig
110z Joqueded s * sleq
(v ®) ooz} : ajeog

(dOL) sjuiensuo) g Aeaing saiL oL

dysiny
peoy vjoiquad
Hno) uoky oSy

P11 esenbs uopuoT :uslD

3n°09djjoun@6p:
98.Z€S €8Y10

-3
1oL
NILvN9 Asung

piojpiing
aue weyding 1z
d711 Buninsuo) juswabeuepy sai]

E 4
O

speynsuon
[eanynoLOGY

u)

110Z AON 62 8 0L0Z RO SZ :81ea
VoGV (104)0IW (SH)auvdia

ebueioaay g

pakeming

Bl UOIJ08]0Id 100y

(anowsy) ¥ AioBajen

cJs

(mo) O KobBeren

5

-
\

(ejesepopy) g A1oBeje)

®

U (YBIH) v AioBered

O

$8pOO UONIPUOD 881

5002:2£85S9 - Aoning daiL

“ooL281

051281

s
Lo ana

@
o3 3008

o
oM IV

sor

oM v
s
woaH 30N

o
Lo 3AVE
wes

+

Page 170




T-6¥00L-ONL  : JoY Bumelg

110Z Joquedeq G| sjeq S
(ev®@) 002} - 9|eos
ESWY
(dd1) ueid uonoajoid @311 :BpIL
disiny
peoy ayoiquad 22
Hnog uok10e-8z  :als [\ % \e
AN
)
P11 suswdojaaag asenbg uopuo :jusi) %
300 djjoun@6pi :IeN-3
98/2€S €870 (IOL

)
N2 ¥no Asung |~
piojpiing
aue weyding 1z
d11 Bunnsuo) juswebeueyy sa1)

sueyNsuoD
[eimynoLoquy
0 h 5

3
5

1LL0Z AON 62 8 0102 0 ST :@eg
Vioqivd (104)DIW (Sau)aivdia
pbueiIaay Ag
pakenng
Baly UOJjO8J0Id 100y
(anoway) y Aiobajen
(mo1) 9 Aiobayen
(e1esopopy) g Aiobajen

(ybiH) v AioBejen

@@@@B

SOpPOD UORIPUOD 8811

6002:2£85S9 - Aoaing saiL

@ s0e4Ng pIeH B1g-ON

VAVAVAVAVAVAVA

NANNNNNN

MANNN/NNT
XXX Bujoo ||[ep) 9oeuns

—| Buoua uonos0Id 9311

uolasjoid 991

VSINV

o

Buiddesm yunu] |

S0 Jawed

o0 B

sojod pjoyedss g
[oA8] punoig /.
anm Jo sdweo
ypm sajod pjoyeds o} payoe)je SUOOas Ysall PIap 9
sdweyo paiiddns Jo pjoygeos G
(selaH) suonoas ysaw plap ¥
alm
Jo sdwejo yym sajod pjoyess 0} payoepe s|pued €
ajeudoidde se sadeIq pue sIaquIal SSOIO YJIM ‘wg
Buroeds  wnwixew ‘punolb sy} ojul usAup s)ybudnz
$9]0d PIoyeds |
Buousg uoyosjoid sai) - LSINY

11

| 910N

"9UO0Z UOISN|OX3 UOIJONJISUoD
ay} uiyum papiwiad ale suonesado paroidde Ajuo

sauy jo Bunybi sy e
s|eoiwayo Jo sjeusjew Aue jo ebelojs ay} e
S|eolwayo 1o sjeusjew Aue jo [esodsip sy} e
Kisuiyoew
Jo jueid ‘sjoo} ‘seplyen jo obeiojs By e
SS900E Je|nolyan Aue e
uoissiwad Buuueld
ay) Aq papiwad ssajun ‘sainyonis Aeiodws) e
SuoIpUod
punoib 1o sjeas| bBupsixe o0} suojeidle e
uopnduosep Aue jo uojeAedxs e
:Buipnjoul
papiwad si AjiAIOB UOIONIISUOD ON “JuswdojeAsp
jo pousd 8y} IO} paginisipun ulewWal Of
(Z3D) auoz uoisn|ax3 uoioNISU0D

‘panqiyoud si siaLueq uoiosjoid
j0 bu 10 uoneoyoads ey} 0} suoness)y
uawdojeasp jo pouad 8y 1o} paulejulew aq
pue JoBjUl UlBWA) JSNW sidlUeq ||y juswdojaAsp
Jo pouad 8y} 10} PaUIBIUIBW PUE SOUBWWOD
sylom a)is Aue a1ojeq ‘panocidde se pajejsul aq 0]

SialiIeg UOND9)O.d 8a1)

2UOZ UoISN|9X3 UOI}ONIISUOD




(D) powosoy 16ukd00 [ —

wasv []

oL yponet []

vnprasuog oy panssy [ |
fencuddy Buuuerd 1o ponssi [

woneuwoUBisaq oj panss) | | wevweid [ ]
3 00L1€88La
- —
Mo 0L, AON LV ® 002Z:}
umesq aeq oeos

ue|d Juswabuely |eseus9 (eoldA) adeospueT Jos B pieH

Bumeiq

alenbg uopuo- Jo}
disiny ‘unog uoA

poloig

WooNMYUGEDUopU0) 3
9216197 2020 ©d
591029 2020 1L

nas 13s

uopuoy

100as LosIOW3 8-y
0014 184

Juqgey

Bmprsuzid 100 1 A2 201 01 001-71Z}
‘peoy ayoquwed i .

Adooizi-1

aweN
fenoidde Buuuerd Jo; panss|

peoy @yoiquied Buofe SeJ0lS g Jo Lonppe

o) pue ueidseisew ou) o} SiowpUBE JOU

36d 169 0} SqnYS @ImyEa) J0 UOPPE.

snid peoy aY01que Buofe 9a: BuGSIX® J0 OGUaIal pUe.
10oUdo[oADP BU O} GOURAUD oL O} WALIPUSWR JOUI
oK ey 5108 ase PoSIAGI 10881 O] UMEIP-2Y
‘SWOULLICO 8 00YUIB 19001 O} SIGUIPUBLLE Uy

A
an

90

siepinog keid

Bupuoy ﬁiss-eH_

(1eop somyore o),
wy}: Wbk
IewpUg posodod - y odAL Kiepunog

®
(1e9p soeyase o).

SBUITe) JOUM AU | 0K

s apn eaopy posode - ¢ o9, Cepinod©

B w1} WOOH,
981 NPl
‘oauey Bulley 10 - 7 0dAL Aepunos

@

S1101 J0QU WILOOE WM UBY W' WBH
‘03u0, popieog 05010 -  8dk | Kepunog

]
w0 wbuoy x 507 x 552 Aesg ons ‘emsimoo |\ O
a%a ‘o3 LoRRNSU0D FNPOL

sy

WBo1 X 051 X €9 AouD Jenys @750
5UBp3 UoReNOSUOD PNPo
6uBp3 504 - 7 99K asay

Q) UOGRNIOSUED FONPal 7
-1 odky

K019 JOAIS | WOGIXO0L HNOOORTS | oy oy
wonpoig
uofeouop 00eds yed 1)

NGAL008X008 n01e0eaS
6u1Agd 0101005 PRNPHOL, ToNPas
Buned qers veyasapoq - £ 0dAL Buned

@D:mu;

e nopo| 91 7
Bupeg

IeUoRPRLL /0BNE Wi9), OO0/
e uewsopod.

10} Bued 001 1020000 PNPoLY
ok Buned

IeuoppeL [9BnEB Wwiigg} 000/
soare.

rid

ld

JBImONUeA 10} Bued 001 1012000 NP
Bupeq Y00ig pasodid - £ 99K Butked

pouEiax 29 0) o1y Bunspcs H

‘odeaspue yos - pusbe

B w000}  evenbs wuigz ezs( &

Joquiy onpesd) q
spmpog - | 03Ky aumyuiny 00as

Aoi9 9IS | w01 X09). 2n0r00/eS|
Bued 01 01012000 PNPOL
Bueq Y00ig Posodaiq - 2 09K Bumed

o unioog) 921s|
ousg oW pue 9qui NPl
ouog -z 00K amyuing 00a

oo ool |
oe2yo0ds 840u6US 0L PG
wepeoeuLE) JEONOA - | 0CAL Buire

ojeos

o 8 9 ¥ ¢ ouw

*si00uiBue Aq papiroid oq o} suidep

WBIBY Ul WWOOY MOjeq PaulEIUIBW 8] PInoys sAejds Ay

“S-65001-OIL UBId DL UORONSUOD O
0} uopENASUGS BuLNp Paraloid o 0} ale PAUIEIR) 0

*SJISIA SOUBUBIUIEW g}, JO WINLIUIW € JOJ MO|IY
“se108ds [EO)Uep!

ue Aq peoeides oq pInous S12aK AU 1SI1} 8} Uj USIGEIS O} SIIE} 10 SeIp JeU) seads Auy
“(wnwiuw sBuelem . Z1, 1o} MOIlE) LmO5 Aieay uielurew o} pelinbe se BuuelEm
‘POOM PBSEaS|p PUE PEap BA0WBI 0}

PuE ywoI6 Aupeey elowoud o} yoeyyory edeaspue eu Aq peronisul se peunid siued

“a))s J0 palied pue sease padeaspue| Wol) PAAOLLS 8q O} SLGSP PU Al
‘pejesoe pue 8500] [10s doey 0} AjieinBs UBnoIY) pexio) aq o} sease pe)
“poliad @doueUBjUIEW InoyBnoiy) saw |2 Je Spaam Jo Jesjo 1de) aq 0} seale pajuel

ey Sjueid 6L U 10 SUIUOW Z), 10} PEUIEIUIEW 6q O) BJE SEasE PadedspuBl Iy -
MOIAIBAG - SSJON SOUCUBIUIE

“sisKjowse|d Jo UONIE B4y PIOAE o} Jyeis payienb Aq pesinedns Jo peyidde oq o) ase si
Hodas $)SAJUY UM SUIIU] 1N PLLIED 8] 0} S)uBWBAIALL [10S IO U
pauinbau Aue pue isAjeuy (1osdo . panosdde ue Aq pejse) eq o) Bupueld Joj pasn |10sds

10 pue jlosdoy 10} 0} Wojuod 0} Buyse) pue losdoy Iy«
deospue] [B10U89) 10} BABI JO BPOD, 8661:8ZYSH PUE (SUQ HEd)
‘9€6€ S8 Ul paypads syuawasinbes au) LM AIduwiod pinoys suogesedo adedspuey

“qing ey Jo yBue| ey sewn ¢-Z eq o} Buueld jo ideq
"puey Aq paieieas pue syup pasiieinieu uj pajueid aq oL
‘Bupueld qing pesodoid

“4oIE 0} JeqUIBAON PejuE(d 6q 01 “BSIWIBUIO Pejels Ssejun sease Bupueld o}
¥ Jozijue) o1uebio esesjel

“9SIMIBLIO ojers Ssejun seaze Bunueld o
pajidde 8 0 8| YoINU Y1Eq SPEIB [ElUBWEWO
poAoidde W 0 Jo WY v “J8Zie} OUEBIO BSERIR MOIS € LM Pajue|d o o) a8 SALIUS Iy

30018 JOUIEIL0D SE PRIUEId 8q O BJE SAMIYS 1Y "UORONIISUCD JOIE UOSEDS
18Woq 10,050dindNINW, 002:Z88E S8 O} 1050} panoidde yidep wiOGy Jo Wi

Bupue|d SN08deqIeH B gniys [Eju

w10 pesodold

ujes pue pup Buoxs Jo spouad Jeye Jo stuow s Aiere
pajsnipe pue payoeuo o) saxers pue sal ‘panoidde pue Jejus JO Sa) 811 SWOL, U Soe(d Ul Paxy

‘om) 8215 Siu} JapUN aS0U) 10} PUE YUIB WOQZ JO SS30Xa Ul S3a1) 1o (panoidde pu ey
sioyoue punciBiapun aq |leys poddns aa1 ) “Jazis) aseela) MOJS jueBio Ue apnjou o) S| [euajew
PelIypEq ||V “pesinba se [10sdoj [euonippe pue 3id 8y} Woyy pajeAeoxs |10sdo) pasedaid Asnomesd
UM pejiyoeq oq [leys id 881} 8y “Jenaq Jo esodindi
“yomjau abeuieip
oy pue Joke] uoesedos

Bupue]g 0011 pesodoid

uopesyjoeds Bunueid

Bunsie3 ioioN

ISRE

ol

*sed) jueyd snouosjod-uou au |im ease Aeid uiyim Bugueld :ejoN

oy oz15d0} ueaig) Buuds, sipuin edin L
/0y ozisdo} dds- snssioseN
A0y ezisdoy SnUEIUISEWWO} SN0JD
g ozisdo} Anows wnyy
Aysueq dedg/sezis sejoeds
sqinq pasodoid
w Jeaulg z+l Mg woGZL-004 ejeooeq snxe
w Jesulyg Z+Lug woszL-004 eoneniks snbey
Aysueq uogipuoy dsdgyezis sejoedg
Bupueid a6pay
WL €0 e Jofew eouip
g € wo09-0p 1 WWINGIA
g €0 Wo09-0%
/e S0 w0g-0y \Eleqny, eouodef BluwNg:
g € woog-0g BUBLIBY00Y 90001ES
WG €0 wo09-0p snsesso0ine] SNuNig
WG €0 wo09-0p Ue¥An OO, SnseseoINe] SnUNIG
g € woop-0¢ UIGoY ey ssel} X eluoUd
g € wooy-0¢ ,ouds onjg, ‘& episACIad
WL £ wooz-s1 SileuIwse) BIpUBSAUORY
/L 20 e 1uessee x ejodoN
/g €0 wooy-0g ejee||d e100ju0]
G € wo0g-09 eseBjnA wnysnBry
/g, €0 e \8Iding 80e(ed, BJOYONOH
WL 2 e {aNig SUOSUYO, WNUeIe)
WG € woop-0g SueaIpe 18unio} SnwAUON
WG €0 e
WG € woQy-08
G €0 wo09-0y wissqueber3,
Aw/L 2 e [E1EBaUEA, IMOLIOW Xaie)
/g €0 e 1p100 eueBieg
/L 20 e sueyda ebnfy
Aysueq uompuod dedgjezis sareds
Bupueld SN0edeqISH /ANIUS
umoys sy pououelg 610 wo08-09
umoys sy 510 wo0g-09
umoys sy L+l yg wo004-08
Aysueq uopipuon sedgjezis sejoeds
Bunueld aniys uewoeds
a yuib wooz-gL sd  Aueyd yeqeded Bjnues snunid
a Y16 wogz-0z ded Ausyd 18U, WNIAY SNUNg
a IO WISZ-02 29 19Z8H yspunL ewnjoo snikiog
Y IO Wo0z-gL ug youg Jony eibu ejnieg
90 YuIO wogL-p) v Auog eunp 1DfoJBWE] JOIYUE(aLY
a yuib wooz-gL MY eidep pay \eldew pay, wnigni Jedy
uopipuoy sedgfezis uojeIneIqqY  eWERU UOWWIOD sojoeds
soa1

eInpayos jueld

uepunog aunoes.
o) 0 paunbol se oo opews
 pouedol pue pourzies 0q o) 2ouoy
PIg0q 050R UBIH WL BuASHE wION

‘Auepunog ences

& o} 0} paunbe 5 poob epew
/pouedes pue peureje: aq o} 80Us)
Pue /em Bupuey Buisied 21oN

“Aiepunoq eindes.

& ULioj ) pauinboJ se pood epew
pauedos pu pournas 0a 1 00u0)
PU 1o DUy BuSX3 10N

axo0078

g

V0078

/paxkde: pue pouere. 9 0} 80us)
PIBOQ OSRD UBIH W'} Busixa 91N

10 S 00}y
0150129 OPIUOA 21O 010N

Mo 10 ous 0} POPUBX® 64 0} BOL ‘o6peu aisisuoo Iy &

pouEes oq o) eous)

‘9Bpay uaisisuca [y &
W10} 0} pauinba aiau 551080 owes
o) Jo SuBWIPadS L P

e oM Buieioy
Bunsoca ‘e1oN

U3 o suLupods Uy paruowerddng
pue pouelel oq 0} e6poH Bunsxa

\,\_ @ zu_.&!&;pxef?ﬁm 0N

poq ainoos.
w0} 0} pasnbes se poob opew

1 / paseds pue poureia: 0q o} 62U}
180G 8500 UBIH WZ' | BUS)E ‘BION

Bpou warsisuoo [y &
o 0y panbas osoum soeds owes
ot Jo suoweds i poowaIddNS
Pue pouEies oq 0] @BpaK Bunsica

Bupspa




YV ASY - 6¢/MS/06¢)

“ON N9
e

LNINIONVHHY 03SOdOYd
1¥N0J N3ATIH

dSM

AINO JALYOIONI 34V SONIMEYA Qv0d
SANIT MOTT3A
SSIOOV / GYIN (3ddOYQ e

A3

SEDETY  — — |
gcl 0

“ou 2ousar] “soy0 Kieuogerg s/isalepy
18H 0 18[/04u03) 8 J0 UOiSsLIBd 8l LM
dew faAing @olBUPIQ BU} Wol peonposdey

"PeAIGSal JyBLATC0 UML) SSLB7000)

470

rage 179




o|d dnoi9 4sm @

woo dnouBdsm mwwrduy

ATNO NOILYWHO4NI ¥O4

INOZ JONVAVITO T1IH3A WwQof

(39
ISHINTY) HIVd Ld3MS T1DHIA

(¥v39
QU¥YMH0J) Hivd LdIMS T10HIA

3V3S LON 00

TIIMLYI QHOANYLS 8605 71€L 02(0) ¥+ X4 000 FheL 02(0) ¥+ oL e
g ZEMS/0GTL 0SeIyLLL e VL YZOM opuor] aUET iUy 0L ‘#570K dSM rowaos e w |
A3y N ONMYS0 BN L0k LR
g/
s =
- — LHN0I NOAT 34¥N0S NOONOT m m ; .\
oz
pdEne | T AL

Page 174




L%

'~-“Ruislip Station

~ (-
1t0 22
Merrion Court
L\
’ N
2~
\ \ ‘:

el

1t0 37
Jameston Lodge

Car Park

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

Lyon Court and
28 - 30 Pembroke Road
Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH

OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale
66985/APP/2011/3049 1:1,250 B ;
Planning Committee Date el ’!b
May
North Page 175 2012 ™NILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address IMADA 12 KADUNA CLOSE EASTCOTE

Development: Erection of a first floor side extension to provide 2 two-bedroom flats with
associated parking and amenity space

LBH Ref Nos: 52580/APP/2011/2033

Date Plans Received: 18/08/2011 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 26/08/2011

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 176



N¥Id %3074 00Z:1 31v¥IS

UUld avain EXpams
were Buliows

T SON DNIMy YD

0102 LsSnony

IdT SYH X35370401KW
11023i5v1

IS0 VNNOvYN ZL
$3SIHAEd YOVH!

S3INIA HN0S Y04 ONYLS 31IAD HO4(LM IIvds |
SLY14 GML HO4(9LONY G SIIvdS HY) 2
JHLNI) SSANLIY ONY

LNVHNYLS3IY 404 03A¥3ISIY SIIvdS dvd 9l
gN7) SINNIL 404 03A43IS3Y $3IVdS HV¥I %
NMOHS S¥ LNOAVY ONIXYvd

,\Hl wokonb SoEpaE.

ot
: ot
Y
w| 8 | el L
i
= El 9

> Zi 5
é
3
% B

6 [4

g b

apraT
YAVWI B
Kaloys onmy 1
VYavwWi
fasoys aybuis _ ~3SN0HENI 3
i3
4
O B e e

SLYN03 SINNFL E

4
S
age 177

HOLLEATYE 31T Lo NMOHS
SIS ATFRANy T oA o RdTot




001} N¥ld 3SNOH 8NT0 HOO1d ONNOUD

pIOA

T Mﬁ

UOI40PDWWOIID
44048

—

WwolIL Jjys

ks

ONILSIX3

0011 N¥d OO LSHH

FECTE]

joos paydud

Unena

Page 178




40074 LSHI4 Ly

ANOAYT S1V14
OMLl 03504044

wem
——— [
s B
——
W

|

igxmagnsdﬂ

Ll

i pocE o) apind ¢ — Supping v Py ey, UoiWRyg B LR Iossy
1A P 4 (s SATRAZE W ) 08 R0 DAY 70 " reintiary
UL

SPOUERR I 1 03 HING s WS | Wt T UL p 3p00 apiAciy

SHTNVORA IR L

o TGRS 50 0] PN U AL SRI0A0 G § | 114 RS iyl
W Y P ‘P Lt g £ 140 T o8l 1r 0 oy o SoBumg e camy
318 e parmuuai 4| marmpew aq 08 {mUpula itw Z504 Fugprjons | wocmg |

HUMOL QR LOL Pl IEIIOIN, 118 D] BN a0ty WA AT urbe
OOR IR 524 Y04 Ry SRR 0L Wi P X (R OIS 3000 g 1y

WD A A uﬁﬂ.—.n’a&u%zlﬁa_!ﬁxiulé_?: oy
A . £ Pvanp motao I 16 pamred ssofd
anlvi....!xu!.il.agixsxaﬁiﬁhvaw.i?E

’ ‘EEEE!BEE&EE_E_‘AE:?
Al oty Py ol SO LT 6 Mo 10 38 e mict)
o 10 sSof 3w 240 pist Imosepin sTecs cvmy sy 3 Ka10F poreyyos mop

NOIVRSTRT

. : daride sy gz, 85
W61 £ 6695 DOT1 ST 00 X 01 s pue sesan 3B Jo wopmnst )

bl Buiy s
iu-b'!ﬂllli!:i!ﬁ{.]h

Iewuhiy og
01T LA il Xm0 ) POmISUOUISP SSSjur (169% V) a1 104 FUNEl 319098
) 3 Fupsuapuna o yo aq ot PRHNbR) 51 13 Bpnel pagy pes) W8

RN Iqwn pue

A PRI SSOLM e pIPANE] 20 01 G0N 3 22800 |- 71 smmsaduizy
SPLFUNG 20l UM 3 S0 [7 It I O PIZIE 3 O Sy 3y

wokiod payymnb dquins £y sy 248 oW PIPHLANS 30 1 FRAR.E FIRMW [Ty
TRIIVIT

% 0 0f Wasaduoe wouad w 4g Powst pow paxadiin
Poes, pdicon g eI 103 ) ks
O PRIRDA O WD [y UORUASD DU 1L ki W Butna Funspa puayxy

TOMLTTE

RN, (s Bupting 5, govmory
20 umeealBE 2 01 Eadges |4 e pund) S pRCHRSILAE P i kpning
P00 01 15 s pasiule 2 0 Spm| e Sutdurs SR AR

ol =y s g

1 Gk B T 0 U 1) PARS S50 aia T Wy pe
ey oA [P P WG X X 49 WSNIE 34 17 |4 Jucs 10 TR TSR

ey Jennd el AR g puw QT PR o) WA €71 q o3 IS

"B, o SIS appiil m N - 2 gy b ) B
VO Jan AL SO, W Sl b mued ST M APARS I MO

Ry ) g7 M o — SIS Duigyao U ssaloe iy U0 | Emyd
ST RGOl 3 Enof Shata NROCEG /| TRAIK) uonepEl; TYRI23MU US| Ar)

1) URNQOD

o 8 Jagsallon passce sl BMIELE DU £ Wi L (. yoey B
L0 pameing I WG e | &) at-PIW T PN B WLIGZXEET SPIAL

3 ARG

B S aS Wlagg LT T w0 g3y Semyond ;o{.—. 10 SUSTIG PRI A LILIG TRRE

IE

[ e

;o ke
/ NCQ\N L

[ 1 ATA0E POX 3 O S1] o | “lacipd

IR 3o g m B oo 8 1N 2B 51 S g Ve

ERTRT BT 0N IO

JOCY U AWORY WG| | MR WA KU 3 PRVIRS LI SEOAD 4 11
WOn0q WL e WG, P LA MM PRI Urbi () ot s ) g
ROy ey A RGO MRS X00L 1) 1 S0P AN I AL

THTIRTR TIV38T
wngprmt

O 07 ke pavamen 3g oL ReTRoN P1os “wede 330 (0 sTde B 1t 3o
TSEOG 0 SIS WO 01 LIS WD gy PR SRS 11 S0 SNO0D 18 Saqafioy.
PEMOY e i pogacp 4 ok smol T ! 01 3R] 05 cuonnmd pmE mou 260y 4y

Ebe Ry ) 24 o1 suonued pros jswsap g1 o Bupr |
“ureainby

63700 SRAMOPBAP pukcn 3y g el POTJIIN 3 o8 [ra A “WO3 WIEE WU Wi
P vl JOONOR,, KRG ) fo AT | Wi SIS I poul] 30 o [uen soeefd
0% P o EEGCNGAT LA 113 MENDO# B RIS [R3n POk UGN |

10 WO ey 3 0 “penriLoM RPN 3] OF 2494 S0l A} IF SHIEA (PUNL]

TIRRETHVI NFOMATLR

‘UOLTEL

PRI JAMYS OF MM WAL M. SRINED L PALAOIN (00 301 WLMOOT 2ARY
<E 5] SO0y 2 | VRdE PR I SRR P05 IPEAOL] 6L SHU W SEGT WRMOCUOZ O
15 WRUANT Fu poraron pum peweetip apw 100 Rat usary q o) Seeowp o0y AL

“BURLAq pus a0 [ wmusR ¢ sy

pum Fimuado }ngi!'ﬁu!wzu 20| M) PTEEM 2ptAal]

TR

W1 pore ST P g OF Wiluy e kmdy .E.:.ﬁ&./. "
¥

“Bukiymg Formi o) s Bt V\V ;0
%-ﬁgliﬁnaigsﬁn“iiirﬁ_@b\w: 7
/

SO0 iy g Py Ay mmeer WHL0H 1 SH) Kpawn (0w suMuRs g

O A P A RS MOPULA 38 KA N0 ) i ““ b

2 U0 B~ i

1 L Y (A2 Y004 I AR S, pOM NIDK) KNG [ W (0] Pue s ,.rl.rf i
a0 VG Uy OrALITS e P AMARD RALIG/ e 30 R0Lg [RDO M | v

DRFWATT L) FPTVA TYNEITYT

nkasmg,
1m0y Suappme oy prsmin j) WOOMI 1oy LpRpURD) Suixs seudy

OTERNS WAL AAKE

" afle g ) i Teaptyng sty [Fo0Y] 4 Waae) PN DIRULRSUT
T Ry e G| R et LLUOOD B POaadl LOGEpUDA) BULKINT

SRALVAROT
N NOLL D VHLLEN

£ 18000 HEYNDE

F MO0 HEVNDE

BNILSIXE

L _J

COl-} NI 3SN0H 8N 40O QNOCHS

L/

H BI1oA

pioA

b el
T

uoIIDPOUWOIID
34015

I

._.-.“.xuw. '
L

wwoIdn 4yoysf

a350404d

:___._..._..._.:_:

ﬂw oo

Suiuip g
uayIy |
d
£
afiunoy %
m )
kL3 i
abung) Bump
uay iy

i

“IAPRAY TR NI SOGTMARID W J3AG i papiap
0 nmama/Inbas Laps pEs CMPW Simed s mad Sy jo souDug

ATB TS 241 G pOYNP PUE yenms MBI A
0 POTIBGD “ML-55413 AWM G ¥ iyt Mg 2o SaFureqo Ml Aeg. wosue T
USR0S 2135 M 01 NS 50 BINY,: 1095, Fujen uy (2| oL AP
KOTIVTIRTA TY RN

“EHSI IS B 0 4005 SN Wi 2smmpdmsad’

] A3 DOHES NS P AIRSMAS0 SII 2 L | 1] ECSC U % PR
2 0 o 2y N I TGS LI pes BAGLMD JRSEN papisto MY

Page 179




0L0Z 4snbno

£'ON ONIMVYO

004k 37V3S

ZdZ SYH x3S37001W
31001SV3

35013 ¥NNOVH 21
SNOILVAIT3 ONILSIX3
S3SIKI¥d VAVMI

nezonv el |

NNId ¥3AIY ONIJV4 NOILVA3ITI 30IS

——T
=1l
m mEEH |
NOILVAIT3 ¥V3IH
WI
TTE
U
aozuu_mﬂéh% H
NOILVA3T3 30dIS
S Oo o
VOVWI m
NOILVA 33 LNQOY4

Page 180




0107 4snbno

%°ON 9ONIMVYQ

00L'k 31VIS

ZdZ SYH x3S37001W
31011Sv3

35073 YNNOYM 2L
SNOILVA313 03S0d0Yd
S3ISIKIYd VOVMI

1oz anv £ 4

NNId ¥3AIY 9NIJV4 NOILVAIT3 3dIS

EHE HE

-

il

]

NOILVA3IN3 ¥v3d

o ] |

H

NOILVA3T3 30IS

=]

YOVHI!

Ll Em o

Ll H H!

NOILVAIT3 LNOYd

oogno

B @80 H H

YavYHI

Page 181




Tennis Courts

Eastcote Lawn

Tennis Club

El Sub Sta

L
Site Address
Site boundary Imada OF g::!\_nl?nli'r\nlg(;; DON
5 g z ’
For identification purposes only. 12 Kaduna Close Environment, Education
This copy has been made by or with Eastcote & Community Services
the authority of the Head of Committee Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Services pursuant to section 47 of the Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale :
Act 1988 (the Act). .
Unless the Act provides a relevant 52580/APP1201 1/2033 1 1 ,250
exception to copyright. - -
Planning Committee Date

© Crown copyright and database

;lgggség;g Ordnance Survey N orthpage 1 82 201 2

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address LAND AT JUNCTION OF WARREN ROAD SWAKELEYS DRIVE ICKENHAN

Development: Installation of a 15m high telecommunications pole, associated antenna,
equipment cabinet and ancillary developments works (Consultation Under
Schedule 2, Part 24 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995) (as amended.) Application for prior approval for
siting and design.

LBH Ref Nos: 65862/APP/2012/982

Date Plans Received: 18/04/2012 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 18/04/2012

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 183



- oot ONINNY'1d SdvIAN NOILYDOO1 3LIS
LEOVIGL LYLOXES  OE9¥L8L L 1i0 BuOydaaL 103r0dd INOLSHINYOD . .
NOISIAZY ‘oN ONMvaa | 3nssi 40 3sodund T INVNG HHO| A8 SHEVAIY | 3LV | A3
vO9 699 ‘mobseln .cmcuwg-!ﬁ
2l ssourang molsel
950/€621 o RLo ) o S 000 N
‘ON 43 INVLINSNOD
perrT——— e —— — WYHNOI ST————
9 ¥0 9L ¥¥¥0L S0 QVON NIMM¥YM -
a1 ¥3uvHS 1 1SOH QI INOLSYINYO0D S5380aV 3US
NMOHS sv| zi2o'Lz AS SSISHY 99NS v SUMYOMLIINLS QVOH NIHMYM mh »
V0 2uva|  03N0NddY|  aIHOIHD NMVG NOLLJO INVN 130
£8GPE0001 IV "ON 3JONION “LHIINADOD NMOHD @
“301440 AMYNOILYIS SALSIPYA ¥3H 40 HITIOHLNOD
IHL 40 NOISSIAMIA FHL HLIM AIAMNS JONYNAHO WOMA (IDNAOHdIM
HAV490LOHd 3LIS
A
XO¥ddY WS S| AYMHOIH ONEnd OL 30NVISIA €
IVINIAISIY S| VANV ONIANNOYHENS T
NG SATIIHVMS
ANV QVOM N3Y¥dVM 4O NOILONNP JHL NO 03L¥3071 S| 3LS 3JHL "GN3 OL MOTIO4 OGNV QvOy NIUNYM
OINO 1HOIM 1SHI4 FHL IHVL 'AVOH SAFTIHVMS OLNO HIMON Q¥IH ONV | NOILONNP LV ObY IHL LIX3 'L ,
SII0N
06z 1Ll IWIS 00006:+ 3W0S
NOLLGBl 3S1690S JON3IY343d AlyO 3LS NOLZS8L 3516905 3JON3IY343Y QRO 3LS
A i TR NLh) ST L ™y
CASy /%%f Bt Saer (2 P
P2 SNOQONI T H NG G S5 §
wooogel - . -
.I/M,,Uhﬂ .Y/i,.., 3 <t
o \Nm.,r/é. ) o0
: 158X 4 —
..... : %ssw i m/\f %
poom: opbi , 1w N
abpuanngy Ll 55:%/& 2 i u._z,.su.r @©
31N0Y ; | ?//WW : |, PR o
$S300% 3LS S . ,
3woipo]
ge L
woo/S8L [csiy
: Om,.v
o
1 | SR
dNoHo = Srew
NOILLYIHCS NYHL 3 ONINNKT S
U0Z Hdy b 57 &€
QM)EQmI \.\1 Jhwﬂum.u%wﬂu i
_NOGONTTIH 40 0408 N an
/ /,ﬂ.‘.wqu, 57
. ot CHMNNEZGT
4 ik “wd i
w0068 | 7 T — - r, S m
woogsel UL SN0 W el T VAR Y
— N e M
w
g g 2 . H140ON
o (=] o
g NOILVYOO g m . NOILYOOT

Edl:

T )




00z ONINNYTd NY1d NOILYDOT 3LIS

NOISIAZY ‘ON ONIMVNQ 3anssl 40 3S0dund JULL ONMVHA

4 0E9vLEL Lyl

103r0¥d INOLSHINYOD ol 18 SYAvW3N | 3wva | A3

VD9 699 ‘mobseln ‘uoiseije g

950/¢6Z1 HS8 o8N

"ON 43M INVLINSNOD X3S3700IW

¥09++0

WYHN3}OI

- 20 G629L — 4dA v¥+¥0l — SO avoy NIuHVYM

Ayappdauuod

Q1 Y3¥YHS Ql 1SOH QI INOLSHINY0O SS3¥AQY LS
NMOHS sv| z1'zo'zz AS SSISHY 99NS v SMYMOMLITANIS V0N NINNVYM E - »
IWOS 3iva QINOYdIY Q3IAIIHD NMWVEQ NOWLJO INVN T30

00ZTL 3OS

‘SANM3AING dHINDI TEVANVIS 3NO4vaoA | . . . . L Lt T C
® (IN) %0 HUM ATdWOD SONIMWNA JHL '€ | » = = = = = =+ = & 4 4 4 e s s e e e e e s Z<|_n_ 20_._.<U,O|,_ .u._.\_m,.

‘03LON 3SIMHIHLO SSIINN INILSIXI T T T . . . R ST
¥V STIvI3a 3US 1V IWNSSY 2 P O . T S R S S S S S O S T O T . T T T R S S S

@3103dS ISIMYIHLO SSTINN | ©  © 7 7ttt vttt mm s s s e s s e s s s e e e e
SIYLIWATIN NI 38Y SNOISNIWIQ TV "L - ; =
TSIION B B B e H R o e @ o B

i

P ——— e

wWoZL IR - -

. INGNAINDA (3N) PO/ANOAVGOA -+ - -« - < o o e e e e
40 NOLVOOT G3S0d0Nd =~ "~ " °  'XOMddV HOH_ -~ °
A o~ o~ . W09 ISOddNVY] —

B oy S

“XOMddV HOIH -+ /

- fusdong - . O
+ + |ppuepisay + ¢+ - o~ -

»
»

y
N
’

ONG A8 3LNOY A1ddNS ¥3MOd
(In) 20/3NOAVAOA 3SOJOYd

31N0Y A1ddNS 18 (3in)
T0/3AN0AVAOA Q3ISOdONud

ANOHY
=" ¥EHL 2 ININNYTY
el Bav h 2

[Adi Ve

(3AE03
ik 40 OHOA NN

LT LT LT LT AlM3dodd -
©e e e . SIVIN3QIS3Y -

‘L

T |




= 00t ONINNV'1d 1NOAVT LIN3 E&_DOm\,qZZm_PZ( S
NOISIAZY ‘ON ONIMVNA |  3NSSI 40 3SOd¥Nd TULL ONMVED ' e MHO| A8 SHYYWY | 3Lva | A3
950/¢6Z1 HS8 oi8n
"ON 43¥ INVIINSNOD X3S3700IW
WYHNINOI
$09¥+¥0 — 20 S6Z9L — 4 POl — SO avoy NIUYVM
Ql Y3IUVHS Qal 1SOH Ql INOLSYINNOD SS3Yaay 3us . p
NMOHS sv| zizozz AS SSISAHY 99WS v SYMOMLIANIS AVOH NIYMYM m h E )
3WoSs 31va Q3A0¥ddY A3%03HI NMV¥Q NOLLJO INYN T30
0G'1T JIWOS
"SINM3AINS JHINDI TIVANVIS 3INOAVAOA
% (IN) 20 HUM ATdWOD SONIMYNG 3HL € ~ % 1 N ~ A NV1d INJANLINO3 " 7.
‘Q3LON 3SIMY3HLO SSTTNA ONILSIX3 ~ 1 0 1 " ; 1 1 1
3¥v SVI3Q 3JUS 1V JAWNSSY 2
s s A AN N N ~ ~ 1 ™~
A3141034S 3SIMYIHLO SSIINN
SIYLINMIA NI 34v SNOISNINIA TV "I 5 A " » # P J ; A P # " P P
"S3I0N
N A~ AN A A AN ~ A 4 A ~
T3ATT ONNOMO MOT3E Q3ddvd
~ ~ 4 ~ A 36 OL SIONA FWVdS d3S0d0oNd P
19na
A > % 1 e ¥30334 051 (M¥n) "0 43S0dO¥d ~
: —f A o 10Na ¥3@334 N
- #0S| INOAVOOA A3S0dONd
T — 10Na ¥3q334 OL -~ A
IHEELAS . Q3X14 ¥OLO3INNOD ,A, 43SOdO¥d -
INOAVT YNN3INY (Mn) “O — : u._om?mwﬁm\mﬂS _.mﬂEn‘.wmmoﬂwmh
L > g * " — _ NOLLYONNO
- . N " i i A . = - —————100Y AIFUONOD $09°0 Q3SOJO¥d

d¥9 d3S0d0¥d

OU'T IWOS
" INOJVAOA

X [1n

NOILY! MO S=ivRE 2 ONINNYT

207 ¥4v H 2

Q3N

N 40 00N

INOAVAOA

————

SVYNNZLNY
3NO4VAOA ONE
¥3A0 GNOYHS
d¥9 a3s0doud

012 1V
v
U 3NO4VA0A

C

0£€ LV
Y
3INO4VYQ0A

ONGQ A8 3LNO0Y AlddNS ¥3MOd X
(i) %0/3NOSVC0A G3S0dOdd
NOLVANNOA 313¥ONOD NIHLM 100M
NO ¥VTid SNIVA TVOI¥LO313 ¥3sn
wvNa (%n) %0/3NO4VAOA G3SOdOdd

12Na MNM ¥3MOd d3S0dOdd

N0y Alddns 18
(¥n) %/3N04VGOA G3SOdO¥d

NOLLYONNO4 3134ONOO NIHLM
1004 NO L3NIEVD NVOTINA
(¥n) %/3N04VAOA 03SOdO¥d

[”'I’/'I
6
10NQ ¥30334 oL oo
@3XI4 ¥OLOINNOD ,A, 03SOONd —

. T3A3T AONNOYO MOT38 J3ddvO
—=———38 0L SLONQ 3vdS Q3S0dO¥d

AN ~ s ~ A

~

T | ;|




\ /|

= 00g ONINNYd NOILYATT13 3LIS :
NOISIAZY ‘ON ONIMvMA |  3NSSI 40 3SOd¥Nd UL ONIVIO e AR SGSEa) HO| Ad SHEVAY | 31va | "A3Y
950/<62 | X3STI0IN rd
"ON 43¥ INVLINSNOD
WYHN3XOI DI oINSV SN SHUCIBI 0K
+09¢¥+¥0 — 20 G629L — 4A v¥¥0l — SO avoy NIY¥vM ANAIIBUUOI
al ¥INVvHS al 1SoH Ql INOLSHIN0D $53¥0QY LS -
NMOHS SY| Z1°20°/2 AS SSASHY 9INS v SHHYOMLIITYLS AvOoy NIHHYM ms E
IWOS 31va Q3A08ddv Q3IXI3HI NMYH0 NOLLJO 3NVN T30
"SINM3AIND JHINDI TIVANVIS INOAVAOA 00T TS
® (3N) %0 HLM ATINOD SONIMYNA 3HL '€ SR SR
V. NOILVAT3
‘03LON 3SIMY3HLO SSIINN ONILSIX3
Jav STIVLI3A 34S 1V INNSSY ¢
031410348 ASIMYIHLO SSITNN
SIYLINMTUA NI 39V SNOISN3WIA 11V I
SIION NOLYANNO4 3LFHONOD NIHLM NOLLYGNNO4 3L3YONOD NIHLM LOON
1008 NO L3NIGVD NVITINA NO HYTlid SNIVW TvOMLO3 T3 ¥3SN
(3n) %0/3NO4YAOA a3SOd0¥d T.z:o (¥n) %0/3N04YAOA d3S0d0oYd
,\ ) [ \ D
/ . £ 1 u_ 13737 ONNO¥O
\ ..\_ !
NOIS / /
/ \u,\ \
/// N~
\\ / ,w,/ (c0]
\\ / 7// ~—
Il \ .,, E e
1 o))
\ X X v
A | ' _NOLVONNOS 100 AUIMONOD NO | N JAN
7oV wo gl T0d 133UIS LLiy NHALYS WO'SL. |- < 79y wo'g
1S0ddAV (n) %/3NO4VA0A 03S0dO¥d \ . 1S0ddnv1
g\\,. ,. | — | | /_/ nE—
A ) RN I A% %
/1 [ \ Yk ks
1 \ Jov wgg Y / \ Lo V
/ y / |\ XOHddY IRl L/ 11 \ LN
/ / I | [ Al \
(anIH38) /| 'R [ A I / / \
S33yL wgL-GlL | / \ X / P [ 1 )
—* | 41 % I A \, N
\\\ | P \ J / ,., » ./ \\.\ / \ \ \ \
/ P \ / , i i
/ S I \ i | \ | f /I
- / f N \ \ \ \/ QI,,_ \ [\ | \% A ——
4noH9 | ) Jovuss s GNONHS NIHLM SYNNIINV. AN . 1o woz)
- | [ \ \ £ 0l \ [ \
NOLIY EHOS=nYHL B ONINNYTd f A \ ,_, , ,/ n.x_d I‘megoz: Ll\J.'.ﬁSV uo zn nmemOz,,L b ] AN ‘ LHOI3H 3341
[ / B " Y 1 [ \ o /
¢ ¥dv b ¢ /| [ ] N oV 0 0 oL Y B I\ \ |
/ /| GNOMHS NIHLM SYNNILNV oy OV WSG'eL SYNNAINY |/ - (oNIH38) s338L
(1303034 /) 3NO4VOOA "ONE 03S0dO¥d { 3NO4VAOA 40 3QISHIANN | f
I\ N\ \ m
NOGONITIH 40 0408 NOT ? \ 4| \ . [ N
TNl f | " 19V weg'yl SYNNILNY
A 9V Wo'Sh
A\ 7104 40 doL ;4 RRSIVEON 45 il
| / LY \ \

TITITT |




The Clump

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

Land at junction of

Warren Road and Swakeleys Drive

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Ickenham 4 ] _
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale
65862/APP/2012/982 1:1,250 N
Planning Committee Date M 7 ’!b
a
NorthPage 188 Y | HILLINGDON

2012

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address LAND AT WILLOW FARM (FIELD 3116) JACKETS LANE HAREFIELD

Development: Permanent use of the land as a gypsy and traveller caravan site and for the
keeping and breeding of horses with associated operational development,
including the siting of two mobile homes and a touring caravan, retention of
two stable blocks, and the formation of a garden area with the erection of a
garden shed, yard and paddock areas, parking spaces, landscaping and
fencing (Part retrospective application).

LBH Ref Nos: 57685/APP/2011/1450

Date Plans Received: 14/06/2011 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 14/07/2011
Date Application Valid: 11/07/2011 17/05/2012
22/05/2012
23/05/2012

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 189



HILLINGDON

BCROUGH of

[4 539

__

O

POOM SIPM 19|

Page 190



a
l

Zd9 69N ‘@1314TYVH
"INV SIIIOVL ‘Wavd MOTIIM

00S:T JTVOS

11

Buipueysprey [ ]
ueaele) buunojl =

SuwoH aiqoW [
seiqe)s [

AN

R sy —

oY

0¢

0

PV © 00G:|L

DD6 9LdH ‘'SHINg ‘Yieay yinog I
‘asiy sA31qis € Mun ‘10 ebeg gy

woddng Buneoj4 syong
ZHOZ 934 :Bumesg

LILJ
LE6L16 9GLL0 5191
maxs ojse (ubjsaq fy

SI0UU0D U8l D
aueT sidjoer o9loid

Page 191

¢T0¢ noAe a)s bunsix3




Buipuejspieq _H_
sigms [

yue] 21dans E

bunjieqd 1e)

Sani] 1
plepueis maN =

obpaH moN g
abpay bunsix3y !
ueAele) bunno | b
poys [

Zd9 69N ‘Q13143dvH

[ Juswadoeaag pasodoy |
"INV SLINOVCL ‘WHV4 MOTIIM

oy
00S:T 3TV¥DS

3popped 3popped

X

S0U= |Iey B 350d

uspJeo

a,czm_x.mv
buipuejspleH
932.0U0)

o1daos pays J2Ino ]

P0pped

(Bunsix3)
buipueispiey
2]a.40uc)

0

vV © 00S:1

Page 192



IE6L1E 95120131 gy
DTG 9L dH "SHang "yjeay yinog W

%49 uwoddng Bupeo(d exong

AEL |
SELUNEI] Uoesd|a Buueeig |

| '®s1d shejais £ yun 13 ebeg " SIOUIODD Jy w0
13215 ojseT :ub153q pm UEAR D) IOELS ﬂ_m._ﬂ_“__.“_.
001°L 9925 UOHDASY] OpIS
1
1
10OS ON
UOHDAS(3 IS

0SYT/TT0C/ddY
pleyoley
‘aue] spajoef
uue] mojim
1€ puey

¥V ©® 00T:T 91e2S

FAROS Iy AUA SRINPUNGE B GURLHE
a4t yarljdwa 07 swiows Guipping

0ot 8 9 14 c 0

e e R

uo1eAd]] Jeay

10DS ‘©N buumeiq asn jo abuey) pasodoud



¥ B sl
wre ubinnee o Bupasip we
Lrioes jo
FAPOS 10y AUN GRUAALNIE B JURLE
I yAreadua 01 syows Ruiping |ng

IEBLIE 9GLL0 131 gy S48 uoddng hujeoy mﬁ.__mm_E_ ¥V ©® 00T-T 2]e2S

TG 9l dH "SHang "yjeay yinos N SOLUMEN] Ualesad Bupsseid |
_ o 95 - Pt okt~ ot Lo, Sl oML
| 'os1d sA9|q|g £ Nun 1D ebeg - SI1I0UI0D) B+ L

132015 01587 :UBISI] am UeARRD JNEIS E%%.M_. Q.H w @ .Q. N _Q
| *\ | \*v | |
I v : I o - 1 proveet

uoNeAd|g Jeay

IE * I T

|

Ee i
tl

0SPT/TT0Z/ddY >

rouey S uolneas|3 juo.y
uuey Mojjipm
3e puey

UOHDAS(] opiS

I

——— _L..,.
PR [ A HHE

| |
L

TT0T Aely

buumesq asn jo abuey) pasodoud

cJ0S 'ON




//////////// ]

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2011 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

Land at Willow Farm
Jackets Lane
Harefield

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref:
57685/APP/2011/1450

Scale

1:2,000

Planning Committee

North Page 195

Date
November

2011

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address 439 VICTORIA ROAD RUISLIP

Development: Change of use of from retail (Use Class A1) to financial and professional
services (Use Class A2).

LBH Ref Nos: 67990/APP/2012/728

Date Plans Received:  27/03/2012 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 27/03/2012

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 196



OOF T

e

oo dhoaEd aaE040244

HARAIM
0y DNIATIHS

_ A. .. alam|
4 “ g « Y _
LR -1 o i Ta
5 ! e b =1 I
, i . |
gt =4 :
Ay B
%ww_m t wm%m ﬁ %
T = 5, 1
2
pry=Ee i
\ ]
LY AEE]

Q /vl fdnfosy|  FROTEZAWIAY
=14} *On ENpvivEd] ANl aEws
A6 1o TiHeAag SSAnHINGG 590 PR XAdIW
.Qdﬂud NQLEN Hw\,\rﬁ._mmjor .V?O; SHY W dooe ANNOAR dnsind
20ssy oY @l any ENLISTA a/0d VIRQDIA b
<IN O 03008
oz AZaLD |A \
4
J s

Areiyany

@AW 1S3

QO NHFHADIA

Irpwend

dooH Aol BRLUSHY

e —

Ll

K

RS

[A[EDRTZ 2]

me

K M

eoﬁm.u,wb/_‘

TR i

TTTRATIRE e miga

Irawanyg

Page 187w s




W6 lvpo RNpSTzg IsurHdamwe

{0l NGLDNITEM, AST0H SO,
oSS GOy

/oA un /o5t
g AT / .ﬁ%ﬂ_\wzy?

Froz dzawanoy | COpF
AN AWeS

SNOWNASTE VO ardy INozd]
AT Iy DS
SN oNwvaQ

b30 vH waaw c
dIeT o

Vo] VIRIOLDIN, b5V
11230004

MNOUYATTI u{m&_ TdTzd

1

NoLWAZTS LHNO3d G040

NOLWATID INO2kd ONLSHS

Page 198




2003 IS

S). | ev/e0/d4/dA foey|  TToz wzEWArON| QOB
v . . y AT “ON DNiMv R A (AWOS )
HND Fe i ad ISHENHANYS ] L T ]
‘QrCy NQEBNTTTM 350K SV, H30 Pt ¥HIW wiss wiop g
JosS¢ mﬂ{ SNOLATTE Fals drsifa
EEER NV BNLUSIAT Qyoa VIO b5t
(2L Bripaveld 1 I03.00dd
' rmr?ﬁwﬂm ma.w n_\uw@omu i NOUwAET3E 3AIS onNILs1+a
, ENITN 2l 40 | S0
NG, BNIamig JHE
S0 TR | Nolas 550
HweF !
ﬁ
I
|

!
]
1
]
_
!
1

Pag

(i BHL N SM2IS BLLSIAR SiL <o whowaR) 2
i ST L 9MiEg YoNzasddd ANo au)
@ba 15M) NoLEARTE s — QAaSO40d ANY BN LS KT
el sais 3D TS WWET

e LB FENNRIRNER NN Y

S o DY R




Catholic Church
of
(St Gregory the Great

N

N
N Yy 3N

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

439 Victoria Road

Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Planning Application Ref: Scale
67990/APP/2012/728 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
May
NorthPage 200

2012

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address THE BREAKSPEAR ARMS BREAKSPEAR ROAD NORTH HAREFIELD

Development: Conservatory to side and provision of 'jumbrella' and outdoor seating areas to
exterior of property

LBH Ref Nos: 10615/APP/2012/488

Date Plans Received:  01/03/2012 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 08/03/2012

North Planning Committee - 7th June 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 201



3 oogkbk | LavH
'] Bumoiq 890/ 4|

owg opos

ow.ro.i a3LoNsY| WOS

NV1d NOILYOOT LIS ® %0078

Lnd
P e |

a3s0odoyd
on
QT3143dvH
SINYY dV3dSHVYIHE IHL

SHINLAVL ANd ONN INITAD  puag

s HN"00-E1001IUE-UOIBUIIIOUDEOIO ¢ 1wt
Wi OVI 6HE 106100 “AnoWeNINoR ‘PRON SWIV 6T

0171 VAL NOIS30 aNY L03LIHONY n

owa | Aa Ay
€0'90[ Wos| Pappe Bis YoN pue seq ajeas [ v
€0°20[ WOS| pepuswe seq opds| @

*papiacid 89 UONEPUNOY JO SPOYISW B|qEYNS puE
101081UCD BU} A PejeBISeAUl 8q JSnL pejoidep
ainonys sy} Hoddns o} uodn paijes PUnoib Jo
B8JE YOBT “SUOHIPUOD PUNOIB JO UCHEPUNO} JO
SIIEIOP MOUS O} POPUSIUI 10U SI BUIME.P SIUL
‘SBuME.p ©SeU) U pal eoyoads 10U Jo
1ayjeym suopeinbay Buipjing JUSLIND BU} YIM
sj0edsau ||e ul A|dwod O} i J0j0eNuUoD Sy L

‘popircid SBume.p
isiieI00dsS J8yI0 JO [BINPNAS Aue Jsulebe
POXOOUD PUE UM PEeI 8q 1SN BUIMEIP SIUL
‘SLIEIS 5OM 910404 SIUIOd LOJ9BUUOD 18 S|9AD|

MOS PUE S|OAB] ‘SUOISUBWIIP O)IS PUE
& AjiaA PUE %294 O} S1 1030RUOD SUL

pEEBEEEEE|

00z osk 00k 0§ [wlo
0061 - 37VOS

00G:1 9[eds
NV1d X004

@11

0GZl-l ®1eds
NV1d NOILVOO1 31IS

8111ZLE0000LNOTANY ON 20U20I7 210z dnoi9 uoneuuojujoan ay L ybuAdod dewyn ()|

Ieyoy

qniog

Page 202




v

“noy

soozik | 1avH
bumoig 580/ 4oy

Wos pa%OaL)

g umoiq | /sabouoy sloiy

FON.NQ.SAOON;@E

2100

apoog

NY1d
311S a3s0dOydd

o

a131434vH

SINYY HV3dSMv3dd JHL

aus

SAINLAVL dNd ONIY ANFTHD  puosg

SIS T AN00"E1003UDIE-UCIBUIOUDOO1SO | 11T
USR] OVE GHE 1910 "WNOWISWINOT ‘PUOY SUIIY 6Z1

=y

owg | 48 “noy

71/80'90| WOS Pappe UBIS UUON pue Jeq 3jedS | v

*popIACId ©Q UOREPUNO} JO SPOYISW OIGENNS PuE
1010B.11U0D 84} Aq PeIEBNSAAUI 8] 1SNW pajoIdep
einjonss ey} woddns o} uodn peljes punoib jo
Eea.E 4OBT "SUOHIPUCD PUNCIB JO LOREPUNO) JO
SIIEIOP MOUS O} POPUSIUI 10U SI BUIMEIP SIUL
-sBuimesp eseuy uo payels AlIeoyads Jou Jo
1ey1eym suonejnbey Buy JUeLIND By} Ym
sioedse |je uj A|dLIOD O} Si JOIOBNUOD BUL

‘pepirocid sBumesp
3sijepeds Jeuio Jo [eimonys Aue jsuiebe
PeXOBUD PUE LM PESI ©q ISNW BUIMEIP SILL
*SLIES 3IoM 810J0q SIUIod LONOBULOD 1€ SIOAS|
HOAU| JOMOS pUE S|OAS| ‘SUOISUSLIP 8}iS pue
Buiping |18 AjuaA pue ¥O9YyD 03 S1 JOJORIJUOD BYL

:ALON

oSk

0% fwlo
00¢:} - 3V0S

)

le1oy




A4 orozbitk b 1avH
soquin e — — —— —— — — —
| Sumeig s/ e S8 08 ¢L 0/ §9 09 G5 05 Gy 0¥ € 0¢ §T 0¢ §L 0L S0 0
0Z1060 0S| WOS - 0a:k-I TS
a0 ooos | dg umnug | asown ey
NV1d 40014
AaNNo¥o
ONILSIX3
o
a131438vH >
SWYY ¥V3dSHvIHE FHL O o
o |

GHANLIVL GNd ONIY INFTAD  puog

SUMSTIIE ™ N"00"83003OIS-UOIBUNIIUDOOIIO |
DUSTHORL  OVS 6HE 10100 WnoweuINog PEON

Q41 WYL NOIS3A GNY LOBLIHONY R

v

V3dy 3avdl

a0q | 8 “noy

21L’60'90] NOS|  PAPPE SBWEU Woo) pue Jeq afess | v

<

7>

v3dVv 3avdl

i

72777

G
\\\}—u—o—n

N\

000 W __\\\ 7/ 7 siFoL |

= _ ; 4 / x _aziavsia
TWVH 7 \ 7 .

’ 7727722777727 77777728 % @\

DO

455 |

O SIN3IO s31avi
727 7 ]
| Ty R
/ p Vi i
321440 7 1
2 &
7
S N3IHOLIM 7
NETRENT Ol — .
ONIOWS o 7
ONILSIX3 = -
1 ONIONVHO
3Y0Ls ! 2 d44vls
¥OAIiy0d [/
ul 0 7
]
.
-popIAGId G UOREPUNO) JO SPOIEW SIGENINS PUE dv113o = Jd01S \
101ENU0D oY) AG PaIEBASeAU! 84 1SnW paYIdap 7
eimonns ey} Loddns o) uodn pejjos punoib Jo 2
EBJE OB ‘SUONIPUOD PUNCIB JO LONEPUNO) JO —_— )
SIIEISP MOUS O} POPUSIUI JOU

‘sBuimesp eseuy) o paters A
JeUieuM SuonEINBaY Bu
sioedsel jie ul Aldwod

‘pepIrcid SBuIMEIp
ysier0eds Jeyio o |einjonns Aue jsuiebe
Pexoeyd pue yim peas eq isnw Buimelp syl

: 2 \ N3IQYVYO ¥33g
‘SLIEIS }IOM 81040 SIUIOd UORIBULIOD JE S|OAS] u: | Eu

LI9AU JOMBS PUE S|OAS] 'SUOCISUSWIIP O)IS PUE

Buiping |1e AjueA pue 3294d 03 S| 1030B1UCD BYL

10N

Page 204




New external paved area

BEER GARDEN

Denotes area of low level
= = boxing to be removed and
replaced with new 1200mm

New Jumbrella to incorporate ED high Vgrooved boarding
heating and lighting, to (wainscotting) with capping.
approval
D IN EA
Q Q New feature fixed seating
. booth (By others).
Recover existing fixed seating
(By others).
New television d
Allow to remove location A
the existing P > " 3 2y
BBQ ) o N N 7N
" New New carpet (By others)
position for
dartboard
smoking shelter New timber boarded floor
New feature
New timber boarded floor fixed seating
[ml booth (By
R _] others)
srore . 000
counter top and
new claddling to
front coupter
H i .
New backi el
to detail New carpet (By others) existing fixed
seating (By
TRADE AREA > others)
\ )
N OFFICE BOILE Remove
STAFF elng dver -
bar. Alloy to radiator to be
CHANGING AN e B
where
== T xif required.
L:.j X Allow to change all
CORRIDOR New Altro § 0 existing lightfittings for
n fltohonr\g); (by 7 new client supplied fittings
others; e N
¥ ] NN r‘ k \ New | Full internal redecoration; N
N " it glasswasher || Allow for a full external
lew section of studwork anc - i i
New Altro flooring (by others) fire reaistaint dodrest New timber boarded floor rdecoration
(30mins) complete with
vision panel. New backfitting AWP
STORE Alow for BWIC With new il el to detail
clientsupplied kichen | Alov to make good allwal
equipment. 9 Recover
existing fixed
Allow to supply and fit new seating (By
urinals complete with sparge othbrs)
A Allow to decorate the existing pipes etc. Allow to remove the -
kitchen complete existing doorset and walls %
N \ shown dotted.
OO
let area lew steel support over
KITCHEN ’ e-deocrate toilet area
GENTS New feature carvery counter
AN % 2 Allow to strip out z
1 New vanity unit to detail, the existing S o
f LI Allow o form a new soreen & =
sectign of studwork to D <
existing toilet access. o
- Allow to strip out the ﬁ
STORE Siing s & : i
% New screen A
¥ s | Allow to form a new
A | door opening complete
| Alow 16 Teimiove e Re:de/cara{e goﬂet area with a new doorset. TRADE AREA $ 5
existing overshelf to LADIES oW soren. New carpet (By others) =
vanity unit and insert new| XX New extdrnal 2 &
| feature tiling band to op and basins G ! | eskfock lighting t g5
| complete perimeter of Ry $TAAY New Altro ess route. £
toilet area flooring (by| \ éﬁ
others). 3
BLED £
New area of MF ceiling plastered and § $
decorated to approval 3
Allow to form a
new section of
E - picket fence.
a
o
< 2
o /
4 Existing access G
w i i doorset to be, 2
Allow to stripout the existing —_—F !
w
o childrens play area STORE to
emergency exit {Allow fo forml a new|
X only at picket
fence.
—_—
New grea of pavin slabs|
Phase 2 New conservatory complete with timber
windows, facebrick cavity wall construction and flat
roof over.
a
Rev. By | Date
').j ARCHITECT AND DESIGN TEAM LTD
120 Alma Rosd, Bournemouth, Dorset, BH9 1AG  Ta. 02 E3TiS
E-mall § OMcaGhoNIngton rchIecta.co.uk  Fu i1 11T
Y GREENE KING PUB PARTNERS
Site
HAREFIELD
A | Scale bar and room names added |SCM [06.03.12 Toe
Rev. 8y | Date
NOTE: PROPOSED
The Contractor is to check and verify all building GROUND FLOOR PLAN
and site dimensions, levels and sewer invert
levels at connection points before work starts.
This drawing must be read with and checked
against any structural or other specialist
drawings provided.
The Contractor is to comply in all respects
with the current Building Regulations whether P a e 20 5
or not specifically stated on these drawings. Project Manoger/ | Drawn By Scale Date
This drawing is not intended to show details Ghacked scM 1:50 05.01.12
of foundation or ground conditions. Each area SCALE - 1:50 B .
of ground relied upon to support the structure 0 05 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80 85 90 95 100[m Arch./Des. Orawing Rev.
depicted must be investigated by the Contractor g /4
and suitable methods of foundation be provided. HADT 11:120/04 A




v

oy

20/0zi:LL 1avH
ssquiny
Bumoiq 590/ U

WOs o

g umoiq | Jisbowon sloid

PON.—o.mi 00L:}

s100 21095

SNOILVYATT3
ONILSIX3

an

a131439vH

SINYV ¥V3dSHVYIHg IHL

s

GYANLAVL dNd OND ANITAD  puog

SUMSTRO ™ H-O0"S100INOHS-UOIBUNIOUDSONIO | 11SW-D
UG BHORL  OVE GHE 295100 “InoweUINOR RO SNV 6ZF

sy,

NOILVAZT3 1Sv3

#3100 A oy

IL/'80'90| NOS | SIUSWIPUBWE JoUIW 3 PapPE Jeq ajeds| v

=== == == == == == == == ]
[wlooL 06 08 0L 09 0§ 0¥ 0€ 0¢ 0L 0

00L:L - 37VOS

NOILVAZT3 HLNOS

NOILVAZT3 LSIM

“pepiAcid ©q LONEPUNO) JO SPOYIOW B|qE)INS pUB
101peRUOD Bu) Aq PajeBASaAul aq Isnuw pajoidap
eimonss ey poddns o} uodn paliel PUNoB Jo

‘SBuImMEIp @Seu) UC paEls Ajledyoads 10U Jo
1eUIeUM SUOREINBEY BUIPIING JUSLIND BU) YIM
sjoedsa |je uj AIdWoD O} S1 J0JOBNUOD BYL

-pepircid sBuimesp
jsiePads JoU30 Jo [eimonys Aue jsuiebe
POMOBUD PUE LM PEI ©q ISNW BUIMEIP SIUL
*SLIES %i0M 810J0q SHUIOd UONIBULOD JE S|OAS]
UBAU| JOMSS PUE S|9AS] 'SUOISUSLUIP 8)IS pue
Buipiing I|e AjiioA pue %040 0} S1 10}0RI0D BYL

310N

Page 206

NOILVATT3 HLHION

L

X =

L




v

oy

S0/0T1:LL 1avH
sequiny
Bumoiq 590/ U

WS powoayg

s100 21095 g umoiq | Jisbowon sloid

PON.Fo.mA 00L:}

SNOILYA3T3
d3sodoydd
QTAIE3AVH
SINYY dV3dSHVYIdd IHL

GYANLAVL dNd OND ANITAD  puog

SUMSTRO ™ H-O0"S100INOHS-UOIBUNIOUDSONIO | 11SW-D
SUSTORL  DVL GHE 05100 “WAnowewnon ‘PeoN SWIV 61

=y,

#3100 A oy

IL/'80'90| NOS | SIUSWIPUBWE JoUIW 3 PapPE Jeq ajeds| v

“pepiAcid ©q LONEPUNO) JO SPOYIOW B|qE)INS pUB
101eRU0D au} Aq pejeBRSaAUl 8q JSnw pajoidep
2.njonais oy} woddns o} uodn pailes PUNoib jo
£a1E YORS "SUOHIPUCD PUNCIB 1O UOREPUNO) JO
S|IE}OP MOYS O} pepuslu| Jou S| Buimep siyL
‘SBuImMEIp @Seu) UC paEls Ajledyoads 10U Jo
1eUIeUM SUOREINBEY BUIPIING JUSLIND BU) YIM
sjoedsal ||E Ul AIdWOD O} S1 J0PENUCD BU L

-pepircid sBuimesp
Jst[eI08dS JOU30 JO [BIMPNNS AuE Jsulebe
POMOBUD PUE LM PEI ©q ISNW BUIMEIP SIUL
“SUIEIS 3IOM 210499 Sjulod UOROBUUOD Je S|9Ad]
UBAU| JOMSS PUE S|9AS] 'SUOISUSLUIP 8)IS pue
Buipjing || A}LoA PuE }20yd 0} S| J0JORIJUCY BYL

310N

Bunsixe yojew o} e Jepow
Buiyolew ym
0] 0 YIOW{oLG

UnSIX® Yojew 0} [eA0IAdE O S18UMBS[
Paquosep se pajei0oap AIojeiasuoD
Asauiof poompiey apew esoding

Tenoidde
o1 Bunsixa yojew o}

NOISN3LX3 G350d0¥d g

NOILVAZT3 LSV

e e e e ]

[woor 06 08 0L 09 0§ O 0€ 0T 0L 0

oned o) Japun axmyuny

0} j001 Bjeis a}is0dwod

pue SIUBI ‘SIoNeaY YN
eljeiquInl Mau “ONL 3piROId

oned o} sapun ainyuiny
pue syybi| ‘sizieay yum
ejeIqINl M3U ‘O, 3PIAOId

oned o) 1apun aimyuiny
pue SIUBII ‘Sileay Ui
eljoiquInl Mau “ONL 9piAOId

NOILVAZT3 HLNOS

00L:L - 37VOS

e
B3

Bugsixa yojew o} [ecidde 0} a1aymasie
PaquIsap se pajeIodsp AI0jenasuod E
Aiauiof poompiey spew asoding

fencidde o} Bunsixa Uojew o
Kiojensasuod o} Joos ajeys ajisodwod

NOILVAZT3 LSIM

NOISN3LX3 G350d0¥d

Bunsixe yojew oj jje ‘Jepow
Buiyolew yum ‘siiem [oas|
M0 0} oML BUIDE} MON

‘Bupsixe yojew

01 [enosdde o) asaymasio
PaquOsap se pajesodsp
Kiojeniasuoo Arauof
poompiey apew ssoding
fencidde o) Bunsixe
wolew o} Aiojeniasuoo
011001 aleis aysodwod

Page 207

NOILVATT3 HLHION

Bunsixe yojew

NOISN3LX3 G350d0dd

Butuorew ym
| woror iowosa o men

6uisixe Uojew o) fenoidde
0} 2I8ymas|a paquosap se
palei008p Alojensesuod Aiauiof
poompiey apew asodingd

enoidde o) Bunsixe
yojew o} A1ojeAsssuod
011001 @1els al1s0dwoD




o

" Crows Nest Farm

Old Crows Nest

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

The Breakspear Arms
Breakspear Road North
Harefield

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale gt/
10615/APP/2012/488 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date M .
a | 5 ‘
NorthPage 208 2012 | THILLINGDON




Agenda Annex

-

HILLINGDON

LONDON
Meeting: | North Planning Committee
Date: Thursday 7" June 2012 Time: | 7.00pm
Place: Committee Room 5, Civic Centre, Uxbridge
ADDENDUM SHEET
Item: 6 Page: 1 Location: Lyon Court and 28-30 Pembroke Road,

Ruislip

Amendments/Additional Information:

Officer Comments

1. The following drawings are included
within the plan pack but are not part of the
latest set of drawings and are thus not for
consideration:

TMC-10049-L
D1883 L.100 E
1250/SK/32 B

2. Add the following additional Head of Term
to the S106 Agreement:

Education: £14,225
Add the Following conditions:

18. Prior to the commencement of the
development hereby approved details of the
access gate to the car park, incorporating
facilities for its operation by disabled
persons, and capable of being manually
operated in the event of a power failure shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
access gate shall be installed in accordance
with the approved details and maintained for
so long as the development remains on site.

REASON

To provide safe and adequate access for
pedestrians and vehicles accessing the new
parking area in accordance with Policy AM7
of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

19. Notwithstanding the plans hereby

Pagk 209




approved no gates shall be erected to the
front of the proposed dwelling house
fronting Pembroke Road.

REASON

To ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety in
accordance with Policies AM7 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

Item: 7 Page: 31 Location: Imada, 12 Kaduna Close, Eastcote

Amendments/Additional Information:

Officer Comments

An e-mail has been received from the
applicant as follows:

"l note a discrepancy on the location plan
scaled 1:1250 showing the building
annotated as the Eastcote Lawn Tennis
Club. This is incorrect. This error has been
pointed out before, but it seems that no
action has been taken to rectify the mistake.

Please note that the building shown shaded
on the location plan is owned by IMADA and
| would be obliged that this error is rectified
and brought to the attention of the Head of
Planning & Enforcement Services and the
Members of the Planning Committee.

Please note that the building is owned by
Imada and ensure that "Imada" is annotated
on the shaded part shown on the location
plan."

This particular plan is annotated by the Ordnance
Survey and the Council cannot change it as it only
has a licence to use any site plan from the
Ordnance Survey.

Item: 10 Page: 95 Location: Land at Willow Farm, Jackets Lane, Harefield

Amendments/Additional Information:

Officer Comments

This item has been withdrawn from the
agenda by the Head of Planning.

Item: 12 Page: 131 Location: The Breakspear Arms, Breakspear Road

North, Harefield

Amendments/Additional Information:

Officer Comments

This item has been withdrawn by the
applicant.

Pag@210




	Agenda
	6 Lyon Court and 28-30, Pembroke Road, Ruislip - 66985/APP/2011/3049
	7 Imada, 12 Kaduna Close, Eastcote, 52580/APP/2011/2033
	8 Land at Junction of Warren Road, Swakeleys Drive, Ickenham, 65862/APP/2012/982
	9 The Swan, Breakspear Road North, Harefield
	10 Land at Willow Farm (Field 3116), Jackets Lane, Harefield - 57685/APP/2011/1450
	11 439 Victoria Road Ruislip - 67990/APP/2012/728
	12 The Breakspear Arms, Breakspear Road North, Harefield - 10615/APP/2012/488
	13 Enforcement Report
	14 Enforcement Report
	Plans for North Planning Committee
	Addendum

